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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the

“Directors”) of Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”

together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), I hereby
present to the sharcholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group reported
revenue of approximately HK$35.6 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 13.2% from the revenue of approximately

HK$41.0 million of the previous year.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group reported a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$20.6
million (2022: approximately HK$123.1 million), representing a
decrease in loss of approximately 83.2% as compared to previous

year. Such decrease in loss was mainly attributable to:

The provision for impairment losses on non-current
assets for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
HK$nil (2022: approximately HK$43.9 million), whereas
the depreciation and amortisation for the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately HK$1.0 million
(2022: approximately HK$15.4 million). Such reduction
was mainly due to no impairment losses on intangible assets
and property and equipment and right-of-use assets being
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
approximately HK$43.9 million) as (a) intangible assets
of the Company were fully impaired and (b) property and
equipment and right-of-use assets of the Company were close

to fully impaired during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The net realised and unrealised losses on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately HK$5.4 million
(2022: approximately HK$39.7 million). Such reduction
was mainly due to the net unrealised loss on investment in
a private equity fund having decreased to approximately
HK$5.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
approximately: HK$36.8 million).
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The reversal of provision for impairment losses on financial
assets, net for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$20.6 million, whereas provision for
impairment losses on financial assets, net for the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately HKS$0.6
million. Such reversal was mainly due to a decrease in loans
receivable and loan to a related company as a result of the
repayment from these borrowers during the year ended 31
December 2023 and hence (a) a reversal of provision for
impairment losses on loans receivable of approximately
HK$14.3 million (2022: approximately HKS$ 1.8 million) was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2023, and (b) a
reversal of provision for impairment loss on loan to a related
company of approximately HK$2.9 million (2022: provision
for impairment loss of approximately HK$3.5 million) was

recognised for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

The Group was principally engaged in the provision of financial
services with the licenses to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) (collectively, the
“Financial Services Business”) during the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2023, the Financial Services Business of
the Group mainly consists of (i) external asset management
(“EAM”) services; (ii) fund management services; (iii)
securities services; (iv) investment advisory services to fund

management; and (v) corporate finance advisory services.

The Group has been continuously exploring opportunities
for investments to diversify income stream and maximise
returns for the Shareholders. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 February 2019, the Group subscribed
for limited partner interests in BeiTai Investment LP (the
“Investment Fund”). As at 31 December 2023, the Group
has made investment of HK$72.0 million (2022: HK$72.0
million) in the Investment Fund as a limited partner, which
represented approximately 71.0% (2022: approximately
71.0%) of the total capital commitment of the Investment
Fund. As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the
Investment Fund was approximately HK$23.9 million (2022:
approximately HK$29.5 million).
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It is expected that the overall business environment in which
the Group operates will remain challenging, especially amid the
geopolitical tensions and high interest rate and global inflation
pressure. The Group will continue to cautiously monitor the
development to ensure timely response to changes regarding the
market condition. The Group will strategically adjust the allocation
of the resources within the Financial Services Business where
appropriate and will continue to seize investment opportunities

with a view to maximise returns for the Shareholders.

The Board would like to express its gratitude to all the staff for
their hard work and dedication and to thank all our Shareholders,
clients and suppliers for their continuous support.

By Order of the Board

ZHU Dong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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The Group has been engaging in the Financial Services Business
with the licences to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type
4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the SFO since December 2018 and throughout the
reporting period. On 16 December 2020, Bison Corporate Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was granted
a licence to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activity under the SFO by the Securities and Future
Commission (the “SFC”). Since then, the Group commenced the

provision of corporate finance advisory services.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group reported
revenue of approximately HK$35.6 million (2022: approximately
HK$41.0 million), representing a decrease of approximately
13.2% as compared to that of the previous year, which was mainly
attributable to the overall decrease in revenue after consolidating
the revenue attributable from EAM services, fund management
services and corporate finance advisory services discussed in the

sections below.

The Group provides EAM services to clients, most of whom
are high net worth individuals, with aggregate asset sizes
under EAM business amounted to approximately HK$4.1
billion as at 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately HK$3.8
billion). Revenue generated from EAM services for the
year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$27.0 million (2022: approximately HK$24.7 million)
representing an increase of approximately 9.7% from the

revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Group will continue to leverage on (i) the stable
relationship between the Group and the financial institutions
which are able to provide investment products which suit the
needs of the EAM clients; and (ii) the management team with
extensive asset management experience and strong network
with high net worth clients, to broaden the customer base

and support continuous development of the EAM business.
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The Group acts as the investment managers or general
partners of certain offshore private equity funds and manages
the assets and investments of the funds on a discretionary
basis in pursuit of the investment objectives and strategies
of the funds, which include achievement of long term
compounded net asset value gain for investors. Revenue
generated from fund management services during the year
ended 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$5.4 million (2022: approximately HK$13.6 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 60.1% as compared
to the previous year. Such decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in management fees income received and
recognised by the Group from the funds that are managed by
the Group under the fund management services business due
to tightened liquidity and therefore temporarily eventually
affecting their ability to repay the Group’s management fees.

Revenue generated from corporate finance advisory services
during the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$1.9 million (2022: approximately
HKS$1.2 million), representing an increase of approximately
62.4% as compared to previous year. Such increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in investing and financing
transactions planned or done by clients following the end of
COVID-19 pandemic which resulted in an increase in demand
of corporate finance advisory services during the year of
2023.

The Group, through Target Capital Management Limited
(“TCM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
provides a full range of seccurities brokerage services,
including securities margin financing, underwriting, placing
services, as well as securities dealing which was commenced
since TCM’s admission as a CCASS participant of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
in 2019. The securities margin financing services of TCM are
mainly provided to its institutional and retail clients for the
security trading in their securities accounts maintained in
TCM, which form part of the securities brokerage services
provided by TCM. The business remains minimal at this stage
so as to minimise the operating cost during such uncertain

economic condition.
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In order to ensure the compliance with the relevant rules
and regulations and proper risk management for its securities
margin financing services, TCM has in place a written policy
setting out the relevant margin lending policy and internal
control system in compliance with all applicable rules and
regulations including the SFO, the Code of Conduct for
Persons Licensed by or Registered with the Securities and
Futures Commission (including Schedule 5 “Additional
requirements for licensed persons providing margin lending”
of the Code of Conduct) and Guidelines for Securities Margin

Financing Activities. In particular, pursuant to such written

policy:

TCM should assure itself that the clients have the
financial capacity to meet margin loan obligations
by assessing credit risk of each client based on the
objective documentary proof of net income or net
asset worth obtained. Upon receipt of the appropriate
documentary proof, TCM would set the appropriate
credit and margin limits accordingly, and conduct
regular review on the limits to ensure the credit risks

are properly managed.

In addition, TCM sets up a credit control committee
(the “Credit Control Committee”), which is mainly
responsible for, inter alia, overseeing and ensuring the
creditworthiness of clients, the margin and credit limits
and the client’s application for the increase of credit
limits so assessed and approved by the responsible
officers of TCM are supported by the objective proof(s)
of the client’s income and asset.

Normally, TCM charges its client at a designated
interest rate. For certain clients with good creditability
and sound financial background, a lower interest rate
may be charged after officer of TCM are satisfied
with the client’s creditworthiness. The Credit Control
Committee would also review the latest financial and
credit condition of clients from time to time and make
recommendations to increase the interest rate for those
accounts with persistent margin calls.

TCM only accepts securities listed on the Stock
Exchange as underlying collaterals with different margin
ratios based on their liquidity, type (as equity or debt)
and market value etc. The margin ratio for different
types of collateral would be reviewed and revised either
quarterly or at times of significant market movement.
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The sales and trading team are responsible for obtaining
objective proof(s) showing client’s income and net
asset for determining the terms of the margin loan and
submit such results and information to the responsible
officers of TCM for review and approval; whereas the
Credit Control Committee serves as an independent
supervising committee to ensure the decisions made by
the responsible officers of TCM regarding, inter alia, the
creditworthiness of clients, the margin and credit limits
and the client’s application for the increase of credit
limits are supported objectively by the relevant income
and asset proof(s). To ensure appropriate checks and
balances are in place, the Credit Control Committee
reports directly to the board of directors of TCM.

In order to ensure repayment and recovery of the
margin loans and sufficiency of the securities collateral,
the policy sets out the triggering events and steps for
margin calls to make demands for additional funds
or collateral when the value of the equity in client’s
account declines below certain required levels, and a
forced liquidation of collateral if the client fails to meet
the margin call before designated deadlines. The Credit
Control Committee shall monitor the status of the

margin calls.

In case that the proceeds from the forced liquidation is
insufficient to recover the margin loan balance, TCM
shall obtain legal advice from its lawyers and take legal
action to recover the outstanding balance.

The Group acts as the investment adviser to fund managers or
general partners of several offshore private equity funds and
provides portfolio advisory services to them.

Although the Group’s Financial Services Business continued to
face challenges and uncertainties due to the uncertainties in the
geopolitical tensions, high interest rate and unfavorable market
prospect, the management of the Group is optimistic that the
Group will be benefited from the recovery of economy in Hong
Kong in the foreseeable future. The Group will continue to develop

and enhance the income stream from its Financial Services Business.
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Apart from the traditional financial services, the Group is exploring
new opportunities from emerging financial markets to further
develop its Financial Services Business. The Group’s Financial
Services Business will continue to utilise the Group’s resources
and network as well as the extensive investment experience of our
senior management, which are considered as major contributing
factors to maintain an ongoing business development in the
Financial Services Business carried out by the Group.

On 22 February 2019, the Group entered into the subscription
agreements with BeiTai Investment Limited (the “General
Partner”) (an independent third party to the Company and its
connected persons), being the general partner of BeiTai Investment
LP (the “Investment Fund”) to subscribe for limited partner
interests in the Investment Fund. The objective of the Investment
Fund is to invest in debt securities or equity securities of both
private and listed companies in Hong Kong or elsewhere or by
investing in such other financial instruments as its General Partner
may determine. Such investment is a passive investment and the
Group, as a limited partner, is entitled to receive distributions
of the Investment Fund in accordance with the Group’s capital
commitment therein, but has no right to participate in the day-to-
day operations of the Investment Fund, nor does it have control
over the management of the Investment Fund. The investment
strategy in the Investment Fund is to capture investment
opportunities and increase the efficiency of its financial resources,
and to generate a reasonable return for the duration of the Group’s
investments in the Investment Fund. For details, please refer to the

Company’s announcement dated 22 February 2019.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has made investment of
HK$72.0 million (2022: HK$72.0 million) in the Investment
Fund as a limited partner, which represent approximately 71.0%
(2022: approximately 71.0%) of the total capital contribution of
the Investment Fund. As at 31 December 2023, the underlying
investments of the Investment Fund represent equity securities
listed in Hong Kong, a bond issued by a company listed in Hong
Kong and a bond issued by a private limited company. The
investment in the Investment Fund is stated at fair value and is
recorded as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 December
2023, due to the overall decline in fair value of the underlying
assets of the Investment Fund during the year ended 31 December
2023, the fair value of Investment Fund amounted to approximately
HK$23.9 million (2022: approximately HK$29.5 million), which
represents approximately 12.8% (2022: approximately 14.2%) of
the total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2023. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, as a result of an overall decrease
in fair value of the underlying assets of the Investment Fund, the
Group recorded an unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$5.6 million (2022:
approximately HK$36.8 million). No dividend was received from
the Investment Fund for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.
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As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the Investment Fund’s
carrying value includes the Group’s interest in three underlying
investments: (1) an unsecured redeemable bond issued by Emerge
Ventures Limited (“EV”), a private company, (the “EV Bond”); (2)
an unsecured redeemable bond issued by A Metaverse Company
(“AMC”), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (the “AMC
Bond”); and (3) the listed shares of AMC (the “AMC Shares”).

In respect to the AMC Bond, as detailed in note 19(c) to the
consolidated financial statements, the AMC Bond was matured in
February 2022. Up to the date of this report, the AMC bond is still
not redeemed by AMC, whilst the AMC Shares were being sold and
realised by the Investment Fund in February 2024

In respect of the EV Bond, as also detailed in note 19(c) to the
consolidated financial statements, the EV Bond was matured in
January 2022. Up to the date of this report, the EV Bond is still not
redeemed by the issuer and no audited financial information of EV
for all years since 31 December 2021 have been provided by EV to

the Investment Fund or to the Group.

As disclosed in the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022, the trading of AMC’s shares had been suspended
on the Stock Exchange since 1 April 2022 and AMC had not
published its financial information for any financial period after the
six months ended 30 June 2021.

When preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“FY2022 Financial
Statements”), the management conducted fair value assessments
on the EV Bond and the AMC Bond with the assistance from an
independent valuer as at 31 December 2021 and 2022, and on
the AMC Shares as at 31 December 2021 and 2022 based on the
net assets statements of the Investment Fund, the quoted prices
of AMC’s shares prior to its trading suspension and the limited
available financial information of EV and AMC, but neither the
Investment Fund nor the Group were provided with sufficient and
appropriate information about the status of the operations and
financial position of EV and AMC for management and/or valuer’s
assessment of the recoverability and/or the carrying values of
the Group’s interests in the EV Bond and the AMC Bond as at 31
December 2021 and 2022, and the AMC Shares as at 31 December
2022. This led to the external auditor of the Company having
expressed a qualified opinion in relation to (i) the carrying value of
the Investment Fund as at 31 December 2021 and 2022, and (ii) the
net unrealised fair value gain/loss arising from the Investment Fund
attributable to the Group for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2022.
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Subsequent to the FY2022 Financial Statements, AMC has
published its audited consolidated financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, and its interim
financial information for the periods ended 30 June 2022
and 2023. Following that, the trading of its shares has been
resumed on 6 November 2023. Based on AMC’s most recent
published financial information, the management conducted
fair value assessment on the AMC Bond with the assistance of
an independent valuer, and determined that the fair value of
Group’s interest in the AMC Bond amounted to approximately
HK$11,443,000 as at 31 December 2023. Together with
the quoted price of the Group’s interest in AMC Shares of
approximately HK$2,715,000 as at 31 December 2023, an
unrealised fair value loss of approximately HK$5,793,000
on the Groupys interests in the AMC Bond and AMC Shares
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
external auditor of the Company is able to and has obtained
sufficient appropriate audit evidence relating to the carrying
values of the Group’s interests in the AMC Bond and AMC
Shares as at 31 December 2023.

However, since there are scope limitations on the carrying
values of the AMC Bond and AMC Shares as at 31
December 2022 and on the corresponding unrealised fair
value loss recognised in profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2022, the external auditor’s opinion on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 (“FY2023 Financial Statements”)
is inevitably being modified on the unrealised fair value
loss recognised in the FY2023 Financial Statements, the
opening balance of the FY2023 Financial Statements and the
comparative figures pursuant to HKAS 1.

Based on the net asset statements of the Investment Fund
and limited available financial information and relevant
supporting information of EV, the management conducted
fair value assessments on the EV Bond with the assistance
from an independent valuer, and determined the fair value
of the Group’s interest in the EV Bond was approximately
HK$5,979,000 as at 31 December 2023, resulting an
unrealised gain of approximately HK$682,000 recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2023. Neither the Investment
Fund nor the Group were provided with sufficient and
appropriate information about the status of the operations
and financial position of EV for managcmcnt’s and valuer’s
assessments of the recoverability and the carrying value of the
Group’s interests in the EV Bond as at 31 December 2023.
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Management was unable to provide the external auditor with
other sources of information or other evidence to support the
appropriateness of the key inputs and assumptions adopted by
management in their assessments of the determination of the
carrying values of the EV Bond as at 31 December 2022 and
2023. As a consequence, the external auditor was unable to
assess the fair value of the EV Bond and there were no other
satisfactory procedures that external auditor could perform to
determine whether any adjustments to the Group’s interests
in the EV Bond as at 31 December 2023 are necessary. Any
adjustments to the carrying value of the Group’s interests in
the EV Bond as at 31 December 2022 and 2023 could have
a significant consequential effect on the unrealised fair value
loss recognised in profit or loss arising from the Investment
Fund as reported by the Group for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2023.

As mentioned above, the Group managed to provide with the
external auditor of the Company sufficient appropriate audit
evidence relating to the carrying values of the Group’s interests in
the AMC Bond and AMC Shares as at 31 December 2023. However,
the Group, as a limited partner of the Investment Fund that restricts
the Group’s ability to obtain all necessary evidence from EV and
AMC, was unable to provide the external auditor with the sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to support the management’s assessment
on the (i) fair value of the EV Bond as at 31 December 2022 and
2023, and (ii) fair value of the AMC Bond and the AMC Shares as
at 31 December 2022. Given such limitation, the external auditor
of the Company expressed a qualified opinion in relation to (i) the
carrying value of the Investment Fund as at 31 December 2022 and
2023, and (ii) the net unrealised fair value gain/loss arising from
the Investment Fund attributable to the Group for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2023 (the “Audit Qualification”).

Despite the limitation in obtaining all the necessary evidence by
the Group mentioned above, the Group had still obtained the
supporting information and evidence available to it for the fair
value assessments of the EV Bond as at 31 December 2022 and
2023 and fair value assessments of the AMC Bond and the AMC
Shares as at 31 December 2022. The management had conducted
fair value assessments on the EV Bond with the assistance from
an independent valuer as at 31 December 2022 and 2023, and
on the AMC Bond and the AMC Shares as at 31 December 2022.
These valuations based on key financial data obtained from the
net asset statements of the Investment Fund, the quoted prices
of the AMC Shares prior to its trading suspension, the unaudited
management accounts of EV as at 31 December 2022 and 2023 and
the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of AMC as
at 30 June 2021. The management considered that relying on the
result from these valuations performed was the most feasible option
to the Group to conduct fair value assessments of the EV Bond, the
AMC Bond and the AMC Shares under the limitation in obtaining
all the necessary evidence as mentioned above. During the review
of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
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ended 31 December 2023 by the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”), the Audit Committee, after considering
the limitation faced by the Group, agreed to adopt the valuations
prepared by the independent valuer and management for the fair
value assessments of the EV Bond, the AMC Bond and the AMC
Shares. The Directors also agreed to adopt those valuation results
for the purpose of preparing of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.
The Audit Committee and the Directors are in agreement with
the external auditor of the Company on the Audit Qualification
arising from the limitation of obtaining sufficient appropriate audit
evidence in assessing the fair values of those underlying investments
of the Investment Fund.

On 22 February 2022, the Investment Fund has reached the
end of the investment term. The General Partner has initiated
the liquidation process of the Investment Fund by realising
the underlying investments by selling of the AMC Shares and
redemption of the EV Bond and the AMC Bond. Since then, the
Group has been liaising with the General Partner and monitoring
closely the liquidation process of the Investment Fund, with the
view of maximising its return for the benefit of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

With the Group’s effort, the General Partner confirmed to the
Company that the Investment Fund managed to realise all the AMC
Shares held by the Investment Fund in February 2024, and that
the liquidation of the Investment Fund (with the proceeds to be
received pursuant to redemption of the AMC Bond and EV Bond) is
expected to be completed before the end of year 2024.

Further, the Group, through the General Partner, followed-up with
the issuers of the EV Bond and the AMC Bond on the repayment
schedule to ensure the liquidation of the Investment Fund would
be completed before the end of year 2024. Whilst the Group was
previously given to understand that the issuers of the EV Bond
and the AMC Bond had confirmed that they would endeavour to
redeem the EV Bond and the AMC Bond on or around September
2022 pending positive returns from the equity investments and
media production projects, the recovery of market situation was
slower as expected despite domestic and global restrictions relating
to COVID have been lessened since December 2022. As a result,
there had been a delay for the issuer of the EV Bond to receive
the expected positive returns from its equity investments with the
delay in the related media production projects, and for the issuer
of the AMC Bond to complete the relevant cross-border settlement
control procedures to enable it to utilise its revenue generated from
the media production projects to settle non-Renminbi denominated
AMC Bond. Therefore, the EV Bond and the AMC Bond have not
been redeemed as of 31 December 2023 and the date of this annual
report, resulting in a delay in liquidation of the Investment Fund
and the unresolved audit issue leading to the Audit Qualification.
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In light of the above situation, the Group from time to time
assesses the situation in view to protect the interests of the Group
and the Sharcholders as a whole, and explores various alternative
proposals from the General Partner, which involves, inter alia,
distribution of non-cash assets from liquidation of the Investment
Fund. However, having taken into account the interests of the
Group and the Sharcholders as a whole, the Group considered it
to be undesirable to accept such proposals due to the uncertainty
of the value and lack of public market for trading and capitalising
on such non-liquid assets. In order to ensure the liquidation of the
Investment Fund would be completed before the end of year 2024,
the Group, through the General Partner, continued to follow-up
with the issuers of the EV Bond and the AMC Bond on a practicable
repayment schedule which shall result in the redemption of Bonds,
and the liquidation of the Investment Fund, to be completed on
or before the end of year 2024. Having understood the Group’s
concern, the General Partner was able to further persuade the
issuer of the EV Bond to dispose its investment projects (instead
of waiting for positive returns from its equity investments as
originally contemplated) to fund and complete the redemption of
the EV Bond by 30 September 2024. In addition, the issuer of the
AMC Bond are able to confirm that it expects to complete the
cross-border settlement control procedures and to complete the
redemption of the AMC Bond by 30 September 2024. With the
Group’s efforts through the General Partner, the issuers of the
AMC Bond and the EV Bond made partial interest repayment of
approximately HK$2,000,000 and HK$750,000 to the Investment
Fund, respectively, in March 2024 in accordance with the agreed
repayment schedule.

To ensure that redemption of the EV Bond and the AMC Bond can
be completed within 2024, the Company will, through the General
Partner, continue to follow-up with the issuers of the EV Bond
and the AMC Bond (and in any event no less than 7 days prior
to the scheduled payment dates) to ensure they are able to make
the payments and/or redemptions in accordance with the agreed
repayment schedule between the relevant issuer and the General
Partner. The Company will also, through the General Partner, from
time to time (and in any event at least on a quarterly basis) request
for the management accounts of the issuer of the EV Bond, as well
as keep track on the published financial statements of the issuer of
the AMC Bond, to ensure that such issuer has sufficient fundings to
make the repayments and/or redemptions accordingly. Immediately
after redemption of the EV Bond and the AMC Bond, the Company
will urge the General Partner to complete the liquidation and
allow the Company to obtain the distributable returns from the
liquidation by the end of 2024. The Company will also from time
to time (and in any event at a frequency no less than one month)
follow-up with the General Partner with the aim to ensure there
will be no delays in the repayment schedules that have been agreed
with the issuers of the EV Bond and AMC Bond. Taking into account
the aforementioned action plans, the Company considers the
foregoing action plan will allow the Investment Fund to complete
its liquidation and allow the Company to obtain distributable
returns from such liquidation, and thereby resolving the unresolved
audit issues by the end of 2024.

Bison Finance Group Limited

BN bl P AR B OR RERE AL A BE R DL DA AR
A AR [ R TR R R £ P R TS A
N0 25 R AT 28 P a3 43 TR AR
BIEEPTRNIE B EE - R BE EALE
B e i B 1) R R 4 1% > AR EIRR A X AE R
TEE E W EEAEA S 2 HE W
OSB3 R A IO s % -
Fy WE AR B 5 1Y T A TAE R & AR AR
JEE AT 58 K - A5 5 7 i 0 A N A B A R
BN AR F5 B — o0 F W 5 55 00 8 AT AR E
AT I 2 IR ] 28 > DA i % DU 4R 4F IS B8
2R T8 R S R S 0 e R G R ST
TAE TR AL E MBI 1% > 58 5% N
— B A RN 5 AT N R E
T H (1 I 4 J5 50 i s 48 55 i HBRREBUE 1) 1E
) > DUESE SR ZF MEILA =+
H i 52 5 8] & R O A 55 » I Ah > — L F i
fEF5 M8 AT AHERR > HEHR ZF W4 JLH
= H AT B I A A AR T I 57 A [
—IUF S AL EIE S E S Y AMES
%51 T > —JnF AR G R BN AR 55 1
TN B 2 DU AF = H AR W 1 5 K
R R i GRS ERE T —HaME > &8s
Al By %07 52,000,000 7C K i H5750,0007C ©

Iy R PR S BN A 7 S — T8 T A I 1 [
A T AR R SE A AR w8 S ]
TE A EH 2 DR AT) B S B N\
A B P R R S — T T R R I B AT A
BRAE > DURE ORI 25 BE A AR #8245 A Bl 5 0 A
5 7€ F) 4 K IR ] R A i B s ] o A 2 W) R
A A NSRS (i G o] 22 g 2 3
— W) BORG RN E SR T ARV IR H
Az 45 A8 B i — T T W A 2R B AT N2 8 A B9 1Y
Bk > DLRRORAH B 347 AN AR50 & B AR A
B 119 252 3K 0B B o i RN A 0 e — e T
R 104 AR 28w S B B0 Al B A
SC I B T A AEA 2 /] A i =% U 4R 4
JES AT 48 3 - P A AT 20 I [ 9 o AS 2% R RS AN
5 (2 Gy 40 o] A D — Al A — ) B 5
NBRAE > DU R B & RN B 25 S — T 7 4 18
I EEAT N Tih 19 2 IR ) A & i LAt -
%8 Lt AT B R AR A FIRS S Bl AT B w
JHEAE 8 45 R 5 5 BT 7 > I AT B R A A A
I 5 PR AT 23 I [ > ST AE L U AR AR
JES DMt R R M R 1) 3 T[] REL o



The management is therefore of the view, and the external auditor
of the Company having taking into account the Company’s action
plan to resolve the unresolved audit issues is in agreement with
the management’s view, that save for the modified audit opinion on
the carrying amount of the EV Bond as at 31 December 2023, the
corresponding unrealised fair value gain/loss recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2023 and the corresponding gain/loss to
be recognised in relation to the fair value change and realisation
of EV Bond during the year ending 31 December 2024, the Audit
Qualification will no longer exist for the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2024 if the
Investment Fund is able to realise the EV Bond (and proceed to
liquidation) by the end of 2024. To address the Audit Qualification
and realise the Investment Fund, the management of the Group are
closely monitoring the process of the realisation of the EV Bond and
the AMC Bond to ensure that the Group can recover the proceeds
from the liquidation of the Investment Fund as soon as practicable.

In view of the above and the fact that the unprecedented COVID-19
situation could not have been expected or foreseen despite the due
diligence conducted by the Group shortly prior to its investment
in the Investment Fund, the Directors consider that it is fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the Company and its Shareholders
as a whole for continuing to allow and urge the General Partner
to maximise the distributable returns from the liquidation of the
Investment Fund to the Group on or before the end of 2024.

With the view to prevent similar incidents from occurring in the
future, the Company has adopted various enhanced internal control
measures in making and/or monitoring any new investment of the
Company. For further details of the enhanced internal measures,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21
September 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December BHET _HAH=Z1+—HIEFE

Full Year Results (HK$’000) 2023 2022
AR (B T 0) —R=EgE CE T
Revenue WA 35,566 40,957
LBITDA® ) (10,165) (101,857)
A wH R~ BEIH ~ Pr 85 S i B i i s 4R (k)

Loss before tax B Bt Hi i 8 (20,631) (126,732)
Net loss Jis 15 & # (20,638) (123,092)
Basic loss per share (HK cents) (1.45) (8.66)
B e B Al 48 (WAl

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Data (HK$’000)

A MBI DR B (W T o)

Cash and cash equivalents HERKEEED 112,436 124,139
Total assets & 7 48 {ff 186,639 207,784
Total liabilities £1 & 4% % 128,000 128,507
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company 58,641 79,277

Aoy v RN RE A RE 25 AR E
Cash Flow Data (HK$’000)

Bl BB (% T o)

Net cash flows used in operating activities (2,459) (12,447)
A% 25 3 B e P B4 U B AR

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (6,695) (23,266)

Financial Ratios

i B g A

Current ratio ¥t B kb % 1.42 1.74

LBITDA margin®°? (28.6)% (248.7)%

AR AR, ~ BT ~ T 85 K B G i 1 i 4 R ()

Net loss margin®«? 35 i 6 3 (Wi (58.0)% (300.5)%

Debt-to-equity ratio ffEE AR 176.0% 139.3%
Notes: WE‘ :

1. LBITDA = Loss before finance costs, income tax, depreciation and 1. et FILE B IE ~ ST R K BB T s R =R R R

amortisation B~ BT AR~ T8 e g B T 2 e 1R
2. LBITDA margin = LBITDA divided by revenue 2. RFEPRIE S BLIE - I8 R 8 RO S 1R R =R A

S BUIE - T A R T 0 R R LR

3. Net loss margin = Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year 3. T B 18 R =AF N AR 28 W A N RE A s 4R B Dhd A

divided by revenue

Bison Finance Group Limited



For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group reported
a revenue of approximately HK$35.6 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 13.2% when compared to revenue of

approximately HK$41.0 million in 2022.

In view of the current economic environment and volatile global
financial market, the management of the Company assessed such
effect on financial performance of the Group’s Financial Services
Business and the impact on the recoverable amounts of assets. The
recoverable amounts of the non-financial assets were determined
based on value-in-use calculations. Under Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 36 Impairment of Assets (‘HKAS 36”), discounted cash
flow method shall be adopted in the value-in-use calculations.

In assessing value-in-use of the cash-generating unit of the Financial
Services Business, the Company appointed an independent valuer
to conduct a valuation (the “Valuation”). The discounted cash flow
method was adopted in compliance with HKAS 36, and the value-
in-use calculations use cash flow projections based on historical
data and financial budgets approved by the Board cover five-year
period for the year ended 31 December 2022. The percentage of
revenue growth in relation to the investment advisory services and
fund management businesses, being one of the key assumptions
was -4% to 9% as at 31

December 2022. As the carrying amounts of certain non-financial

used in the value-in-use calculations,

assets were estimated to be higher than their recoverable amounts,
provision for impairment losses on intangible assets and property
and equipment and right-of-use assets in respect of the Financial
Services Business of approximately HK$23.4 million and HK$20.5
million respectively were recognised for the year ended 31
December 2022. For details of the value-in-use calculations leading
to the impairment losses, please refer to notes 15 and 17 to the

consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has been
experiencing operating losses on the investment advisory services
and fund management services business cash-generating unit. The

management considered reversal of impairment is not necessary

under HKAS 36.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded (i) the accounts
receivable amounted to approximately HK$16.0 million (2022:
approximately HK$20.2 million); (ii) prepayments, deposits and
other receivables amounted to approximately HK$15.2 million
(2022: approximately HK$6.6 million); (iii) loans reccivable
amounted to approximately HK$15.4 million (2022: approximately
HK$21.9 million); and (iv) loan to a related company amounted to
approximately 0.7 million (2022: approximately HK$2.7 million).
In accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
9 Financial Instruments, impairment analysis was performed
by considering the credit risk of counterparties to measure the
expected credit loss of balances of receivables of the Group. As
a result of such impairment analysis, (a) reversal of provision for
impairment loss on accounts receivable of approximately HK$2.9
million (2022: approximately HK$2.2 million), (b) reversal of
provision for impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of approximately HK$0.6 million (2022: provision
for impairment loss of approximately 1.2 million), (c) reversal of
provision for impairment loss on loans receivable of approximately
HK$14.3 million (2022: approximatc]y HKS$1.8 million), and
(d) reversal of provision for impairment loss on loan to a related
company of approximately HK$2.9 million (2022: provision
for impairment loss of approximately HK$3.5 million) were
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2023. For details of the
expected credit losses calculations leading to the impairment loss,
please refer to notes 18, 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had loans receivable of
approximately HK$16.1 million (2022: approximately HK$24.6
million) in aggregate. The loans receivable constitute:

(i)  loans receivable in the aggregate amount of approximately
HKS$15.4 million (2022: approximately HK$21.9 million) due
from two (2022: three) independent third parties (the “Third
Party Loans”) with effective interest rates of 3% (2022: 3%
to 12%) per annum and repayable within one year (2022: one
year), all of which were unsecured loans. For details, please

refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements; and

(ii) loans receivable of approximately HK$0.7 million (2022:
approximately HK$2.7 million) due from a related company
(the “Loan to a Related Company”) (which is not a
connected person under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) at an interest rate of 15% (2022: 15%) per
annum and was already past due. Such loan was unsecured.
For details, please refer to note 22 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The decrease in loan receivables for the Third Party Loans and
the Loan to a Related Company was due to the repayment by the
borrowers during the year ended 31 December 2023. The balance
due from the top borrower, which is an independent third party,
accounted for approximately 71.9% (2022: approximately 43.7%)
of the total outstanding loans receivable as at 31 December 2023.
The percentage increase in the balance due from the top borrower
is due to the repayment by other borrowers of the Third Party
Loans and Loan to Related Company, while the Group did not
provide any new loans during the year ended 31 December 2023.

For the two financial years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019,
one of the major business of the Group was the provision of media
sales, design services and production of advertisements for transit
vehicle exteriors and interiors, shelters, outdoor signage advertising
business and the provision of integrated marketing services covering
these advertising platforms in Hong Kong (the “Media Business”)

From mid-2018 to early 2019, the Company, through the business
network of Mr. Xu Peixin (an executive Director) (“Mr. Xu”)
in the film, television and media-related industry, was presented
with opportunities to expand the Group’s business network by
participating in projects related to film and television industry
in China. Prior to the grant of the Third Party Loans, the Group
performed various due diligence and credit assessment work
on each of the borrowers, which include (i) obtaining of the
latest management financial statements, statutory records and
indicative timetable of the underlying investment projects to
assess the background and financial position of the borrowers;
and (ii) considering the key terms by referencing the prevailing
market interest rate and the financial position of the borrowers
to compensate the associated credit risk (the “Credit Risk
Assessments”). The Group, having considered that such loan
advancement to the borrowers of the Third Party Loans would be
beneficial to the Group by introducing additional source of interest
income having utilise its idle cash and creating synergetic effect
with the Group’s existing Media Business, decided to advance the
Third Party Loans for a loan period ranging from 2 to 2.5 years at
interest rate ranging from 3% p.a. to 12% p.a. based on the results
of the Credit Risk Assessments.

Further, Mr. Xu was approached by one of his business
acquaintances for a short-term loan granted by the Group in early
2021. The Group performed the Credit Risk Assessments on the
borrower of the Loan to a Related Company, and considered it
represented an opportunity for the Group to utilise the idle cash
in the PRC to generate additional interest income for the Group
with a proposed interest rate higher than the applicable annual
interest rate of the People’s Bank of China for fixed bank deposits.
The Group therefore decided to advance the Loan to a Related
Company for a loan period of one year at interest rate of 10% p.a.
and for an overdue period at interest rate of 15% p.a.
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The Company has engaged an independent valuer (the “Loan
Valuer”) to conduct a valuation in relation to impairment
assessment over the loans receivable as at 31 December 2023 (the

“Loan Valuation”).

The Loan Valuer adopted the expected credit loss model under
general approach (the “ECL Model”) to measure the expected
credit losses (“ECL”) of the loans receivable. The ECL Model
was adopted in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards 9. Major inputs of the ECL Model include (i) probability
of default of the borrowers based on internal credit rating guidance
which in turn affecting the credit specific factor by, inter alia,
assessing the loss stages and checking forward-looking assumptions
involved; (ii) loss given default; (iii) exposure at default; and (iv)

discount factor reflecting time value of money.

In applying the ECL Model, the Loan Valuer assumed that the
financial statements of each of the borrowers in relation to the
loans receivable as at 31 December 2023 were able to reasonably

reflect its financial status as at the date of the Loan Valuation.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a net reversal of
impairment losses of the Third Party Loans of approximately
HK$14.3 million (2022: approximately HK$1.8 million) were
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income due to the net-off effect of repayment
of certain loans receivable of approximately HK$21.6 million
recovered with the efforts of the Company, and the corresponding
increase in allowance of expected credit loss of the remaining

unsettled overdue loan balances.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a reversal of impairment
loss of the Loan to a Related Company of approximately HK$2.9
million (2022: provision for impairment loss of approximately
HK$3.5 million) was recognised due to the net-off effect of
repayment of certain loans receivable of approximately HKS$5.2
million recovered with the efforts of the Company, and the
corresponding increase in allowance of expected credit loss of the

remaining unsettled overdue loan balances.
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Based on the above, as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group
provided the following ECL provision against loans receivable:

ECL rate
R
| ik
2023 & T AR
Loans receivable UL B3k
— the Third Party Loans =B 31.16%
— the Loan to a Related Company
A Wik > A K 55.92%
32.87%
2022 " F AR
Loans receivable T B3k
— the Third Party Loans 5= B 49.23%
— the Loan to a Related Company
B W F) B R 58.38%
50.44%

Whilst the ECL rate for the Loan to a Related Company remains
as 55.92% as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 58.38%), the ECL rate
for the Third Party Loans decreased significantly to 31.16% as at
31 December 2023 (2022: 49.23%) due to settlement of the Third
Party Loans of approximately HK$21.6 million during the year
ended 31 December 2023. As such, the probability of default of
the Third Party Loans decreased to 34.82% (2022: 100%) as at 31
December 2023.

The Group from time to time maintains internal control system
to migrate credit risk exposures arising from lending transactions.
The Group has performed client due diligence procedures and
credit assessment to obtain the background information and assess
the repayment abilities of the borrowers, obtained proper approval
from senior management before executing lending transactions, and
performed periodic review on existing borrowers to identify the
financial position and assess the recoverability of the borrowers.

MR B SCpr Al i A R R
T A =t B A R R R R A T
W5 Bl R B Q0T R

Gross carrying

Gross amount (net of
carrying ECL provision of loss
amount provision allowances)
B R Th A8

iR Th A8 M B (BRI IR BH)
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT BT BT
22,410 (6,983) 15,427
1,665 (931) 734
24,075 (7,914) 16,161
43,147 (21,241) 21,906
6,571 (3,836) 2,735
49,718 (25,077) 24,641
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In particular for the Third Party Loans and the Loan to a Related
Company, the Group has (i) conducted periodical review of the
credit risk of the borrowers, including obtaining the updated
financial statements of the borrowers on semi-annual basis
to review their financial position and assess if there were any
increased credit risk of the borrowers; (ii) maintain ongoing
communications with the borrowers to understand the updated
business operations of the borrowers such as the expected returns
and cash flows of the borrowers so as to assess the recoverability
of the outstanding Loans Receivable; and (iii) request partial
repayment of the Loans Receivable from time to time, leading to
repayment of approximately HK$26.8 million and resulting in the
aforementioned reversal in impairment loss for the year ended 31

December 2023.

With the due diligence work conducted by the Company in
accordance with its internal control procedures to assess the
credit risks of the borrowers and reviewed the terms of the Loans
Receivable to assess the adequacy of the securities obtained and
carried out the aforementioned measures to mitigate the risks in
order to safeguard the interests of the Company, the Directors
considered that the above arrangement is in the interest of the

Company and its Sharcholders as a whole.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group reported a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$20.6
million (2022: approximately HK$123.1 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 83.2%. The decrease in loss for the
current year was mainly attributable to (i) reduction in provision
for impairment losses on non-current assets of approximately
HK$43.9 million and reduction in depreciation and amortisation
of approximately HK$14.4 million, (ii) reduction in net unrealised
losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$34.3 million, and (iii) reversal of provision
for impairment losses on financial asset net of approximately
HK$20.6 million (2022: provision for impairment losses, net of
approximately HK$0.6 million).

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2023. In the event that the Group engages in
any plan for material investments or capital assets, the Company
will make announcement(s) and comply with relevant rules under
the Listing Rules as and when appropriate.
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The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

In 2023, the net cash flows used in the operating activities of the
Group was approximately HK$2.4 million (2022: approximately
HK$12.4 million). Payment for capital expenditure in 2023
amounted to approximately HK$0.5 million (2022: Nil). The
consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is set out on pages 115 to 117 of this

annual report.

On 18 June 2021, the Company and SunChat Trading Limited
(the “Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Share Subscription Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue 236,973,066 ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Subscription Shares”) at the
subscription price of HK$0.26 per Subscription Share (the “Share
Subscription”) under general mandate which was granted to
the Directors pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 16 June 2020, so as
to broaden the sharcholder base and strengthen the cash position
of the Group without incurring additional finance costs of the
Group. As all the conditions of the Share Subscription have been
fulfilled, the completion of the Share Subscription took place on
25 June 2021, and 236,973,066 Subscription Shares were allotted
and issued to the Subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.26
per Subscription Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the Share Subscription Agreement. The aggregate nominal value
of 236,973,066 Subscription Shares was HK$23,697,306.60. The
market price of the Subscription Shares was HK$0.25 per share on
the date of the Share Subscription Agreement (i.e. 18 June 2021),
and the net issue price per Subscription Share (after deducting
all applicable costs and expenses in connection with the Share

Subscription) was approximately HK$0.26.
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The gross proceeds of the Share Subscription were approximately
HK$61.6 million, and the net proceeds of the Share Subscription
(after deducting all applicable costs and expenses in connection
with the Share Subscription) were approximately HK$61.6 million.
The intended and the actual use of the net proceeds of the Share
Subscription as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:
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As at 31 December 2023
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Group’s Media Business
ST A B I AL S Y R AT R
B
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remained unutilised as the result of the extension(s) granted by respective

creditor(s) of the Group during the reporting period.

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash cquivalents
amounted to approximately HK$112.4 million (2022:
approximately HK$124.1 million), denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States (“US”) dollars, Euro, Singapore dollars and

Renminbi.

The Group has financed its working capital primarily from its
bank deposits and cash and also cash generated from the operating
activities. To cope with the development of Financial Services
Business and to capture investment opportunities, the Group has
funded its investing activities and operating activities from issuing
promissory notes and the Share Subscription.

The Group has adopted a prudent approach in financial resources
management and closely monitored its liquidity position in order
to maintain a healthy cash flow position with adequate facilities
to meet the potential needs for our business expansion and
development in the future.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s indebtedness comprised
promissory notes and lease liabilities of approximately HK$103.2
million (2022: approximately HK$110.4 million). The Group’s
indebtedness was denominated in Hong Kong dollar. All the
indebtedness carried interests with fixed rates ranging from 2.8%
to 10.0% per annum. All of the indebtedness shall be repayable
within 1 to 2 years (2022:
representing the ratio of total indebtedness to the total share

1 to 3 years). The gearing ratio,

capital and reserves of the Group, was 176.0% as at 31 December
2023 (2022: 139.3%). The increase in the gearing ratio was mainly
due to the decrease in reserves of the Company by approximately
32.8% mainly resulting from the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$20.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, despite the decrease in indebtedness for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
stand-by banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$52.0 million (2022: approximately HK$86.9
million) and total assets of approximately HK$186.6 million (2022:
approximately HK$207.8 million).

As at 31 December 2023, bank deposits of the Company of
approximately HK$0.8 million (2022: approximately HK$0.8
million) were pledged mainly for the corporate credit cards issued

to the Group.

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars, Euro, Singapore
dollar and Renminbi. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Company recognised exchange losses, net of approximately
HK$2.8 million (2022: approximately HK$2.0 million). During the
year ended 31 December 2023, there was no material fluctuation in
the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. The Group
did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to
any financial instruments to hedge its financial position and foreign
currency exposure in 2023.

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2023 amounted to approximately HK$0.5 million
(2022: Nil). Capital commitments contracted for but not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements of the Group at 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately HK$64.6 million
(2022: approximately HK$41.2 million).
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The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has made investment of
HK$72.0 million (2022: HK$72.0 million) in the Investment
Fund as a limited partner, which represent approximately 71.0%
(2022: approximately 71.0%) of the total capital contribution of
the Investment Fund. As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of
Investment Fund amounted to approximately HK$23.9 million
(2022: approximately HK$29.5 million). During the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group recorded an unrealised loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$5.6 million (2022: approximately HK$36.8 million) from the
Investment Fund.

For details, please refer to section headed “Operational Review —
Other Investments”.

Details of the investment in the Investment Fund are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 February 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associated companies and
joint ventures by the Group.

The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 111 to 205
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Listing Rules, all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 26 full-time employees
(2022: 31 full-time employees). The Group offers a comprehensive
and competitive remuneration and benefits package to all of its
employees. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
incurred staff costs of approximatcly HK$22.8 million (2022:
approximately HK$23.5 million). For remuneration payable to key
management personnel, please refer to notes 10, 11 and 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. The remuneration of Directors
and senior management, who are also executive Directors, was
determined with reference to their background, qualifications,
experience, level of responsibilities undertook with the Company
and prevailing market conditions, in order to align with the
corporate objectives of the Company. The Group has adopted
provident fund schemes for its employees in Hong Kong as required
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 8 June 2018, under which the Company may grant
options to, among others, employees of the Group to subscribe
for shares of the Company (the “Shares”) for providing them with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
as a reward for their contribution and to encourage them to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for
the benefit of the Company and the Sharecholders as a whole. For
details, please refer to the sub-section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” in the directors’ report of this annual report.
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Mr. XU, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 21 November 2017. He is also a director of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. He has more than 15 years of
corporate executive management and investment experiences. From
June 2005 to June 2012, Mr. XU was a venture partner of New
Enterprise Associates (Beijing), Ltd., one of the group companies
of New Enterprise Associates, Inc. which is a venture capital firm.
He was primarily involved in designing and executing investment
strategies in the retail and healthcare industries. Mr. XU also
served as a director of AirNet Technology Inc. (formerly known
as AirMedia Group Inc.), a company listed on NASDAQ Stock
Market (“NASDAQ”), from January 2014 to December 2016. Mr.
XU founded Bison Capital Holding Company Limited, which is
an investment holding company specialised in investments in the
media and financial industries, and had been an executive director
from December 2013 to March 2022. In May 2010, Mr. XU was
nominated as a chief committee member of the Expert Committee
of the APEC E-Commerce Business Alliance. He is a director of
Bliss Chance Global Limited and Bison Capital Financial Holdings
Limited, which are the controlling shareholders (as defined in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange)
of the Company.

Mr. SUN, aged 54, was appointed as an executive director and the
chief executive officer of the Company on 24 December 2018, and
as the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”) on 1 September
2023. Mr. SUN is also (i) an executive director and responsible
officer of Target Capital Management Limited (“TCM”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and a licensed corporation under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) to carry out type
1 (dealing in securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and type
9 (asset management) regulated activities; (ii) a non-executive
director of Bison Corporate Finance Limited (“Bison Corporate
Finance”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and a
licensed corporation to carry out type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) regulated activities under the SFO and (iii) a director of a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Prior to joining TCM, Mr. SUN had worked at Huatai Financial
Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited as an executive director in
corporate coverage from March 2014 to September 2015 and BOCI
Securities Limited as a director from March 2011 to February 2014.
With experience for over 20 years in the financial industry, he has
extensive experience in various aspects such as corporate finance,
fixed income and bond issuing. Prior to stepping into the financial
industry, Mr. SUN had been working on environmental engineering,
overseas corporate financing, futures and project budgeting. Mr.
SUN obtained a bachelor of engineering from China University of
Mining and Technology in July 1990.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Mr. ZHU, aged 50, was appointed as an executive director and the
chief financial officer of the Company on 13 December 2017. He
is also a non-executive director and chief financial officer of Bison
Corporate Finance commencing from 16 December 2020 and the
chief financial officer of TCM and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He has more than 28 years of experience in
accounting, corporate finance and advisory services.

Dr. QI, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is the chairman
of the audit committee of the Company and a member of the
Company’s remuneration committee and nomination committee.
He is a professor of accounting and former associate dean of
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (‘CKGSB”). He began
teaching in CKGSB since 2002 and was the founding director of the
executive master of business association programme. His primary
research interests are in financial accounting and reporting as well
as profit manipulation by management of the listed companies.

Dr. QI received his degree of doctor of philosophy in business
administration from Michigan State University in 1996, master of
business administration degree from the University of Hawaii at
Manoa in 1992 and bachelor of science and arts degrees from Fudan
University, the PRC in 1985 and 1987 respectively.

Dr. QI is currently an independent director of Sohu.com Inc. (a
company listed on NASDAQ (Symbol: SOHU)) since 2005 and
Momo Inc. (a company listed on NASDAQ (Symbol: MOMO))
since 2014, and an independent non-executive director of),
SinoMedia Holding Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 623) since May 2008, Yunfeng Financial
Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 376) since February 2016 and Haidilao International
Holding Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code: 6862) since May 2018. Dr. QI was previously an independent
non-executive director of Jutal Offshore Oil Services Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 3303) from
July 2015 to April 2022.
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Mr. CHEN, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and
a member of audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company. He is currently a partner in PacGate Law Group,
a law firm in the PRC. Mr. CHEN obtained a bachelor degree in
biochemistry in the Peking University, the PRC in 1992, and he
obtained a degree of juris doctor in the University of lowa, the
United States of America in 1998.

Mr. CHEN is currently an independent director of Ambow
Education Holding Ltd. (a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (American depositary shares) (Symbol: AMBO)) since
March 2013.

Mr. FENG, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is the chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member of
audit committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
FENG received an executive master of business association degree
from Peking University, the PRC in 2009.

Mr. FENG currently is a director of Mega-Info Media Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code:
301102) since May 2022.

There is no other information of the Directors that is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since
the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2023.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Bison Finance Group Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2023.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and has its registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is situated
at 6th Floor, China Taiping Finance Centre, 18 King Wah Road,
North Point, Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of financial services with the licenses
to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities (collectively the “Financial
Services Business”) under the Securities and Futures Ordinance

(“SFO”).

The principal activities and other particulars of the Group are set
out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The analysis
of the principal activities of the operations of the Group during
the financial year are set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and description of the risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing and particulars of important events affecting
the Group have occurred during the year are set out in the Letter
from the Board on pages 2 to 4 and Operational Review on pages
5 to 15 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this
Directors’ Report.

The risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set
out on pages 59 to 63 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2023 taking into account the financial key performance
indicators is set out in Financial Highlights on page 16 and Financial
Review on pages 17 to 27 of this annual report.
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The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
carrying out various measures to ensure the fulfilment of its social
responsibilities towards the preservation of the environment
and natural resources. The Group carries out its business having
recognized the importance of building awareness of environmental
conservation and endeavor to minimise carbon footprints through
utilizing resources efficiently, employing green office initiatives and
promoting environmental awareness among employees and other
key stakeholders. The Group understands the global implications of
climate change and is committed to minimise the potential impact
on the environment by its operation.

The Group realizes the importance of environmental protection in
pursuing long-term sustainability. In this connection, the Group
has implemented various measures which include reducing wastage
of resources and implementing environmental practices to reduce
carbon footprints etc. with the aim of mitigating any potential
adverse impacts on the environment brought about by the Group’s
day-to-day operations. Employees are encouraged to conserve
resources and minimise waste.

For details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance
and an account of the relationships with the Group’s key
stakeholders are set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 68 to 101 of this annual report.

The Group constantly reminds employees of and emphasizes the
importance of safeguarding the security of personal data. When
collecting and processing such data, the Group complies with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (“PDPO”) and the guidelines
issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data.
The Group will not use or provide personal data to any person for
use in direct marketing unless the data subject’s consent is obtained
in writing. For the business operations of the Group which involves
regulated entities under the SFO, the Group has formulated internal
guidelines and engaged compliance officers to ensure compliance
with the SFO, Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Ordinance and all other applicable laws and regulations.

In relation to human resources, the Group is committed to
complying with the requirements of the PDPO, and ordinances
relating to disability, sex, family status and race discrimination, as
well as the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and ordinances relating to occupational safety of employees of
the Group, so as to safeguard the interests and well-being of its

employees.
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On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements
under the Companies Ordinance, the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and the SFO for, among other things, the
disclosure of information and corporate governance matters, and
the Group has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules.

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets of the Group.
With a view to retaining talents, the Group offers a comprehensive
and competitive remuneration and benefits package to all of its
employees. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
has organised certain internal training courses and coordinated with
the third-party consultants to provide external training courses to

our employees to support their career development.

The Group believes that timely feedbacks are crucial to increase
customer satisfaction and improve performance. Therefore, we
actively collect client feedback and if any complaints are received,
they will be handled by the designated department pursuant to the
established procedures, including acknowledgement to relevant
client of receipt of the complaint and that is under consideration,
to send letter to relevant client notifying complaint is still in
investigation if it cannot be resolved within 7 business days, to
use all efforts to resolve complaint within 28 days from its initial
reporting, to advise client of what further steps available under
existing regulatory system as a part of the final response. We strive
to build a long-term relationship with our clients which is vital to

our business.

Details of the Share Capital of the Company are set out in note
29(a) to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
movements during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of this annual report are as follows:

Mr. XU Peixin

Mr. SUN Lei (Chairman (appointed with effect from
1 September 2023) & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer)

Dr. QI Daqing
Mr. CHEN Yigong
Mr. FENG Zhonghua
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Dr. MA Weihua (Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 1 September 2023)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87 and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules,
Mr. SUN Lei and Mr. FENG Zhonghua will retire from office by
rotation at the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting
(“AGM”) and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

Profiles of the Directors of the Company are set out on pages 28 to
30 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 9 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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Interests in
underlying
shares under Total interests

equity in shares and % of total
Personal Corporate derivatives underlying issued
Name of Directors R interests interests (Note 1) shares shares*
A
THWHE B R i 22 B
JB o HE 2 B TG
MARER  AvHER (Wit1) okl e
XU Peixin (“Mr. XU B (T4RE4]) ~ 680,508,005 1,180,000 681,688,005 47.94%
(Note 2)
(Ktit2)
SUN Lei ¥ 11,340,000 - 4,000,000 15,340,000 1.08%
ZHU Dong K 6,500,000 - 4,000,000 10,500,000 0.74%
QI Daging VN 3,000,000 . 1,180,000 4,180,000 0.29%
CHEN Yigong B IR T . - 1,180,000 1,180,000 0.08%
FENG Zhonghua i v # - - 1,180,000 1,180,000 0.08%
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Notes:

1. These interests in underlying shares under equity derivatives represent the
share options of the Company granted by the Company on 27 March 2020.
Details of the share options are set out in the section headed “Share Option

Scheme” below.

2. All of these 680,508,005 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) arc held
by Bliss Chance Global Limited (“Bliss Chance”), all the ordinary shares
of which are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital Financial
Holdings Limited (“Bison Capital”). Bison Capital is in turn wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. XU. Mr. XU is deemed to be interested in Shares
held by Bliss Chance for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

3. On 26 August 2021, the Company was notified by Bliss Chance and Bison
Capital that they ccased to be associated corporations of the Company
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) on 25 June 2021.

* Calculation is based in the total number of Shares held and divided by the
total number of Shares issued as at 31 December 2023.

Name of Director

HEEY

Mr. XU et
Note:
1. All of these 680,508,005 Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged

in favour of Fruitful Worldwide Limited (“Fruitful Worldwide”).
Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China Huarong International
Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. All the ordinary shares of Bliss Chance are wholly
and beneficially owned by Bison Capital. Bison Capital is in turn wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. XU. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. XU is deemed
to be interested in the short positions in the Shares held by Bliss Chance.

* Calculation is based in the total number of Shares held and divided by the
total number of Shares issued as at 31 December 2023,

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved and adopted at the AGM held on 8 June
2018. The scheme mandate limit under the Share Option Scheme
has been refreshed to 118,486,533 share options of the Company
(the “Share Options”), representing approximately 10% of
the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of passing such
resolution at the AGM held on 16 June 2020. For details, please
refer to the circular and announcement of the Company dated 29

April 2020 and 16 June 2020, respectively.

Corporate interests
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The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company as a reward for their contribution
and to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the
Company and its sharecholders as a whole. The Share Option
Scheme will provide the Company with a flexible means of
either retaining, incentivizing, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to participants.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme include any
employees, directors (including independent non-executive
director), sharcholders, suppliers, customers, consultants,
business or joint venture partners, franchisees, contractors,
agents, advisers, lenders or financiers of the Group and
associates of any of the foregoing persons.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme was 118,486,533 Shares, representing
approximately 8.3% of the issued Shares as at 26 March 2024
(the date of this annual report).

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of Share Options granted to each participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in

issue.

The exercise period of any Share Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period must
not exceed ten years from the date of grant of the relevant

Share Options.

The Board has the authority to determine any minimum
period(s) for which a Share Option must be held before it can
be exercised. However, it is not a mandatory condition for
the participant(s) to hold the Share Options for a minimum

period before exercise of the Share Options granted.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the Share Options
must be made within 14 days from the date of offer with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from each participant.

The subscription price of Share Options shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the

date of grant.
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9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme on 8 June 2018.

For further details of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 30 April
2018.

Particulars of the outstanding Share Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and their movements during the year ended

31 December 2023 were as follows:

Exercise
price per
Grantees Date of grant Share  Exercise period
o34
i3 IN ERiNER fififE  ArEEm
1. Directors
#H
MA Weihua" 27 March 2020 HK$0.33  From 27 March 2020
(Resigned with effect to 26 March 2025
from I September 2023)
L “EFE 03t moE-ERFEZA LN
(RZFZ=4F =HZ+tH FCECHEZAZEAH
A —HRE)
Mr. XU 27 March 2020 HK$0.33  From 27 March 2020
to 26 March 2025
(3 “ERE o moF-EFE=J LA
=AZ+tH EIne Sk Sy ey
SUN Lei 27 March 2020 HK$0.33  From 27 March 2020
to 26 March 2025
#& “ECRAE o m-F-FF=A-+LH
=HZ+tH FoRTHEEAZAH
ZHU Dong 27 March 2020 HK$0.33  From 27 March 2020
to 26 March 2025
gﬂgffﬁ gzgﬂﬁ H +75H
QI Daqing 27 March 2020 HK$0.33  From 27 March 2020
to 26 March 2025
VLON CERCRE o3 moF-EFE=J LA
=AZ+tH EIne Sk Sy ey
CHEN Yigong 27 March 2020 HK$0.33  From 27 March 2020
to 26 March 2025
PR L “ERE o33t moE-ERFEZA LN
=HZ+tH FoRTHEEAZAH
FENG Zhonghua 27 March 2020 HK$0.33  From 27 March 2020
to 26 March 2025
U “ECERE o WZF-FE=A-4LH
“AZt++tH FCETHEZAZTAH
2. Employees of the Group 27 March 2020 HK$0.33  From 27 March 2020
to 26 March 2025
AEERE “ERE Wikosse m-F-EE=A- LA
=AZ+tH EIne Sty Sy
3. Consultants of the Group 27 March 2020 HK$0.33  From 27 March 2020
to 26 March 2025
5 o “FFE EHost mMoE-ERFEZA LN
=HZFtH FCRTHEZAZFAH
Total:
it

9. JEMMESTEE —F— NFENH/NHEH
H Eﬁﬁ.?ﬁr@ﬁqﬁxﬁﬁixﬂt
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Number of Share Options
Jik ¢ B 2 H
Balance as at Granted  Exercised Cancelled/ Balance as at

1 January during during Lapsed during 31 December

2023 the year the year the year 2023
REZBZ=4 R 2
~H—H TR A A RER +ZHA=+—H
it B i fifE REE R i 85 1
11,000,000 - - (11,000,000) -
1,180,000 - - - 1,180,000
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
1,180,000 - - - 1,180,000
1,180,000 - - - 1,180,000
1,180,000 - - - 1,180,000
18,000,000 - - (4,000,000 14,000,000
7,500,000 7,500,000
49,220,000 (15,000,000) 34,220,000

HAEmERARAA



Notes:

1. The closing price per Share on 26 March 2020, being the date immediately
before the date on which the Share Options were granted, was HK$0.31.

2. Share Options under the Share Option Scheme granted on 27 March 2020

have been vested immediately.

Dr. MA Weihua has resigned as the non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Company with effect from 1 September 2023. Accordingly,
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, all outstanding Share Options held
by Dr. MA Weihua lapsed and became non-exercisable on 1 September
2023.

There were no Share Options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

As at 31 December 2023, there were 34,220,000 outstanding
Share Options (2022: 49,220,000 Share Options) granted under
the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2023, the number
of Share Options available for grant under the scheme mandate is
84,266,533 (2022: 69,266,533).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no expense
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the Share Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme (2022: Nil).

Save as disclosed above, there were no outstanding Share Options
granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Company has rececived from cach of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is currently

in force and was in force throughout the year ended 31 December

2023.

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in notes 5, 6, 19, 20, 22 and
33 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
Such transactions were either (i) fully exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Rules 14A.76(1), 14A.89, 14A.90.
14A.95 and 14A.96 of the Listing Rules or (ii) did not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Company did not have any connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which were subject to the reporting
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed in the above section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, was subsisting during or at the

end of the year ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the ) - ——
persons (not being Directors and chief executives of the Company)
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required
to be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name

(1 78X

Bliss Chance

A

Bison Capital

AfREA

JIANG Feng Yun

% B E

Fruitful Worldwide

Fruitful Worldwide

China Huarong International
Holdings Limited

o I 5 B P A L

China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.

F 8] 3 Rl e A B O A BR 2

JONG Yat Kit

HEHA

WAN Hiu Yeung

T 1 b

SunChat Trading Limited

WMEE S ARAH

SU Lihong

BRREEAL

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong)
Financial Holdin§s Limited

WL I (B SR RA R A
Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd.
B 35 47 LS

China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd.
OB 0 T T A R
Cruiser Determined Limited

Cruiser Determined Limited

TAN Bin

L7

DENG Xianzi

B T

o LS T A 5 ) — B TR AL
SR = R RS
S 40 7 T ] A 4 ) S LT A 8 1~
JA 25 7 5[] 2% W 25 ] AT 7 i o o o
27 B B B o D A B
PR T e

AR S B RAA R
Tl 2 47 BN BLUSM A 1 A 28 ) 5 FLAE f]
ARG (9 0 Gt K 01 B ) 56 xv o)
9 % 0 1% T O o A ML Gl %5 J% 00 15
G 1) 45 Vs 552 1 343 0 280 20 A s i 5 M
52 MR L RE G %5 12 301 B )

Notes Capacity

it &b

1

Beneficial owner

JoE R TN

Interest of controlled corporation
2 ) ) BE 4

Interest of spouse

i {1 Y HE o

Person having a security interest in Shares
B o 4 (R 8 200 A L

Person having a security interest in Shares

R B A IR RS R 2 N
Person having a security interest in Shares
B 3 b 4 (8 A 20 A L
Interest of controlled corporation
Z LR

Interest of controlled corporation
2 1 B

Beneficial owner

HaEa A

Interest of controlled corporation
ZEL R S

Person having a security interest in Shares

i P A rh B R B HE A O N
Interest of controlled corporation
20 1 B

Interest of controlled corporation
24 ) ) R g

Beneficial owner

HEala A

Interest of controlled corporation
W ERE &

Interest of spouse

T {65 ) 1 i

5533610 ZE M A 1) 6 T T 0 B R N

Total Number of
Shares held

it 5 A I Ay 8
680,508,005

680,508,005
681,688,005
678,259,144

678,259,144

678,259,144
680,508,005
680,508,005
236,973,066
236,973,066

103,624,000

103,624,000
103,624,000
103,624,000
103,624,000

103,624,000

% of total
issued Shares*

i 2 HC 1T
JB B3 43 b

47.86%
47.86%
47.94%
47.70%

47.70%

47.70%
47.86%
47.86%
16.67%
16.67%

7.29%

7.29%
7.29%
7.29%
7.29%

7.29%
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Notes:

Bliss Chance owns 680,508,005 Shares.

As Bliss Chance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bison Capital, Bison
Capital is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. XU. Each of Bison
Capital and Mr. XU is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares held by Bliss Chance under the SFO.

JIANG Feng Yun is the spouse of Mr. XU. For the purpose of Part XV of
the SFO, she is deemed to be interested in 681,688,005 Shares which
represents the same interest of Mr. XU in the Shares, which comprise (i)
corporate interests in 680,508,005 Shares and (ii) interests in underlying
Shares under equity derivatives of 1,180,000 Shares which were the Share
Options granted by the Company to Mr. XU on 27 March 2020.

All these Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged in favour of
Fruitful Worldwide. As Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China
Huarong International Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned
by China Huarong Asset Management Co. Ltd., ecach of China Huarong
International Holdings Limited and China Huarong Assct Management Co.,
Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the security interest in all those Shares
held by Bliss Chance having been charged in favour of Fruitful Worldwide

for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

According to the relevant disclosure of interest notices, these Shares
represented approximately 57.24% of the total issued Shares as at the date
of the relevant event. However, the total number of issued Shares were
increased to 1,421,838,398 upon completion of allotment and issue of
new shares under the general mandate pursuant to the Share subscription
on 25 June 2021 (For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 18 June 2021 and 25 June 2021). Accordingly, these Shares
represented approximately 47.70% of the total 1,421,838,398 issued
Shares as at 31 December 2023.

On 8 October 2021, the Company was notified by Bliss Chance that WAN
Hiu Yeung and JONG Yat Kit of PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited were
appointed as joint and several receivers over 680,508,005 Shares.

SunChat Trading Limited owns 236,973,066 Shares. As SunChat Trading
Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by SU Lihong, she is deemed
to be interested in the same number of Shares held by SunChat Trading
Limited for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited (“Dongxing
Securities HK”) is interested in the security interest in 103,624,000
Shares.

As Dongxing Securities HK is wholly-owned by Dongxing Securities Co.,
Ltd. which is 52.74% held by China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd.,
Ltd. and China Orient Asset

Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the same interests of

accordingly, each of Dongxing Securities Co.,
Management Co.,
Dongxing Securities HK for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Cruiser Determined Limited owns 103,624,000 Shares. As Cruiser
Determined Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by TAN Bin,

accordingly, he is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares
held by Cruiser Determined Limited under the SFO.

DENG Xianzi is the spouse of TAN Bin. She is deemed to be interested in
103,624,000 Shares which represents the same interest of TAN Bin for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Calculation is based on the total number of Shares held and divided by the
total number of Shares issued as at 31 December 2023.
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Name Notes Capacity

(1.78 %2 Wit Sty

Total number of

Shares that are
% of total
issued Shares*

iz ak e # 1T
B B3 i 43 b

subject to short
position

W RRA W
JBe iy 48

Bliss Chance 1 Beneficial owner 680,508,005 47.86%
5B 1 E&#AA

Bison Capital 1 Interest of controlled corporation 680,508,005 47.86%
AREAR 1 XBHEENES

JIANG Feng Yun 2 Interest of spouse 680,508,005 47.86%
#BE ) TefEEL

Notes: B 5

1. All of these 680,508,005 Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged in 1. B B A 1 A2 E8680,508,005 K ] B HE 4 T

favour of Fruitful Worldwide. Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China
Huarong International Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned
by China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. All the ordinary shares of
Bliss Chance are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital, which in
turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. XU. Each of Mr. XU and Bison
Capital is deemed to be interested in the short position of Shares held by
Bliss Chance for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

2. JIANG Feng Yun is the spouse of Mr. XU. She is deemed to be interested in
the short position of the Shares held by Mr. XU for the purpose of Part XV
of the SFO.

* Calculated is based on the total number of Shares held and divided by the

total number of Shared issued as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, no other interests or short positions of the
persons in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporation were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange and were required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling
Sharcholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors and
their respective close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
were interested in any businesses that competed or were likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.
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The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively

during the financial year is as follows:

N
hREF Gt
SN
TR A 78 A T

The largest customer

Five largest customers in aggregate
The largest supplier

Five largest suppliers in aggregate

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the five largest customers of
the Group include four external asset management customers and a
fund managed by the Group, whilst the five largest suppliers are all
external asset management consultants. Whilst the amount of total
sales of the Group attributable to the five largest customers and
total purchases of the Group attributable to the five largest suppliers
remained stable, the increase in percentage in the Group’s total
sales to the five largest customers and the Groupys total purchase
attributable to the five largest suppliers was mainly due to the
decrease in revenue and purchase of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023. The Group recognises that it is important to
maintain good relationship with our suppliers so as to deliver high-
quality products and services to the customers. No Director who
held office as at 31 December 2023 nor any of his close associates;
nor any sharcholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had
any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws and the laws of Bermuda.

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
its Sharcholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, other than a contract
of service with any Director or any person engaged in the full-
time employment of the Company, the Company has not entered
into any contract by which any individual, firm or body corporate
undertakes the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company.
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME”
above, no equity-linked agreement has been entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 or subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2023.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 206 to 207
of this annual report.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
participates in employee pension schemes organised by the local
governments of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) under the
regulations of the PRC. All these retirement schemes are defined
contribution plans.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public

float under the Listing Rules.

Messrs. Ernst & Young (“EY”) has resigned as auditor of the
Company with effect from 22 July 2022. Following the resignation
of EY, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“BTHK”) has been
appointed as auditor of the Company with effect from 22 July
2022. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 22
July 2022 for details.

BTHK shall retire and offer themselves for re-appointment as
auditor of the Company at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for
the re-appointment of BTHK as auditor of the Company shall be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

ZHU Dong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Bison
Finance Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to endeavor in maintaining
high standards of corporate governance to achieve the purpose to
enhance corporate value and properly perform accountability of the

Group.

For striving the purpose, the Board regularly or promptly when
necessary reviews and monitors the corporate governance “CG”)
practices of the Group for ensuring their compliance with all
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix C1 (the “CG Code”) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Board
conducted a review of the CG policies and practices in accordance
with the CG Code and made necessary changes thereon.

The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied with
all code provisions of the CG Code as set out in Part 2 of Appendix
C1 to the Listing Rules applicable to the Group throughout the
year ended 31 December 2023, save for the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Details of the deviation
are set out in the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer” in this corporate governance report.

The Company is committed to developing a positive culture that is
built on its purpose and values, which serve as a guiding principle
for its operation and decision-making process. The Company
provides a supportive environment for employees across the Group
to excel and reach their full potential, and for the Group to achieve
sustained success and fulfil its duties as a responsible corporate
citizen at where its businesses operate. The Group strives to sustain
on reinforcing and enhancing its positive corporate culture in
compliance and integrity. The Company, among others, reviewed
the Anti-Corruption Policy, the Whistle-blowing Policy, Code of
Conduct, Sharcholders Communication Policy and policies relating
to environmental, social and governance policies, and conducted
relevant trainings to Directors and employees in 2023 to cultivate
positive attitudes in compliance and integrity for serving its
purpose to be the reliable partner of clients. All Directors keep on
acting with integrity, lead by example, and promote the Company’s
culture.
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The Directors are individually and collectively accountable to
the sharcholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for the
success and sustainable development of the Group. The Board
provides direction and approval in relation to matters concerning
the Group’s business strategies, policies and plans, whilst the day-
to-day business operations are delegated to the executive Directors.
The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging
its corporate accountability, every Director is required to make
decisions in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required
level of skills, care and diligence up to a standard in accordance
with the statutory requirements.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate for the Group’s business. As at 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board
comprised three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors, each category represents half members of the
Board. The executive Directors are also the senior management of
the Group (the “Senior Management”). They bring to the Board
with a wide range of professional experience in the management,
finance and legal industries, which provide strong support towards
the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the
Board.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, the number of
independent non-executive Directors on the Board meets the one-
third requirement under the Listing Rules. Dr. QI Dagqing, an
independent non-executive Director, who possesses appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise, acted as the chairman of audit committee of
the Company.

The following changes to the Board composition have taken place
since the last corporate governance report:

(i) Dr. MA Weihua (“Dr. MA”) resigned as non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Company (“Chairman”)
with effect from 1 September 2023 due to his intention to
concentrate on his other personal commitments; and

(ii) Mr. SUN Lei (“Mr. SUN”), the executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company (“Chief Executive
Officer”), was appointed as the Chairman with effect from 1
September 2023 to fill the casual vacancy arisen following the
resignation Dr. MA (“Mr. SUN’s Appointment”).
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The Board composition of the Company as at 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this Annual Report is set out below:

HHRE

Directors/Committees

Independent Non-Executive Directors B frEH
QI Daqing ViON
CHEN Yigong BRR T

i 3

HITEF
fi i fik

FENG Zhonghua

Executive Directors
XU Peixin
SUN Lei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer) REN(EHHEE)

Notes:
1. C is chairman of the relevant board committees of the Company
2. M is member of the relevant board committees of the Company

Biographical details of all the Directors are set out in the “Profiles
of Directors” section in this Annual Report. An updated list of
Directors identifying their roles and functions is maintained on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Company was confirmed by each Director that each has no
relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships) among the members of the Board and the
Senior Management.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
cach independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

The Chairman is mainly responsible for effective running of the
Board meetings, including setting the agenda for ecach Board
meeting, with the support of the executive Directors and the
company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”), to
ensure the establishment of good corporate governance practice
and procedures and taken appropriate steps to promote effective
communication and ongoing engagement with Sharcholders and
other stakeholders as outlined in other part of this Annual Report,
while the Senior Management is responsible for the day-to-day
operation of the Group under the leadership of the Chairman, and
putting in place mechanisms for ensuring that the desired culture of
the Company is understood and shared at all levels of the Group.
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Under the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

However, upon Mr. SUN’s Appointment, Mr. SUN serves as both
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer which deviates from
the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board is of the
view that Mr. SUN’s Appointment facilities the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and enhances efficiency of its operation,
which the Board considers to be beneficial to the Company and
its Shareholders as a whole. In addition, the Board currently
comprises three executive Directors (including Mr. SUN) and three
independent non-executive Directors, each of which represents half
members of the Board. The Board is therefore structured to ensure
the balance of power and authority to provide sufficient checks and
balances for good corporate governance and to protect the interests
of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

Each of the Directors (including non-executive Directors) has
entered into service agreement or letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years. Such term is subject to
the retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) in accordance with the bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) as follows:

1. each Director who has been longest in office since his last re-
election or appointment shall retire from office by rotation at
least once every three years; and

2. any Director appointed by the Board, (i) to fill the causal
vacancy on the Board, or (ii) as an addition to the Board, shall
hold office until the first AGM following his appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election thereat.

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy since August
2013 which was updated in 2019 and 2022 (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with an aim to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board that fits its own business model and specific
needs in order to enhance the quality of its performance.
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In designing the composition of the Board, the Board shall consider
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
ethnicity, cultural and educational background, skill and experience,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity
within the Board. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board
without focusing on only one single diversity aspect.

The Board with the assistance of nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) shall review the
Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure that it remains
appropriate and effective. During the year, the contents of Board
Diversity Policy have been reviewed by the Board, details of the
latest revised Board Diversity Policy are available on the Company’s
website (https://bison.com.hk/corporate-governance/board-
diversity-policy-2/), in which it sets to appoint at least one female
Director by 31 December 2024 for achieving gender diversity
at Board level. During the year ended 31 December 2023 and
up to the date of this Report, the Company is still in process of
identifying potential candidates for the appointment of female
Director and strives to achieve it on or before 31 December 2024.

The Board with the assistance of the Nomination Committee will
review the Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis to ensure its
continued effectiveness.

The Company recognises the importance of diversity in workforce
throughout the Group as a matter of corporate governance. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, the annual review on the
Group’s human resources policy on Diversity and Inclusion Policy
for Senior Management and Staff has been conducted by the Board
to ensure the policy remains up-to-date, appropriate and effective.
In particular, the policy requires the Group to provide its employees
a working environment free of harassment or discrimination and
identify suitable career development and training programs for its
employees to promote diversity among its employees which shall
prepare them for senior management and members of the board
of directors of the Company. The Board shall review and revise the
policy, where applicable or necessary, annually.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out below. It may delegate the responsibilities to one
or more Board committees, which shall comply with the relevant
terms of reference with regard to their duties.

i. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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iii.

vi.

vii.

To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the Senior
Management;

To review and monitor the internal control system and risk
management system of the Group;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual, if any, applicable to the directors and
employees of the Group;

To review the Company’s compliance with the applicable CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;
and

To provide insights on the Group’s culture and values.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has:

@

reviewed, monitored and revised the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices to ensure their
appropriateness to the Group and compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements, including:

(a) to continue its existing practice by allowing
independent views and input, and review the
implementation and effectiveness of such practice
from time to time with the recommendation by
the nomination committee of the Company, when

appropriate, by:

(1)  holding regular meetings of the Board and other
Board committees to encourage participation
by all members of the Board and/or committee
members to deliver their independent views and

inputs during such meetings;

(2) allowing independent non-executive Directors
freely communicate their own views to the
chairman of the Board during designated meetings

without the presence of other Directors; and

(3) having timely communication with the Directors
via various communication channels such as

teleconference and emails etc.

iii.

vi.

vii.
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(b)  to allow the nomination committee of the Company
to establish and make recommendation to the Board
on, where appropriate, mechanism(s) to ensure
independent view and input are available to the Board
and to review the implementation and effectiveness of
such mechanism(s) on an annual basis.

(ii) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and Senior
Management;

(iii) reviewed the compliance of the Company with the CG Code;
and

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control system of the Group.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in

respect of legal action against the Directors and its officers.

All Directors are provided with updates on the Group’s major
business activities and key financial information on a monthly basis.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s
financial statements for each financial year or period that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flows position for that year or period. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Directors have:

. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently with appropriate accounting standards;

. made judgments and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable; and
. prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the Group’s financial statements. This responsibility extends to
annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other financial disclosures, as well as reports to regulators and
information required to be disclosed in a timely manner pursuant to
the relevant rules and regulations. The responsibility of the external
auditor for the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 103 to 110 of this Annual
Report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board held four
meetings to review and approve the overall strategies and policies
of the Group, interim and annual results and the significant issues
and transactions and matters regarding operations of the Group.
The Chairman has held a meeting with independent non-executive

Directors without the presence of other Directors during the year

ended 31 December 2023.

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the
Board, the audit, remuneration and nomination committees of the
Company, AGM for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out

below:
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L E T V4 Tivs

Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination
Committee Committee Committee 2023 AGM
TROERE
HFRERE FHMZRE REZEE BRAHEERE
na AR v AER 0 AER 1/1
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Board
Name of Directors EERA BHE
Chairman and Non-Executive Director ~ LK # HiEF
MA Weihua (Resigned with effect from BHE (R -8 0/2
[ September 2023) JUR—HBHE)
Executive Directors HIEF
XU Peixin TR 4/4
SUN Lei (Chairman*) (* Appointed with B (F/5+) 4/4
effect from 1 September 2023) (g = F =
WA —HEZFF)
ZHU Dong K& 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BLHAEF
QI Daging LN 4/4
CHEN Yigong BIRT 4/4
FENG Zhonghua G 4/4
Note:
1. Dr. QI Daqing was unable to attend the 2023 AGM due to other
commitment.

Each newly appointed director, if any, is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules

and regulations.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, Directors are provided
with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in sufficient details to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. In order to allow the Directors to understand
the latest development of regulatory and compliance issues, they
are also provided with market news and regulatory updates.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, a summary of their records
of continuous development training is as below:
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Attending webinars/
reading materials and
updates relevant to
corporate governance

HE MG,
PIEARAEERN
Name of Directors HHEA B B 5 W & B
Chairman and Non-Executive Director FERIFBAITEF
MA Weihua (Resigned with cffect from R (- FE = J
1 September 2023) JLH — H BEE)
Executive Directors H1fT#EF
XU Peixin R R J
SUN Lei (Chairman, appointed with B&E (=4 J
effect from 1 September 2023) JLH—H¥#EZAT)
ZHU Dong KA J
Independent Non-Executive Directors HorIEHfTrEF
QI Daqing 7K BE {
CHEN Yigong BiIR T J
FENG Zhonghua i J

Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan (“Mr. CHAN”), who possesses the requisite
qualification and experience of a company secretary as required
under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, has been appointed as the
Company Secretary and the authorised representative of the
Company, with effect from 1 August 2022 for accepting service of
process or notice in Hong Kong on its behalf under the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. CHAN is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) and an associate member of the Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute. Mr. CHAN has over 16 years of experience in

auditing, accounting, financial management, corporate governance
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and regulatory compliance. Under code provision C.6.1 of the
CG Code, the company secretary should be an employee of the
Company and have the day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. In view of Mr. CHAN is not an employee of the Company,
Mr. ZHU Dong, an executive Director and a Chief Financial Officer
of the Company, has been assigned as the main contact person of
the Company for Mr. CHAN so as to ensure Mr. CHAN can obtain
and access the information of the Group’s major affairs.

For the year ended as at 31 December 2023, Mr. CHAN took over
15 hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

The Company has established three Board committees, including
audit, remuneration and nomination committees. The Board has
delegated the authorities and responsibilities to the relevant Board
committees and they shall comply with their terms of reference in
accordance with the CG Code and the Listing Rules. All members

of the Board committees are independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. It
comprises three independent non-executive Directors and is
chaired by Dr. QI Daging with two members who are Mr. CHEN
Yigong and Mr. FENG Zhonghua.

The principal duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are

set out below:

i. to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and to
approve the remuneration and the terms of engagement of
the external auditors, and any questions of its resignation or

dismissal;

ii. to review and monitor the independence of the external
auditor and its objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with the applicable standards. The Audit
Committee shall discuss with the external auditor the nature
and scope of the audit and reporting obligation before the

commencement of audit;

iii. to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit services;
PPy ;

iv. to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual/interim reports and accounts and to review

significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

V. to review the Company]s financial controls, risk management

and internal control systems;
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vi.

vii.

viii.

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems that include the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting functions;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these

findings;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices
of the Group;

to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control

and management’s response; and

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the

issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, two meetings of the

Audit Committee were held and a summary of works is set out

below:

reviewed the Directors’ Report, Independent Auditor’s
Report and Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and the 2022 Annual Report and

made a recommendation to the Board for approval;

reviewed the Company’s interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2023 and the 2023 Interim Report

and made a recommendation to the Board for approval;

reviewed the Company’s accounting policies and its
compliance with the prevailing accounting standards of Hong

Kong and the results of the external audits;

reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of risk management
system, internal control system and internal audit functions,
taking into account the 2022 Enterprise Risk Assessment
Report, 2022 Internal Control Review Report and 2022
Control Remediation Follow-up Report as issued by an
independent professional firm which performed internal
audit function (the “Internal Auditor”) to assist the Senior
Management to review the risk management and internal
control system, and the letter of confirmation on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems

issued by the Senior Management;
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. developed policy on engaging an external auditor to supply
non-audit services;

. reviewed and monitored the compliance of the Group with
all applicable laws, regulations, standards and best practice
guidelines; and

. made a recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment
of the external auditor of the Company (the “External
Auditor”) and approved the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the External Auditor.

The Audit Committee also met in separate private sessions with the
External Auditor twice during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the fee payable to Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“BTHK”), being the External Auditor,
as any entity under common control, ownership or management
with the external auditor or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party having knowledge of all relevant information
would reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally, in relation to audit and non-audit services is set out
below together with the relevant comparative fee paid in 2022:
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reviews of the Group’s interim financial reports and the
performance of certain agreed-upon procedures.

An independence confirmation has been obtained from BTHK
confirming that BTHK is independent of the Group in accordance
with the independence requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants for the year ended 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this Annual Report.

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established on 23 March
2004. It comprises three independent non-executive Directors and
is chaired by Mr. FENG Zhonghua with two members who are Dr.
QI Daging and Mr. CHEN Yigong.
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The principal duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are set out below:

i. to consult the Chairman and/or chief executive about their

remuneration proposals for other executive directors;

ii.  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure of remuneration of all Directors and
Senior Management and establish a formal and transparent
procedures to determine the remuneration policy;

iii. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

iv.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and Senior
Management;

v. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

vi. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions

elsewhere in the Group;

vii. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and Senior Management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with

contractual terms and are otherwise fair and not excessive;

viii. to review and approve the compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct
to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and

are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

ix.  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved

in deciding his own remuneration;

X. to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

xi. to ensure the Company shall disclose the directors’
remuneration policy, details of any remunecration payable
to members of Senior Management by band and other
remuneration related matters in the Company’s annual

reports.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will
review the proposals made by the Senior Management on the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the Senior
Management, and make recommendations to the Board. The Board
will have final authority to approve the recommendations made by

the Remuneration Committee.

Bison Finance Group Limited

i 2 B 00 £ SO ARSI

iii.

vi.

vii.

viii.

xi.

S0 HC A 04T 5 % M et e ) R B
BAT AR

ey o8 o N AT S SN S R /AR
P ISR % SR - Kk A7 AE R TR i W
JEE 9 A& P o T R B ESR  1) 3E e e

g
[H] e ¥ =5 & T 5T 4 2 7 81 S H A T AR R
e A v B ) 7 M 508

16 B S o e | AT B M e A
N B 7 2

A0 IR AT S B T 1) B 4R

% 158 [] 0N 7] S B SR - JE A R R
] K B 75 DA S A 4 [ g Al B A7 A 4
(Lo

Ao et B At 1) AT S e A B
i SR B b TR S B2 A T 2B S A R
B DAREOR 5% 55 BB G A ek — B0 &
R BEHL A £k — B0 BE AN A S
M REGHZ

Al B v R HE S AT 2 o T O R
G A B S BT R 4 B A PR DL £
%S R YL S R B0 A R RE LG
At — B0 A B i 18 R H o B

i PR AT: fo7 22 = S CH AT B B8 AR 75 22 B
jifE S A B ) T 5

B0 Kot e (R BN 88 b
Jov 2t A T He 3 A s T

DR A 2 ) A HL AR i A 4 5 S N
BTSRRI M ARE AR
PO 385 PO 175 L JEL At 3 M A B 9 S

Hrii 2= B & P SR A 9B Ty - AR B R s R A
N BB A H AT # K A BN B 37
B e TR HnERgREER-EFE
S A1 O BT T 2 B B T R B A R B AR
SEME o



During the year ended 31 December 2023, one meeting of the

Remuneration Committee was held and a summary of works is set

out below:

reviewed the policy for remuneration of executive Directors;

reviewed and approved the proposals, regarding (i)
remuneration packages of executive Directors who are also
the Senior Management with reference to their background,
qualifications, experience, prevailing market conditions and
level of existing and/or additional responsibilities undertook
with the Company under existing and/or additional
appointment; and (ii) directors’ fee of the Board members,
for recommendation to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee was established on 8 March 2006. It
comprises with three independent non-executive Directors and is
chaired by Mr. CHEN Yigong, with two members who are Dr. QI
Dagqing and Mr. FENG Zhonghua.

The principal duties and responsibilities of the Nomination

Committee are set out below:

iii.

to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate

strategy;

to review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis and make
recommendations on any proposed changes of the Board
Diversity Policy and its implementation to the Board that may
be required;

to establish and make recommendation to the Board on,
where appropriate, mechanism(s) to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and to review the
implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism(s) on an

annual basis;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the sclection of individuals nominated for directorships.
In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the criteria that
include but not limited to gender, age, cultural, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service as set forth in the Board
Diversity Policy, and whether such candidate contributes to
diversity to the Board and can bring perspectives, skills and
experience with independent views and inputs to the Board
that would facilitate or assist the development of the existing
or future business at the operating scale of the Group, and
whether such candidate would be able to devote sufficient
time to Board;
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V. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

vi.  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief

executive.

The nomination procedure and the process and criteria adopted by
the Nomination Committee to select and recommend candidates
for directorship during the year are in point iv above.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held and a summary of works is set out
below:

. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and noted compliance of various measurable objectives
set out in the Board Diversity Policy except the single gender
of the Board;

. nominated Mr. SUN’s Appointment to fill the casual vacancy

arisen following the resignation of Dr. MA;

. collaborated with the Board on identifying potential
candidates for achieving the goal set for appointing at least
one female Director on or before 31 December 2024 for

complying with the relevant CG Code;

. reviewed and discussed regarding analysis of gender ratio in
the workforce of the Group for year ended 31 December
2022 and considered the Group’s workforce gender ratio
composed of approximately 58% of male and 42% of female
that met the measurable objective of even distribution on
workforce diversity set by the Group, which was based on the
approximate gender ratio of the Group’s workforce in 2021,

which was 60% of male and 40% of female;

. reviewed and discussed the proposal regarding the retirement
and re-appointment of the Directors by rotation at 2024 AGM
and the letters of consent for re-election received from the
retiring Directors for recommendation to the Board approval;

and

. reviewed and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors for the year ended 31 December 2023
and considered that all independent non-executive Directors
were independent and recommended the assessment to the

Board for review.
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The Company has formulated risk management and internal
control systems to provide standard guidelines for identification,
assessment, management, monitoring and reporting of all materials
risks of the Company, which shall be reported to the Senior

Management, the Audit Committee and the Board when necessary.

The Company has established appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure a comprehensive, accurate and timely record
of accounting and management information. It also conducts a
regular review on them to ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and

applicable laws and regulations.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for regulating and
maintaining sound and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and review their efficiency through
the Audit Committee with the assistance of the Senior Management
and the Internal Auditor, and the extent of the risks it is willing
to take. Such systems aim to manage, rather than eliminate, risk
arising from the failure in achieving the business objectives, and
they can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against

material misstatement or loss.

The Group’s risk management framework is based on a “Three
Lines of Defence” model with a systematic approach and clearly
defined roles and responsibilities of relevant parties:

1st Line of Defence

Ui

Risk ownership Risk Owners
Ja Bt B .

and evaluating the adequacy of the control;

. designing risk responses (i.e. actions to improve or optimise .
controls or mitigate risks identified during the risk assessment
process) for risks without adequate control to mitigate risks to

the target tolerance level;

identifying existing controls relating to the risks in their areas
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. implementing the risk responses for which they are responsible BT B A SR P R K
for; and
. reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of risk responses for ¢ R AR T B 2K 3 JL B M
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2nd Line of Defence

5B I8 B 4

Risk management

Jil B A B

Risk reporting

Jl B E

Risk oversight

Jo B B 2%

3rd Line of Defence
B

Independent
assurance

L WATT

Risk Management Task Force

. providing support to the senior management during the
process of design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and ensuring that it is
consistently applied across the Group;

. maintaining and updating the risk register;

. providing the risk owners with the methodology for conducting
the risk and control monitoring activities, providing direction

and training on how to complete the risk response plans and

other risk reports; and

. overseeing activities performed by risk owners, obtaining and

reviewing work prepared by the risk owners.

Senior Management

. monitoring risk management process and developing relevant

responses to risks;

. certifying that they operate an effective system of risk
management and have undertaken an exercise to identify and
assess significant risks faced by the Group;

. reporting to the Audit Committee on the progress and status of

the risk management process; and

. reviewing the risk register and reporting the effectiveness of

risk management systems to the Audit Committee and the Board

annually.

Audit Committee

. overseeing the Group’s overall risk management framework and

to advise the Board on the Group's risk-related matters;
. approving the Group's risk policies and risk tolerances;

. reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk tolerances and

policies; and

. reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk control/mitigation tools including the enterprise risk
management programme, the risk management systems, the

internal audit function relating to risk management and the

Group’s contingency plans annually.

Internal Audit Function

. outsourced to the Internal Auditor;

. carrying out the audit plan, assessing and analysing if the
controls stated in the risk register is sufficient and effective; and

. supporting the Board through the Audit Committee in reviewing
the effectiveness and efficiency of the Group’s risk management

systcm.
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The 5-Step risk management process is the defined set of activities

T Ja B

PR TP 7 1A A S T 1R HE AT A A0

that delivers effective risk management within the Group: Fﬁ%li F — 2 Z1] B e 35 )
Risk
Management
04 Process 02
Risk Responses EL Fﬁ @*}:’%‘ Risk Assessment

JEN 5 WO 3B 45

Steps
5

Step 1 - Risk Identification

S0P — B Bk

Step 2 — Risk Assessment
and Prioritization

22 — BB £ B B 5
KM Fr

Step 3 — Risk Owner
Appointment

B3P -ZRIERBAEA

Step 4 — Risk Responses
425 — A Bt JE B 45

Step 5 — Upward Reporting
and Monitoring

s — 1 b B I R A

Actions to be taken

Risks identified should include all risks whether or not they are under
the direct control of the business. They can be identified from a number
of sources including a review of the strategic plans to identify new risks
and existing and standard risk areas. Risks to be identified includes
external risks, strategic risks and preventable risks.

To prioritize the risks identified in Step 1 in a logical manner based on
the impact and likelihood of the occurrence of the identified risks.

Risk owners will be appointed to all identified risks. The risk owners
are responsible for ensuring that an analysis over the causes and
consequences of the risk is conducted and an appropriate risk response
is in place to manage the main causes and consequences.

Risk owners design the cost-effective and efficient risk response plans
based on the Group’s risks appetite and nature of each risk category
which can enable the Group to prevent, adapt and anticipate risks that
would impact the business strategy.

Risk owners shall report timely the identified risks and relevant risk
responses to the Senior Management, the Audit Committee and the
Board, if necessary.
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VB REAl Be
S BRI )y

B PR IR E 17 )

P sk 3 9 e e 95 B A g TS
i 2 ) 2 7 B A A R, < %
5 A P08 2 A A Tk R > L A A
SR T 30 oLl R 9 JE e A BA
Rt 9 e By L o 5 A 9 L
AT A LB ~ P B T 7 f

AR kol e 9 5 88 % o Y
etk > L& SR Jy S — B et il
B B A A 8 U B I -

FBTA C ol R % (L B RN -
Ja B 4 TN LR AR TR 0 T R
JRIR BAg R AT oA > B R
Jo B e S8 AT I R AR R

Ja B 1 T AR A 4 ) L B f
e R N
é&%ﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁﬂﬁ* fEiA L

AE A0 L ~ M T T RS
ﬁ%%ﬂ&°

Ja e £ BTN S B o R R A
FEREBG LERG RS C RN
Ja e A B b A 0 (0
%) o

HREemEMARLA



The Company has conducted an enterprise risk management
(“ERM”) assessment during the year ended 31 December 2023
through the Internal Auditor, based on the Group’s risk management

framework to assess the risks relevant to the business of the Group.

The 2022 Enterprise Risk Assessment Report, 2022 Internal
Control Review Report and 2022 Control Remediations Follow-
up Report were issued by the Internal Auditors, to the Board (i)
addressing the enterprise risk assessment results; and (ii) current
status of action plans of remediation addressing the findings and

was reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board and the
Audit Committee continued to outsource the review of the internal
control system to the Internal Auditor in considering the structure,
complexity and size of the Group. The Board has delegated to Senior
Management with the authority to the design, implementation and
monitoring of the internal control system as well as the review of
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls procedures.
The Board shall review the need for establishing an internal audit
function within the Group annually.

The expectations of the Company regarding duty and integrity
are clearly stated in the Company’s Code of Conduct (as defined
below) and staff handbook, as well as the policies and procedures
manuals which set out the rules and policies, for the Directors
and employees of the Group to follow. These cover all aspects of
administrative and operational activities, including relationships
with customers, suppliers, competitors and fellow staff. The
internal control system covers every activity and transaction of the
Group. The system is based on clear stewardship responsibilities,
authorities and accountability. Our employees are an important
part of our internal control system and the Group expects them
to contribute to that system. In addition to setting our guidelines,
principles and values, the Group recognises that an environment
where employees feel free to report problems to the management
is also necessary to make our internal control system successful.

The Internal Auditor has issued Internal Control Review Report
to the Board (i) to address identification of internal control
deficiencies and weaknesses and propose recommendations for
remediation within the timeframe; (ii) to discuss the findings and
control deficiencies with the Senior Management or the responsible
staff member, who is responsible to rectify the deficiencies within
the responsible period; and (iii) to perform a review of the follow-
up actions to ensure the implementation of the action plan.

Bison Finance Group Limited

BE F - ="HF+_HA=Z1+—HIFE AR
F) 925 8 A 7 AR 5 A 4 13 A L B A SELAE B
AT A 2E A B (T A 3 LB 48 BE ) 5T A
DA A B A 45 [ SE 55 A0 B Y SRR o

MFEFRIC g h — %~ —FEREER
FPAR R~ A T AR R L A A R e
T T A B PR RO it R A R DA FE 4R
SR B Ak A R 5 B i ST 3T BT HE BB B A
FrEYEHE Y E AR A B R C AR R
B &R -

BEFZ =4+ -HA=+—HILFEE ZE
B AR 42 [ 0 R0~ HE AR RE R OB B e
BB TEEGTT NN EERAN L
SRR R ERGE SR EHEAE A
Bk AT H LRSS RS U K
MBI EE N AR EERT &g RS
AR R A T A AL B 5% 5T A HR A A R o

EYANSIE SN S & R IUR sy /AN DE 2 S
MR (EFE R E 30) & B T i L& 5 4
Lo BUR B BOR KRR 7 1l rh i R 5 W > DL EE
5 N A G BAR B ARAE o 3% 55 1 9100 35 4% 7 T Y
T BTG B) > G5 B S - (e 5T
BT KB T BAR o Ao B 45 4% 550 10 25 A 4R ]
FIAEE) S 2S5y o iZ AR AR LA R A E 1A B
TAE ~ HE 7 K ) 3 20 R o FRAM B 4R B 2 TA A
S 2R A 0 A BT 0+ T A R (o R 4 S
o T % AR AR L ERK o BR AT B AR 51 R R
EBLON > AEEEY] > m g B0 —HEE A h
e 5 1L I S o) L 1% BR 5 - TS R R A 0 4%
A KA B 0 B R 3R

VA9 il L 1) 8 < 5 1 R A B AR AL A > L
(i)F B ] A Ay S B A e B B v 5 2 R - IR
IR ] 2 P9 365 A R B o A 5 o BB B R A
1 ] A IE B B 0 AR BN B B BN B R
i 5% T 0 ) R B PR B 5 R G AT AR AR
AT > IRECR AT AT By Fl )



The Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
through the Audit Committee, Senior Management, and Internal
Auditor. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has reviewed and/or revised, where appropriate, policies and
procedures, including (i) Code of Conduct, (i) Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors and Code for Securities Transactions
by Relevant Employees, (iii) Reporting Policy on Connected/
Continuing Connected Transactions and Notifiable Transactions,
(iv) Whistleblowing Policy, (v) Anti-Corruption Policy, (vi)
Board Diversity Policy, (vii) Diversity and Inclusion Policy for
Senior Management and Staff, (viii) Sharcholders Communication
Policy, (ix) Terms of Reference of Audit Committee, (x) Terms of
Reference of Remuneration Committee, (xi) Terms of Reference of
Nomination Committee, (xii) policies relating to ESG and all these
policies are applicable to the members of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, despite the Group
considered that there are no deficiency in its internal control
procedures and policies having considered the circumstances
leading to the Audit Qualification (as illustrated under the section
headed “Other Investments” in this annual report), with the view
to prevent similar incidents from occurring in the future, the
Company has adopted various enhanced internal control measures
in making and/or monitoring any new investment of the Company.
For further details of the enhanced internal measures, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 21 September 2023.

The Board has received a letter of confirmation from the
management on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and is satisfied that such systems were
still effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2023.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the Shareholders
were identified.

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules. In response to specific enquiries made by
the Company to all Directors and they confirmed that they have
complied with the Securities Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2023.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group
has been implementing the proper internal control procedures
including written pre-clearance from the designated director prior
to any dealing in the Company’s securities by the Director in
accordance with the Security Code, the Directors and the relevant
employees being subject to the blackout period prior to the release
of the Company’s financial results, identification of project by code
name and dissemination of information to stated purpose and on
a need-to-know basis to guard against the possible mishandling of
inside information which may constitute inside dealing or breach of
any other statutory obligations.
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The Company considers effective communication with Sharcholders
is essential to enable them to have a clear assessment of the Group’s
performance as well as accountability of the Board. Sharcholders
and investment community may, at any time, direct enquiries in

respect of the Company to the Board by sending to:

Address: 6th Floor, China Taiping Finance Centre, 18 King
Wah Road, North Point, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2165 3000

Email: cosec(@bison.com.hk

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties on a timely basis. The
Company maintains a corporate website (www.bison.com.hk)
where important corporate information and other relevant
financial and non-financial information such as annual reports and
interim reports, notices and announcements, circulars and other
information are available for review by Sharcholders and other
stakeholders.

The Company’s AGM and special general meeting (“SGM”) provide
a useful platform for direct communication between the Board
and Sharcholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue at the general meeting of the Company
(“General Meeting”).

In accordance with the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws, the Company
would arrange for the notice to Shareholders to be sent in the case
of AGMs not less than 21 clear days before the date of the meeting
and to be sent not less than 14 clear days before the date of other
General Meetings.

In accordance with the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws, all
Shareholders have 21 clear days’ notice of the AGM and 14 clear
days’ notice of all other General Meetings at which the Directors
and Board committee chairmen or members are available to
answer their questions. A representative (usually the engagement
partner) of the External Auditor also attends the AGM and will
take questions from Shareholders relating to their audit of the

Company’s financial statements.
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The 2023 AGM was held on 16 June 2023, the poll results of the
2023 AGM were published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange on the same day.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors (except
Dr. QI Daqing) and the External Auditors attended the 2023 AGM
to understand the views of the Sharcholders and answered enquiries
therein.

The Board is of the view that the implementation and effectiveness
of the Sharcholders’ Communication Policy are affirmed and
reflected by the active participation of Directors and Shareholders
to the Company’s AGM and corporate events.

Resolutions put to vote at the General Meetings (other than on
procedural and administrative matters) are taken by poll. The
results of any voting by poll are announced and published as soon
as possible, but in any event no later than 30 minutes before the
earlier of the commencement of the morning trading session or any
pre-opening session on the business day following the meeting, on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

A summary of certain rights of the Sharcholders as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure requirement under
Paragraph K of the CG Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules is set out below:

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Sharcholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at General Meetings shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to
require a SGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business or resolution specified in such requisition. The request
must be in written form with the purpose of the meeting stated
therein, duly signed by the Shareholders concerned and deposited
at the registered office of the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the confirmation by the
Company’s share registrars that the request is valid, the Company
Secretary will arrange to convene a SGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
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Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of those Sharcholders having the right to vote at the General
Meeting may submit a written request to move a resolution at the
General Meetings. The procedures for putting forward proposals at

General Meetings is available on the website of the Company.

Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through (852) 2165 3000 or e-mail at
cosec@bison.com.hk or directly by questions at AGM or a SGM.
Questions on the procedure for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or a SGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary through the same means.

Subject to the laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company,
the Board may from time to time declare dividends as appear to the
Board to be justified by the profits of the Company in any currency
and amount to be paid to the Sharcholders. Any dividend for a
financial year shall be subject to Sharcholders’ approval.

The Board may from time to time pay to the Sharcholders interim
dividends or special dividends as appear to the Board to be justified

by the profits of the Company.

In addition to cash, dividends may be satisfied wholly or in part by
the distribution of specific assets of any kind and in particular of
paid-up shares credited as fully paid up, debentures or warrants to
subscribe securities of the Company or any other company, or in
any one or more of such ways, with or without offering any rights
to the Shareholders to elect to receive such dividend in cash. In
case of dividends to be satisfied wholly or in part in the form of
an allotment of shares credited as fully paid up, the Shareholders
entitled thereto will be entitled to elect to receive such dividend (or
part thereof) in cash in lieu of such allotment.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
amount and form of any dividend in any financial year/period, the
Board shall take into account the following factors:

. financial results of the Group

. Shareholders’ interests

. the current and future operations and future prospect of the
Group
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. the current and future capital and investment requirements of
the Group; and

. any other factors that the Board may deem relevant.

There can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any given financial year.

On 16 June 2023, the Sharcholders have passed the special
resolution approving the adoption of the new Bye-laws for the
purpose of, among others, (i) to bring the new Bye-laws in line
with the core shareholder protection standards set out in Appendix
Al of the Listing Rules; (ii) to provide flexibility to the Company
to convene and hold general meetings in the form of hybrid general
meetings or exclusively electronic general meetings; and (iii) to
incorporate other consequential and housekeeping amendments
to update or clarify provisions of the Bye-laws of previous version
where it was considered fit and desirable. An updated version of
the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the Company is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we”) is pleased to present
this environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report (the
“Report”), which aims to disclose the Group’s policies, initiatives

and performance related to ESG matters.

A complete index (the “Index”) in compliance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2 (the “Guide”) to the Rules
of Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
is also available at the end of this Report for reference, except
for “Comply or explain” provisions that the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) believes are not applicable to its
operations, for which explanations have been provided in the Index.
The Group has complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions
as set out in the Guide during the year ended 31 December 2023
(the “Reporting Period”).

Unless otherwise specified, this Report is prepared based on the
Guide and complies with the “Comply or explain” provisions set out
in the Guide for the Reporting Period through general disclosures
of environmental and social information and key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) which are considered to be relevant and

material to the Group’s business and operation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is principally engaged in
provision of financial services with the licences to carry out Type
1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6
(advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities (the “Financial Services Business”) under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) in Hong Kong.
This Report focuses on the environmental and social performance
practices of the Group of its principal business office in Hong Kong
during the Reporting Period.
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This Report was prepared by adhering to the following reporting
principles and was approved by the Board:

Materiality: The Group performed a materiality assessment by
conducting surveys with stakeholders to identify
and assess major ESG topics that have significant
impact on the sustainable development of the

Group during the Reporting Period.

Quantitative: This Report disclosed calculation and numeric

representation, where appropriate, on the
Group’s environmental and social KPIs with
reference to “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” and Appendix 3: Reporting
Guidance on Social KPIs” of “How to Prepare an

ESG Report” published by the Stock Exchange.

Balance: This Report provides an unbiased overview of ESG
performance of the Group, avoiding selections,
omissions or presentation formats that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgment

of the readers of the Report.

Consistency: This Report adopts consistent methodologies
for meaningful comparison on ESG data over
time. In case of any changes in the reporting
scope or methodologies, they are explained for

stakeholders’ reference.

Your feedback is valuable for the Group to continuously
improve its ESG practice and performance. If you have any
questions and/or suggestions regarding this Report and/or the
Group’s ESG practices, please feel free to contact us via email:
cosec(@bison.com.hk.

The Board believes that sound ESG performance is crucial for
ensuring the sustainable development of the Group, and it is
committed to promoting environmental conservation, social
responsibility and corporate governance effectively for its long-
term sustainable growth. For achieving which, during the Reporting
Period, the Group integrates its ESG policies and measures into its
business operations with support from the Company’s ESG working
group (the “ESG Working Group”) to endeavor to:

. ensure compliance with applicable regulatory requirements
which is reported in “Corporate Governance Report” in the
Group’s annual report for the Reporting Period (the “Annual
Report”); and

. reduce impacts on environment and society which is reported
in this Report.
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The Board has the overall responsibility for deciding and reviewing
ESG practices and activities across the Group, and to determine
and direct the overall strategies and development of the Group’s
operations and business. The ESG Working Group oversees the daily
compliance of ESG policies, identifies and addresses ESG related
risks and reports to the Board with recommendations to ensure the
effective and proper operation of ESG practices and measures.

The ESG Working Group comprises three members including an
executive director of the Company as its chairman, the company
secretary and personnel manager of the Company and is delegated
by the Board with authorities to invite any members of the Group
including members of the Board, or external professional advisors
to deal with specific ESG-related tasks and projects to discharge its
duties. According to the delegation, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited (the “ESG Consultant”), being an
independent ESG consultant has been appointed by the Company
during the Reporting Period, to assist in ESG data collection and
analysis, stakeholder surveys formulation and compilation of this
Report.

With the support from the aforementioned parties, the Board
discusses ESG-related issues, approves the implementation and
reporting of ESG initiatives, goals and targets of the Group, and
reviews the progress against the targets set at least annually. During
the Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed the progress made
against all ESG-related targets set in 2022 by the Group, and
adjusted (where appropriate) and approved its ESG-related targets
set for 2023, the details of which are set out in the section headed
“Environment”.

The Group values its stakeholders and their feedback regarding the
business and ESG aspects. The Group conducted surveys among
internal and external stakeholders of the Group so as to understand
their views and opinions on the Group’s sustainable development.

The Group believes that effective communication with its
stakeholders is essential to create long-term value for the Group
and them, and to facilitate the Group to have better understanding
of their concerns on the material ESG-related issues relating to the
Group’s business operation.

The Group’s stakeholders include, among others, the Board and
senior management of the Group, its sharcholders and investors,
clients, employees, suppliers, government authorities and regulators
as well as community, non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”)
and media.
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Stakeholders
¥ty &
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Concerned Topics

B T ok

B g kBB mAA

Communication Channels

i 08

Internal Stakeholders

P HB 45 O

/'4’.\

The Board and
Senior Management

ERGLEREAL

g

Employees

g 82

External Stakeholders

R R E

Gass

Shareholders and Investors °

R 2 5B

Clients

N

Suppliers
At JE 7

. Responsibility on Products & Services
FE b e RS F AT

. Employment and Labour Conditions
1@ 1 % 25 T A A4

. Regulatory Compliance
BEAH

. Anti-corruption
RE5

. Employment and Labour Conditions

& 1 K %5 T AR A4
. Health and Safety
it Jie B 22 4

. Professional Development and Training

SRR K

. Return on Investment
& 7]

. Corporate Governance

B

Regulatory Compliance

BEAH

. Quality and Safety of Products and
Services
JEE i S R 5 Y L i e A

. Clients Rights and Data Protection

%5 4 % BRI

. Fair Procurement Process
8 V) BR B AR
. Timely Delivery of Goods or Services

$2 Wy S A T oty AR S

. Regular Meetings
0
. Emails
c%
. Phone Calls
L4
. Other Media Communications

HL At 15 78 28

. Daily Communications and Regular
Meetings
L3 I 0 2

. Internal Memos and Publications
N BB AR = Bk ST

. Employee Activities
B LG8

. Training and Seminars
Al Kt et e

. Whistleblowing

S

. General Meetings
JBR K &

. Annual and Interim Reports
AR B Hp R

. Announcements and Circulars
N &

. Company Website
NEIE GRS

. Meetings
e 17 DU
. Customer Feedback/Complaints via

Forms, Hotline and Emails
B 7 R A BRI B HEAT
fit,/ v
. Company Website
S v 4
. Whistleblowing

S

° Communications prior to, during and
after the Enéagements
HE R AT - O A ] R R A% A i
. Suy}giers Assessment

K A £

i
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B g RBEBERAA

Stakeholders Concerned Topics Communication Channels
¥ty & PRk R WEEE
A . Compliance with applicable Laws and . Supervision on Compliance with
Regulations applicable Laws and Regulations
m AESF R B IR R BEEOE ST R R LR B
. Sustainable Development . Routine Reports
—————1 CIESS £ 43 BIAT e
Government authorities ° Emails or Phone Calls
and regulators o 5 A
0T % B8 M B 4 WS . Forums and Workshops
i W
* . Social Development Involvement . Emails or Phone Calls
A s I Nl & T ol B EE
. ESG Reports
BB A E RS
** . Community Activities
At 1 {5

Community, NGOs
and media

I~ IR U AL e RS

Materiality Assessment

With assistance from the ESG Consultant, a stakeholders’ survey
containing the following 16 topics (2022: 17 topics) of potential
material ESG-related issues was formulated by the Group during
the Reporting Period (the “Survey”):

ESG-related topics

No.
7 9% BB A& KA VRH B RE

. Charity Donations to NGOs

1) JF R AL AR A Hh 28 3% 1R T

PR B Al

TEBR BT ~ AL & KA 0 R B o B > AS 4R R
Wl mmE TR EWAEL EHha s
16ffl (=& = 74 7f) IR E RS A g
Fe A B e ([ ])

Aspects relating to

S DLF 75 v M
1 Employment Practices AR 115 i A5
2 Occupational Health and Safety ik ¥ ik e B 22 A
3 Prevention of Child Labour and By 11 7 T K% 58 i 45 T Employce
Forced Labour (=
4 Talent Training Management and Courses N 5548 38 e iR e
5 Workforce Diversity and Inclusion” B I Zritmn
6 Climate Change St AL
7 Green Office (Emissions, Waste A= (PR Environment
Management and Energy Efficiency) % %T@ B I K A VR B
R A

~
N
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ESG-related topics

No.
3 9% BRBE -~ 3k & B A VR M B R

Aspects relating to

S PLTF Jy i+ R

8 Anti-corruption and Whistle-blowing BTG Mo B A
Mechanism
9 Anti-money Laundering ;J:T % {JHI:T %% Samo;‘/é;rnance
10 Compliance Management and B LA PR JE B A EEA
Risk Managcmcnt’\
11 Customer Services g }5 H&i’%
12 Privacy Protection N 1% i
13 Protection of Intellectual Properties 5 R T ?g%amn
14 Service Quality Control IR 5 ' 4 1
15 Supply Chain Management 136 JE B 4
16 Corporate Social Responsibility e AR s Social
Gy
Note: EJ‘I_ :

New ESG-related topics in 2023 pursuant to benchmarking of financial

services industrial practices.

Under guidance of ESG Consultant, the above 16 topics of
potential material ESG-related issues were identified through desk
researches, benchmarking of peers and guidelines specified on
industry of financial service business in Hong Kong which is the
principal business of the Group, with reference to the Guide and
communication with stakecholders of the Group. Each identified
topic of potential material ESG-related issue of the Survey was
assigned with scores of materiality to the operation of the Group for
stakeholders assessment for purpose of prioritising and measuring
the materiality of cach potential identified issue to compose the
Survey which was conducted by the Group with stakeholders
including the Senior Management, employees, suppliers and
licensed representatives of the Group during the Reporting Period,
and supplemented with interviews where required. The result of the
Survey was presented in form of matrix as follows which indicated
the stakeholders have more concerns on operational and governance
related aspects, and less concerns on environmental related aspect
on the identified potential material ESG-related issues, probably

because of the business nature of the Group’s operation.

A

—

A

R < IR B AT ¥ 1 491 ik o
O BRI~ A I I A B A

TEBREE - AL & KA R B B R 18 8 > 17 i SR 5
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The assessment of materiality on the identified 16 topics of 28 9 A e 2 01 6B TE AR IR BE ~ 4L & I IR AH B
potential ESG-related issues from the Survey is presented in matrix R RS AR N BB ¢

as follows:

2023 ESG-related Topics Materiality Matrix
TR TEARBRE k6 B VR R B R R Y 2
Higher Importance

A Compliance Management and

Risk Management
A A 3
Anti-corruption and Whistle-blowing Mechanism
REE B @

Employment Practices

Climate Change

PY Anti-money Laundering
FTUR k6
Privacy Protection

FLEE PR

Talent Training Management and Courses

n

=

,.g Customer Services 1 A

2 % F R Supply Chain Management [ J

= 1k JRE il 45 J

_ﬁ ﬁ Protection of Intellectual Properties PRIEREE R

g 3 R bk / 2 A T S

S i i sy 21 A e

z L Prevention of Child Labour and Forced Labour \g A BRI B A
N, o Al 40

f ﬁ Wi L 5T R 5 ] 55 T \. @ ——— Occupational Health and Safety

8 & Service Quality Control ik 2 fk e B 2 4

8 i Workforce Diversity and Irflusign [ ] TR & 4

£ BT Z oot

CE

S Corporate Social Responsibility

o Green Office > A o FHAT

E BORAE

ey 2ld
Lower Importance Higher Imp(;'tance
MK ' . EL L
Importance to the Group's Ogeratlons
B 7R 4 2 i
@ Employee-related Environmental-related @ Governance-related Operational-related Social-related
& S AH B BRI AE B BB AR B A B ALerAe B

Based on the above materiality assessment matrix, the Group FR 4 DAL 3 S M A o e > A R (3 R A DA 3
identified the following top 5 ESG-related topics which are REFHERSELREHENENSEEEN L
significant to the Group’s business operation and its stakeholders: KERBE ~ #b & R A5 I6 A0 B A

Top 5 ESG-related Topics Significant to the Group and its stakeholders
S A A ] B LRy B R R R FOK BRBE - dk & K R A B R

First — Anti-money Laundering

B - TS

Second — Compliance Management and Risk Management
B - BRUE B R By

Third —  Privacy Protection

W= - FAREfRGE

Forth —  Anti-corruption and Whistle-blowing Mechanism
B - RE T R

Fifth — Employment Practices

BH - R

Bison Finance Group Limited



The Group operates financial services business in Hong Kong,
being regulated activities under the SFO, which particularly
emphasises in managing its compliance and risk control. The Group
has established various internal policies and guidelines, including
internal control and compliance manual, relating to anti-money
laundering and counter-terrorist financing (“AML/CTF’), the
Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed by or Registered with
the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) and the Fund
Manager Code of Conduct, etc., and which are implemented and
continuously monitored by its compliance team (the “Compliance
Team”) to ensure the proper compliance and risk manageable and
under control, if any.

To facilitate the Group’s employees’ and licensed representatives’
effective execution of their responsibilities for the Group’s
operation in accordance with relevant applicable laws and
regulations, they are required to attend trainings on compliance
provided by the Compliance Team, at time of joining the Group
and from time to time, so as to strengthen their awareness on their
continuous obligations and personal liabilities in respect of AML/
CTF requirements.

The Group is committed to maintain a sustainable and effective
risk management system, including frameworks, processes, and
internal controls to ensure that the significant and evolving risks
could be timely and appropriately identified, assessed, mitigated,
reported, and monitored. To this end, the Group has established risk
management policy, which integrates risk management into decision-
making processes and normal business operations. Such policy shall
be reviewed regularly to ensure its relevance and alignment with the
Group’s organisational structure and risk management strategies.
For further details of the Group’s compliance and risk management,
please refer to the “Risk Management and Internal Control” section
under the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” in this Annual
Report of which this Report forms a part.

The Group considers the business integrity and compliance with
internal policies and guidelines of the Group and all applicable laws
and regulations including, among others, the Company’s internal
control and compliance manual, policy manual relating to AML/
CTF, the SFO, the Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed by or
Registered with the SFC and the Fund Manager Code of Conduct,
as fundamental expectations on its employees for performing their
duties.
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The Group has established its internal control and compliance

manual, and whistle-blowing policy, among others, which outlines:

. the standards and principles, for its employees during
provision of all product details and terms of services to its
customers, which are formulated with reference to relevant

applicable laws and regulations;
. zero tolerance on corruption and money laundering;

. all employees should strictly comply with the Group’s code of
conducts (the “Codes of Conduct’);

. employees should report promptly to the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) or the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) of any
suspected misconducts, malpractices or irregularities relating
to financial reporting, internal control and other matters within
the Group pursuant to the Company’s whistle-blowing policy;

. the Company Secretary shall be responsible for handling
report from whistle-blowers and if necessary, an investigator
from the outsourced internal auditors shall be appointed to
look into the matter and any possible criminal activity will
be referred to the Audit Committee in consultation with
the legal advisers to determine further action, including
to report to the relevant authorities. A final report with
recommendations for changes will be provided to the Board
by the Audit Committee, if necessary.

The Group’s employees who are the licensed persons (as defined
under SFO) are required to attend the AML/CTF trainings or
seminars which aim to keep the licensed persons abreast of the
latest compliance trends and practices in the Financial Services
Business and enrich their professional skills and knowledge in their
roles and responsibilities particular relating to anti-corruption and
business ethics matters. The Group has appointed a compliance
officer for two licensed corporations who is mainly responsible
for ongoing monitoring the suspicious activities, if any, and the
compliance obligations of these licensed corporations in accordance
with SFO. If and when necessary, the Group shall fully cooperate
with enquiries or requests from the government authorities.
Directors and relevant employees will receive anti-corruption

related training or reading materials from time to time.
During the Reporting Period:

. no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices was
brought against the Group or its employees (2022: Nil); and

. total 19 persons of directors and employees received 7
trainings relating to anti-money laundering, anti-corruption
and business ethics organised internally and externally of the
Group to familiarise themselves with their corresponding
roles and responsibilities, which also helps to cultivate
employeeys awareness towards the latest development in those

aspects.
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The Group prides in its long-term customer relationships and
values the reputation it received of being a trustworthy, caring and
professional financial services company. The Group has established
the standard operating procedures of the Financial Services Business
to maintain the quality of its services. The Group recognises the
importance on the customers  feedbacks and needs which could
enhance the corporate brand connection and the overall customer
experiences. The Group actively collects the customers’ feedbacks
through ongoing communication and if the Group has received
any complaints from its customers, such complaints shall be
handled by the designated department pursuant to the established
procedures, including acknowledgement to relevant client of
receipt of the complaint and that is under consideration, sending
letter to relevant client notifying complaint is still in investigation
if it cannot be resolved within 7 business days, using all efforts to
resolve complaint within 28 days from its initial reporting, advising
client for available further steps under existing regulatory system as
a part of the final response. The Group strives to build a long-term

relationship with its clients which is vital to its business.

During the Reporting Period, no products or service-related

complaint was received by the Group (2022: Nil).

The Group has its internal control and compliance manual to ensure
that its services are conducted in a responsible and compliant
manner, fostering trust with its customers and stakeholders. By
adhering to the manual, the Group demonstrates its commitment to
providing accurate information, transparency, and ethical practices
in all its marketing efforts.

During the Reporting Period, there was no report of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
advertising related laws and regulations that would have a significant
impact on the Group (2022: Nil).

The Group strives to protect the data privacy of its employees,
customers, and business partners, and is in strictly compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations, among others, including Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (‘PDPO”) and certain guidelines issued
by the Officer of the Privacy Commissioners on the compliance
with requirements under PDPO. The Group has set out the
guiding principles by different types of information, which are
communicated to all its employees to ensure proper handling of
both its and clients” data. Prior to provision of any information or
documents, other than those prohibited by laws and regulations,
a non-disclosure agreement shall be arranged for execution
between the Group and the proposed recipient(s). The compliance
department of the Group is responsible to oversee and ensure
the adherence to these data privacy practices during the Group’s
operation.
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With the widespread adoption of digital platforms and
interconnected systems, the Group recognizes the critical
importance of cybersecurity and has its information technology
(“IT”) team which is responsible for all aspects relating to data
security and information technology of the Group, among others,
including:

. to formulate IT policies to address challenges relating
to IT issue and data protection and monitor policies’
implementation, including;

° proactive measures to safeguard the Group from
constant barrage of cyber threats, like sophisticated
malware, ransomware attacks, data breaches, and social

engineering scams; and

° governance the manner of the collection, processing,
storage, and disposal of personal and financial
information;

. to ensure IT policies under review and update regularly to

reflect their actual practices and effectiveness;

° to ensure the Groupys cybersecurity infrastructure meeting
the continuous updating requirements of the relevant

applicable laws and regulations; and

. to ensure the Group’s equipment, appliances and software
having obtained necessary licenses and to arrange their

renewal, where required, on time.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incident nor
substantiated complaint concerning breaches of customer privacy

or losses of customer data (2022: Nil).

In respect of protection of intellectual property rights, the
Group’s employees acknowledged that all their work done in
course of employment being the property of the Group as agreed
in employment letter by parties therein, accordingly, they are
obligated to promptly disclose and deliver to the Group for their
usage of any and all such property upon request. In addition, all
employees accepted the Group being the legal and beneficial owner
of any and all such related work during their employment in and
upon their departure from the Group. Employees are also obliged
to fully respect and protect the intellectual property rights of
the Group’s stakeholders as stipulated in the Groupys compliance

manual.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s was neither aware of any
litigation relating to its infringement nor its intellectual property

rights infringed (2022: Nil).
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Even though the business operation of the Group has no significant
impact on the environment, the Group continuously monitors its
operation with a view towards minimising any possible negative
impact on the environment or society. Such scrutiny extends to
the Group’s supplier management. The Group has established the
Sustainable Supply Chain Policy, which is applicable to all the
members of the Group. Pursuant to such policy, the Group will
evaluate and engage suppliers based on products and services
quality, price, aftersales service, as well as environmental and
social risks, and centralizes its procurement function of the office
supplies to its administration department and office equipment to
IT team with an objective to manage procurement, and minimise
environmental and social negative impacts in its supply chain. The
Group shall review its practices and policy regularly to ensure their

effectiveness.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged a total of
82 suppliers, with all located in Hong Kong (2022: a total of
107 suppliers, with 106 located in Hong Kong and 1 in Mainland
China). The Group mainly sources from the local suppliers with an
aim to minimise generation of carbon emissions from transportation

and support the development of local economy and community.

The Group considers its employees to be its most valuable and
significant assets and treats its employees with respect, fairness
and care, as well as endeavor to uphold a healthy and safe
working environment with equal opportunities to protect the
rights and interests of its employees according to its relevant
established policies and procedures, including equal employment
opportunity-related measures in its staff handbook on employment,
recruitment, terms of employment, employees’ trainings, benefits
and promotions regardless of his/her race, sex, marital status,
pregnancy, disability or family status. Those measures apply to all
its employees and will be reviewed regularly, or when necessary,
to ensure their compliance with employment-related laws and
regulations, including the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum
Wage Ordinance, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, the Sex Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance, the Family Status Discrimination and the

Race Discrimination Ordinance.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received no report of
non-compliance with employment-related laws and regulations
relating to labour practices including compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and

welfare (2022: Nil).
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group has 26 full-time employees in

Hong Kong (as at 31 December 2022: 31 full-time employees in

Hong Kong). The distribution of employees by gender, age group is

as follows:

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REECD A A= B AEER R
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The overall employee turnover rate in Hong Kong during the

Reporting Period was approximately 42.31% (2022: approximately
51.61%).

2022

Distribution of Employees Employees
& B 43 i 1% Dt & B A\ %
By Gender i M A ) 4 Male % PE 14 18
Female &1k 12 13

By Age Group & iz A 1% 40 R 1 43 <30 years old <30B% 1 1
30-50 years old 30-507% 13 20

above 50 years old sopk LA I 12 10

RmEHAN FHEREEMEMBE LR L
42.31% ( &~ T 4F  #51.61%) °

Employee turnover rate” 2022%
& B Wi 2k A - DY
%

By Gender $% 14 7l # 7> Male %5 1 42.86 44.44
Female X 41.67 61.54

By Age Group 1% 4F % A1 Jill #1 73 <30 years old <305 100.00 100.00
30-50 years old 30-505% 76.92 70.00

above 50 years old SOE Lk - 10.00

Notes: l}ﬁ?f :

80

The turnover rate is calculated based on the aggregate number of employees
resigned of each category in the relevant reporting period divided by the
number of employees of such category at the end of the relevant reporting

period.

Calculation of turnover rate for the reporting period ended 31 December
2022 (“2022 reporting period”) has been restated to conform the
calculation of turnover rate for the Reporting Period ended 31 December
2023 which is calculated based on the “Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs”
in Appendix 3 of “How to prepare an ESG Report” issued by the Stock
Exchange, whereas the turnover rate reported in the Company’s 2022 ESG
report is the outcome of the difference of the number of employees at the
beginning of 2022 reporting period and the number of employees at the
end of 2022 reporting period divided by the number of employees as at
the beginning of 2022 reporting period which is varied from the aforesaid
guidance.
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Pursuant to the Group’s policy and manual in force and in
compliance with the Employment of Children Regulations under
the Employment Ordinance, child or forced labour is strictly
prohibited within the Group. During the recruitment process,
among others, the Group shall conduct potential candidates
background check, including inspection of intended recruiting
candidate’s identification documents prior to employment offer.
If there is any suspected infringement regarding child labour, the
Group will conduct an investigation and terminate the employment

of relevant persons, where necessary.

An employment contract specifies the agreement between
the Group and its employees on the working conditions
including among others, normal working hours and overtime
work arrangement. Subject to the Groupys Staff Handbook, a
compensation leave will be granted to an employee for approved
overtime work. If there is any suspected infringement regarding
forced labour, the Group will conduct investigation and take
disciplinary actions against any staff members who are involved in
the incident. Such policy and practices will be reviewed regularly
by the human resources team to ensure their compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, no case of child or forced labour has
been discovered under the Group (2022: Nil) and there was no
report of non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
relating to child and forced labour related laws and regulations that
would have a significant impact on the Group (2022: Nil).

The Group is committed to fostering a diverse and inclusive
workplace where individuals from all backgrounds are respected,
valued, and empowered. The Group believes that diversity and
inclusion are essential for driving innovation, enhancing decision-

making processes, and nurturing a vibrant company culture.

Gender diversity is a central focus for the Group, given its
significance and impact on its workforce sustainability. The Group
has established the Board Diversity Policy and Diversity and
Inclusion Policy for Senior Management and Staff to ensure that
gender diversity is a strategic priority across all levels of the Group.

The Board Diversity Policy outlines its commitment to increasing
diversity within the Board of Directors, while the Group aims to
appoint at least one female director by 31 December 2024 for
achieving gender diversity at Board level.

When selecting suitable candidates for Board members, all
appointments are based on meritocracy. Candidates are evaluated
against objective criteria, taking into consideration the benefits of
diversity on the Board by its nomination committee on considering
a range of perspectives, including gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, and length of service. The ultimate selection is based on
merit and the contributions that candidates can bring to the Board,
without solely focusing on a single diversity aspect.
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In addition to the Board Diversity Policy, the Diversity and
Inclusion Policy for Senior Management and Staff focuses on
creating an inclusive and equitable work environment. The Group
believes that diversity of thought, backgrounds, and experiences
is crucial for driving innovation and achieving sustainable of its
growth.

The Group’s policy prohibits any form of harassment or
discrimination based on gender, marital status, disability, race,
family status, or any other attribute recognised by the laws of
Hong Kong. This commitment is also stipulated in the Group’s Staff
Handbook, which serves as a guiding document for all employees of
the Group.

The Group’s commitment to non-discrimination extends to
employee development and promotion decisions. It actively
identifies suitable career development and training programs that
promote diversity among its employees, preparing them for future

senior management and board positions within the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has become one of
the signatories of the Racial Diversity & Inclusion Charter for
Employers organised by the Equal Opportunities Commission.
Such charter aims to support and promote the principles of racial
diversity and inclusion in the workplace, and to work towards

achieving the goals as outlined therein.

The Group believes that fostering a diverse and inclusive workplace
is not only the right thing to do, but it also fuels innovation,
creativity, and sustainable business growth. The Group will continue
to invest in these efforts, listen to the voices of its employees, and
collaborate with external partners to create an environment where

everyone feels valued and empowered to contribute their best.

Although the Group’s business nature does not expose its
employees to significant safety hazards, the Group is committed
to ensure its employeesy health and safety as they are integral to
its smooth operation. The Group has formulated and included its
environment, health and safety statement in its Staff Handbook to
ensure all applicable occupational, health and safety procedures
and regulations, including the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance and the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, are
clearly communicated and properly met at all levels.

The Group provides ergonomic office equipment, conducts regular
maintenance and cleaning on water dispensers, air-conditioning
system and carpet for the health of its employees. The Group has
also arranged employees’ compensation insurance coverage and
medical insurance for its employees. Such measures are subject
to regular review by the Groupys management and are adjusted to
reflect any influencing internal and external factors as and when
necessary. There were no work-related fatalities occurred in the
past three years including the Reporting Period, nor there were any
lost days due to work injury (2022: Nil).

Bison Finance Group Limited
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During the Reporting Period, there was no report of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to health
and safety, i.e. Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, that
would have a significant impact on the Group (2022: Nil).

The Group takes care of its employees including to attempt to
achieve a work-life balance working atmosphere. For such, its
employees are entitled to the statutory holiday, annual leave,
compensation leave, marriage leave, maternity leave and sick leave,
etc. During some special occasions such as Mid-Autumn Festival,
Winter Solstice, Christmas Eve and Chinese New Year Eve, its
employees are allowed to off earlier from work to celebrate festivals
with their families, relatives and friends.

The Group has established a systematic payroll process that allows
employees to receive salary payment in a timely manner. The
Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration and
benefits package to its employees and has adopted a mandatory
provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as required
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Such
scheme enables its employees to make their own investment choices
and directly benefit from the funds after retirement. To increase
employee involvement and incentive, the Group has adopted its
share option scheme since 2018, providing its employees with
incentives to strive for the long-term growth of the Group and
aligning their interests directly with its shareholders through

ownership of shares of the Company.

Nurturing and retaining talents are vital to maintain the Group’s
competitiveness and productivity. The Group provides its employees
with career prospect and opportunity for personal development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has:

° organised certain internal compliance training courses
relating to AML/ CTF, anti-corruption (bribery, extortion and
money laundering), and the relevant regulatory requirements
relating to compliance with notification for employees
who are licensed persons under the SFO and members of
supporting teams;

. organised other internal training courses to Directors and
employees of the Group, including the senior management
of the Group, based on the needs of their roles and

responsibilities; and

. provided external training courses, including anti-corruption
trainings to Directors and senior management of the Group,
organised by third-party consultants and government

department.
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To encourage employees of the Group to further enrich their
knowledge and skills, the Group incorporates the training and
development section in the Staff Handbook which provides details
on subsidies of its employees for attending training courses and
certified professional seminars, as well as details of entitlement for
paid examination leave on examination date.

During the Reporting Period, 22 employees have received
approximately 324.50 training hours in total through attending
both internal and external training courses or seminars (2022: 27
employees received 220.39 training hours in total). The percentage
of employees attended training is approximately 84.62% (2022:
87.10%) and the average number of training hours completed per
attended training employee in 2023 is approximately 14.75 hours
which is approximately 6.59 hours more than that of approximately
8.16 hours in 2022. The breakdown of employee training
information by gender and employee categories is as follows:

Employees Training

i B 5l

Number and Percentage of employees trained, and No. of

number of training hours completed per trained

employees

employee by gender and employee category, and trained
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By Gender FEYE I #70  Male 55 1 14 100% 17.86 16 51.61% 8.92
Female X1 8 66.67% 9.31 11 35.48% 7.07
By Employee Category Senior Management 2 66.67% 9.25 3 9.68% 6.80
1R B 8TR B2 A
Manager gl 11 100.00% 20.66 13 41.94% 11.67
General Staff — fit B L. 9 75.00% 8.75 11 35.48% 439
Notes: [t 5%

The percentage of employees of the Group receiving training is calculated
based on the total number of employees receiving trainings of each category
(i.e. by gender or by employee category) during the relevant reporting
period divided by the total number of employees of cach category (i.e. by
gender or by employee category) as at the end of the relevant reporting
period.

The average number of training hours completed per trained employee
is calculated based on the total number of training hours completed
by trained employees of each category (i.e. by gender or by employee
category) during the relevant reporting period divided by the total number
of trained employees of each category (i.e. by gender or by employee

category) during the relevant reporting period.
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The Group is committed to be a responsible corporate citizen and
endeavours to provide resources to the underprivileged within
the community through continuous support to various activities

organised by NGOs and charities.

To cater for the specific needs of the local community, the Group
has formulated the Community Investment Policy to understand
the needs of the community, identify the focus areas and allocate

approprlate resources to empower the Communlty.

During the Reporting Period, the Group participated and/or
donated to the following six community events organised by five
NGOs and charities, including:

Awards and Recognitions

BE I M vl

Dress Causal Day 2023 Participation Confirmation
fH Al H 20232 B3k &
Earth Hour 2023
Hi 3K — /NFF2023
Mooncake Boxes Recycling Programme 2023
A& BICR AT 82023
Mooncake Charity Sale 2023
H f 28 & # #2023
Wastewi$e Certificate
Weez Walk 2023 Participation

(Raising awareness for youth mental and suicide prevention)
Weez Walk 20235R 5 Ji 17 2 B 35 &

(12 157 2 AR B B A A P I T 7 1 AL i i 1Y B )

During the Reporting Period, the Company is continuing having
been awarded “20 Years Plus Caring Company Logo 2023/24” by
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of its
continued commitment in caring for the community, the employees

and the environment.

/ LTI
caringcompany
‘Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
A GREH GRS
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The Community Chest

World Wildlife Fund

HABRESE

Greeners Action

ARAEATH)

KELY Support Group

Btk e

Hong Kong Green Organisation Certification
T Vs ok (M R RE S

KELY Support Group
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The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and community, particular caring on where it operates
its business. The Group is dedicated to promoting the development
of a green cycle that environment and society and its long-term
goal is to reduce greenhouse gas emissions related to its business
operation. Having considered the Group’s business operation
neither significantly impact the environment nor natural resources,
the Group remains committed to minimising any negative
environmental impact resulting from its operation, among others,
by promoting recycling culture within the Group, implementing
environmental protection policies, such as Green Office & Eco
Healthy Workplace Best Practice etc., to provide guidance on
preserving resources and protecting environment for its employees.

To implement green office philosophy, minimise carbon footprint
and promote sustainability among employees, the Group has
adopted designs/initiatives in the following six key aspects:

Aspects
i IR

Key designs/initiatives

BERHE R
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Energy Conversation . adoption of LED lamps
i i B H LEDAE B
. the office’s ﬂoor—to—ceilinéwindows design maximised natural daylight illumination
WA 25 1) v Hb 7 s st e KRR FE s AT A 2R IR
. encouraging employees to switch off or put electrical appliances on power-saving mode
when not in use or after office hours
BB B AR AN R 8 T BEAZ B P AR s B A B A B E R
Water Conservation . adoption of dual—flushing systems for toilets by the office building
i 7K WAV F M S BE A oK R4
. conduction of periodic maintenance of water boilers and dispensers to prevent leakage
TE TP BH K A B2 AOK A > B 1E T K
. coordination with professions and/or relevant Government authorities to conduct

Waste Reduction

Bison Finance Group Limited

environmental-related webinars for employees to enhance their awareness of water-saving
ractices

BRLESE N B K SO B IR A8 1 5 - 2% B T B e B BRI A B ) A AR R
PLAR i B0 i K

set recycle collection stations in office for collecting recycle materials

TE 2 28 8 T (] i P g B s > AL Tl oA Rk

set designated area in office to collect recycle plastic bags for use

TE 2N 28 5 B4 A [ il 4 T A A R B AR I A

provision of durable containers and utensils in office for usage to reduce disposable
tableware

TEHRA ERALT A A E R U — kg R

encouraging em loyees to bring their own lunch boxes and utensils

WEB T AT ENER

poster of waste-reducing tips on prominent area in office to cultivate green practices
E%?’z}%ﬁ?ﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁéﬁ T JBE /N B v R R AR IR R 1

donation of old and in %;)Od condition electrical apf)lianccs to charities or employees

A ST BB AR R T 2R S R R B

participation of external waste reduction campaigns organised by NGOs or charities, such

as mooncake box recyclin
200 v A O AEL A o 2 B A A1 B B 40 £



Aspects

i 5

Key de jiagns/initiatives

E s 8 £

Paper Reduction .

B AR L

order%aper with label of eco-friendly to minimise negative effect on environment

A BRRAE BRI ARGR > LA B D B ER BT A T 2

. promotion of paperless office in electronic form for internal communications, like

internal notices, memorandums, and a[#)lications to reduce printed documents

#fE Ji S AR AL LY > (BRI TR

w) o WA AT BN

Green Procurement .

Bk (0 PR W

2 3014 7 P8 2 L o B 2 R~ A RS Bk %

prioritise equipment with energ cfficicncl%r labels on purchase list

R S IR 0 5 25 8 A B TR AN AR A AR

S

. prioritise purchases from suBEhers emphasij on green concept
18R 515 2% 8 Im] 7 B Ak 00 B S A 436 JRE P PR I
. centralize procurement to certain departments to minimise over/duplicate purchase
WA RS — A TP R > DA R
Integrated Environmental . romotion of minimising business travel and travel on public transportation
Management Y 18 s 2 i TR A A S 20 T Ll £
,ﬁg_-:/a\f,% R%Eﬁ . coordination of internal and external training and seminars to enhance employees’

environmental Brotection awareness
o

i ] 13 115 535 G B ATt - R T A R BROR

During the Reporting Period, there was no report of non-
compliance with the relevant local environmental laws and
regulations, i.c. the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, the Waste
Disposal Ordinance, the Water Pollution Control Ordinance and
the Noise Control Ordinance that would have a significant impact

on the Group (2022: Nil).

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s greenhouse gas (“‘GHG”)
emissions primarily came from the direct GHG emissions resulting
from the consumption of petrol by company vehicles (Scope 1),
as well as the energy indirect GHG emissions from purchased
electricity (Scope 2) given that the main business operation of the
Group is in Financial Services Business.

Besides, the Group has started to gather its emission data generated
from employees’ business travel and hotel stay for purpose of
calculating other indirect emissions (Scope 3) during the Reporting
Period in order to assess its environmental impact and identify arcas
for improvement with an aim to enhance its overall sustainability
performance and contribute to a lower carbon future to collaborate
its environmental policies and initiatives as reported in “GREEN
OFFICE” section in this Report.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to use the
baseline adopted in the previous year, namely the floor lettable
area (15,015 sq. ft.), to calculate GHG emissions intensity, which
showed a significant increase to approximately 6.14 tCO e/1,000
sq. ft. in 2023 from approximately 2.82 tCO,e/1,000 s:q. ft. in
2022. The significant increase of tCO,e/1,000 sq. ft. is mainly
due to the cancellation of remote work from home measure by
the Group after the easing of the COVID-19 epidemic and the
governmentys relaxation of epidemic prevention measures in
Hong Kong in 2023. Employees have to resume work in office full
time. As a result, office electricity consumption has significantly
increased by nearly 111%, leading to a corresponding rise in Scope

2 greenhouse gas emissions, and also its intensity.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has revised its baseline on
the GHG emission target set in 2022, with performance in 2023 as
the new bascline instead of performance in 2022. This adjustment
is made due to the aforementioned reason, as its office in 2022
was not fully utilised under the COVID-19 epidemic period.
The Group’s target is to maintain or reduce its GHG emissions
per 1,000 sq. ft. lettable area for the year ended 31 December
2024 (“2024”) based on its performance during the year ended 31
December 2023 as baseline.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has:

. participated in the Earth Hour Initiative organised by the
World Wide Fund for Nature Hong Kong to demonstrate its
attempt to reduce carbon footprint

A AEEERT T F U AERER
{2 SR D A Ugfﬁ—#ﬁﬂﬁ%’zfﬁ
i FE % — A Y SR R R o s — 2
BT 3t J PRI A o PR 7 B 2R e AR G 7
5 3 ] > A B T O 0 R T ARG F
MM - ALEMAEEURE T =
T H=+—H I F R RBAE MR
O HEE “F _WEF A=+ —H Ik
AEBE (T % P94 ]) 451,000°F- 77 WRUAT i A T
o A Ui 2 R A P R o

A A AR
< ZHEESF RIS E A G B [

BR—/INRE | 3 ) > B A 42 AL B ik 2
77 T8 14955 11

. continuous to sponsor a green lunch box for its employees to ¢ BEDE TEHKOTERE WAL
promote vegetarian meal and low-carbon lifestyle among its T B A AR BR A= 36 7 =K
employees

Emission Unit 2022
e 32 B f B
Air Emissions
Nitrogen Oxides Kg 2.17 1.64
REAY T 38
Sulphur Oxides Kg 0.04 0.03
i AL T 38
Particulate Matter Kg 0.16 0.12
HERL ) T o
Direct (Scope 1), Energy Indirect

(Scope 2) and Other Indirect

(Scope 3) GHG Emissions
FE (R - eI 82 (HE2) K

S 93 (O 3 5
Total GHG Emissions” tCO,e 92.23 42.31
1 =5 SR B8 P A W — A AL R
GHG Emissions Intensity tCO,e/ 1,000 sq. ft 6.14 2.82
1 25 S B8 P i B MR AL B 71,0007 7 IR
GHG Emissions (Scope 1) tCO,e 8.12 6.13
1 25 SR A B (R ) A W AL B =
GHG Emissions (Scope 2)" tCO,e 76.35 36.18
1 25 SR A Bl (e E2) A W AL B =
GHG Emissions (Scope 3)"* tCO,e 7.76 N/A
U =5 SR A PR (R 3) A WE — ALk & AN

Bison Finance Group Limited



Notes:

GHG emissions data are presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent
and are based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol:
A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the
“Global Warming Potential Values” from “The Fifth Assessment Report”
of the United Nations Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change,

“Sustainability Report 2022” published by HK Electric Investments Limited.

The emission factors used for calculating Scope 2 emissions were
referenced to the CO,e emissions intensity of electricity sold by Hong
Kong Electric (“HKE”), as reported in HKE’s Sustainability Reports. The
emission factors remain the same as those used in 2022, with HKE at 0.68
kg/kWh.

Scope 3 emissions includes the emissions generated from business air travel

and hotel stay by employees of the Group.

Since the Group is principally engaged in the Financial Services
Business, the impact of the Group on hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are not significant and mainly attributable to the use of

electricity, toner cartridges and paper in office.

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively participated in
the recycling program organised by its office building management
company. This program aimed to promote waste recycling practices
within the building and contribute to the reduction of landfill
waste. Throughout the program, a total of 356.36 kg of waste was
recycled (2022: 82.63 kg). The increase in the amount of waste
generated and recycled was mainly due to the resumption of normal
full office operations after the easing of the preventive measures
relating to the COVID-19 pandemic and the cancellation of remote
work from home measure. With all employees resuming normal
to work in the office instead of majority to work at home, that
resulted generation of more waste in office, specifically wastepaper
and plastic bottles, compared to previous year in pandemic period.
However, as the Group participated in the recycling program
mentioned above, most waste generated was collected for recycle

by the qualified recycler.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has participated Mooncake
Boxes Recycling Programme 2023 and the waste recycling
programme organised by the office building management to
minimise waste sent to landfill, and promote culture and habit of
recycle among its employees. These events fulfilled the Group’s
targets set in 2022 and onwards of carrying out at least two waste

reduction activities every year.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company was awarded Wastewi$e
Certificate in Good Level in recognition of its contribution to
environmental protection by Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification.

Hazardous and

TR A HA T 5 7S S 4 T s ok £ AR A R R A B
R 5% A A e R > KA FH R B v
() B ik o

Non-hazardous Waste Recycled Unit 2022
GAELEEYE &4 F 37 L DA D
Hazardous Waste Fluorescent light tube waste” Kg - 0.10
AEBEEY B BE 58 A A T 5
Toner cartridge waste” Kg 2.00 7.00
JBE BERR AR BN T 5
Non-Hazardous Waste Paper waste Kg 101.40 65.86
mEREEY JB& 4% T 5
Other waste (Waste consists of
plastic waste, aluminium waste,
lass waste and electronic waste) Kg 252.96 9.67
FO A R Y (FLFE I ) -
WY BB RE TR Tl
Total Waste Recycled Kg 356.36 82.63
C ] Wi % HE ) 4 T
Total Waste Recycled Intensity# Kg/1,000 sq. ft. 23.73 5.50
EL (1] Wi % ) i o F5,/1,000°F 7 R
Note: Fff 5 -
n The number of waste in pieces in 2022, the previous reporting period, has " SRR (R ) R e O AR

been recalculated based on a unified conversion factor to ensure the data in the
two reporting periods presented in the same units for comparison purposes.
The waste in pieces in 2022 are 1 piece of fluorescent light tube, 7 pieces of
toner cartridges, 65.86 kg of paper waste and 9.67 kg of other waste.

The total waste recycled intensity is the total waste recycled divided by the
Group’s lettable area of 15,015 sq. ft.

The Group is committed to optimise the use of resources across
its business operations to uphold and promote the principle of
effective use of resources by introducing resource efficient and
ecofriendly measures from time to time on resources conservation
and utilisation like energy, water, and other natural resources to
minimise impacts brought to the environment by its operation, for
details of the Group’s environmental policies and initiatives, please
refer to the “GREEN OFFICE” section in this Report.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The main resource consumed by the Group in the Reporting Period
is electricity. Due to the nature of the Group’s business in provision
of services, no packaging materials were produced on finished
products during the Reporting Period and in 2022. Moreover,
the Financial Service Business was operated in the leased office
premises of which the water supply and discharge were controlled
by building management office and it was considered that provision
of water consumption data of individual tenant was not feasible
and insignificant due to comparative limited water consumed in
office. Therefore, no water consumption data was available during
the Reporting Period accordingly, no quantitative target on water

consumption can be set by the Group.

The Group’s commitment to environmental sustainability has
motivated it to continually enhance electricity and resources,
including water, efficiency in usage. The Group’s administration
department organised various training sessions and events to raise
environmental protection awareness of its employees. During
the Reporting Period, a webinar on environmental protection,
including various water-saving tips, was hosted by the Water

Supplies Department.

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed 141.87 MWh
of energy (2022: 75.55 MWh), which includes gasoline and
purchased electricity. This represents an increase of 66.32 MWh
and 87.78% compared to the previous year which mainly due
to the Groupys business operation gradually resuming to normal
following the relaxation of preventive measures in connection with
the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong, all employees required
to resume performing duties in office instead of work from home,
demand of company vehicle transport services increased and
longer high temperature period each year increased demand on
air-conditioner to maintain office in temperature comfortable for

working condition.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has revised and replaced
its baseline on the energy consumption target set in 2022
by performance in 2023. This adjustment is made due to the
aforementioned reasons. The Group’s 2024 target is to maintain or
increase no more than 5% of its energy consumption per 1,000 sq.

ft. lettable area from its consumption in 2023.
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Energy Consumption Unit 2022
HE P51 FE 1 DL L K A TR TUE
Direct Energy Consumption Gasoline consumption MWh 29.58 22.347
B R IR I FE & RIMIH FE & JK BL IRF
Indirect Energy Consumption Electricity consumption MWh 112.29 53.21
R IR FE &= CRIEEE JK BL IR§
Total energy consumption MWh 141.87 75.55
FE VR T FE A &= JK BL IRF
Total energy consumption intcnsity# MWh/1,000 sq. ft. 9.45 5.03
HERE AR B JKEL I,
1,000 75 IR
Notes: I}HEJ‘I_ :
n Gasoline consumption in 2022 is 2,305.47 litre having been converted to A TR T TAERIME *E%ﬁ2,305.4—7/&ﬂ' > 2%1% ﬁ/;\ 54

equivalent to 22.34 MWh for comparison purpose.

Total energy consumption intensity is total energy consumption divided by
the Group’s office lettable arca of 15,015 sq. ft.

Although the Group considered that the business nature of
the Financial Service Business has insignificant impact on the
environment and natural resources, it is committed to mitigate its
potential environmental impacts through adopting various industrial
best practices with an aim to conserve environment. The Group
regularly assesses the environmental risks of its business operations,
adopt preventive measures to reduce potential environmental
risks, and ensure its compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
The Group is also devoted to achieve sustainable development for
generating long-term value for the community and its stakeholders.

The Group recognises that climate change has been posing more
challenges among all industries, including its business operation.
The Group is committed to manage the climate-related risks and
endeavor to provide a low carbon working environment across its
operation in order to mitigate any impact of climate change arising
therefrom.

During the Reporting Period, no significant climate-related issues
impacted the Financial Services Business have been identified by the
Group in accordance with the Climate Change Policy. In addition,
the Group reviewed the potential climate-related risks which
might have impact on its business operation and the possible way to
manage them.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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In accordance with Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures, climate-related risks can be divided into two major
categories: (1) risks related to the transition to a lower-carbon
economy and (2) risks related to the physical impacts of climate
change. For transition risks, the government in 2021 announced
implementation of Hong Kong’s Climate Action Plan 2050 with
the participation of the whole community in order to achieve the
carbon neutrality before 2050. It is expected that the Government
authorities will implement more stringent policies and regulations
to reduce GHG emissions and waste and to promote the awareness
of the public on the climate change. In 2021, the SFC has issued
a circular regarding the management and disclosures of climate
related risks by fund managers to all licensed corporations including
the Group’s subsidiaries conducting the Financial Services Business.
Although the amendments are not applicable to the fund managers
business of the Group who have no investment management
discretion for its existing services or products in Hong Kong,
the Compliance Department of the Group will closely monitor
the regulatory changes and shall adopt appropriate measures, if
applicable, to avoid any non-compliances of the Group and mitigate
potential transition risks.

For physical risks, the long-term shift in climate patterns may cause
more frequent and intense extreme weather events, including super
typhoons and heavy rainstorms. Under the extreme weather events,
the safety of employees of the Group may be threatened and the
Group’s office may be damaged, all those may cause the disruption
to the normal business operations of the Group. To minimise the
potential physical risks, the Group adopts the flexible working
arrangements and its employees may work from home in adverse
weather conditions, where appropriate.
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Subject Area

B0y

Content
A2

Mandatory Disclosure requirement

R ) 3% 25 B E
Governance Structure

(EREEN

Reporting Principles

iz Js¢ Sl

Bison Finance Group Limited

A Statement from the board containing the following

elements:

(i)  disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;

(ii)  the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks
to the issuer’s business); and

(iii) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-
related goals and targets with an explanation of how
they relate to the issuer’s business.

H#EFGEE OB S Ea TN :

() WEREFEERE e RS E AR

(i) HESE A ERET - AL e R IR T S ORI
B A WAL B PR 21 K R B R A RS A
& KR M %ﬁ%ﬁ (45 3 85 47 N 685 19 ),
B ) Ay e s &

(i) W R - AL ROE TR AR B B AR
g’ﬁfh’ﬂfﬁ%*ﬁ B A T B B AT N SRS A B
o

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of
the following reporting principles in the preparation of the
ESG Report:

T”L&ﬁf#ﬁf%m% S5~ AL RO R A IR Qe
J&E T 4 B e S5 R

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the
process to identify and the criteria for the selection of
material ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder engagement
is conducted, a description of significant stakeholders
identified, and the process and results of the issuer’s
stakeholder engagement.

OB R AL BRI R - )k Al
BRE AT RERERNER ORISR R
1 HE J 5 (11)11[]%% ANE AT & 2 8 2k Al
14 T R 3 O I S B AT AR 2 B R A

Quantitative: Information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools used,
and source of conversion factors used, for the reporting of
emissions/energy consumption (where applicable) should
be disclosed.

B AL« A B B H P B REVRORE T (@ ) B
A BEYE ~ 7 1%~ R R B DR E R LR
I e D 4 46 B0 IR ) 0 9 IR T 0 R

Section in this Report
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Subject Area

By

Reporting Boundary

HE i o [

A. Environmental
ABRE

Aspect Al: Emissions
JEm AL : PR
General Disclosure

— e B %

KPI A1.1
P o SR FE R AL

KPI A1.2
P ok A R B A2

KPI A1.3
P ok R AL

Content
%

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG
report any changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any
other relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

*ﬁ(f& BAT NIEAE BR35  Ab & J IR i i b 4
B AR 7 1% BB AU IR R B (WA B
] JFCA 52 B0 A 5 56 P R B R R

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG
report and describing the process used to identify which
entities or operations are included in the ESG report. If
there is a change in the scope, the issuer should explain the
dlfference and reason for the change.

MEREER BT AL g R $¢M@ﬁf@ I A 7t
ﬂEL@BM ﬁﬂdz%% AN BRBE A RO
19 38 2 o o MR S o I A T ok B B AT NI R A
[7] 2 e B 53 ) J [

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issue

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

AR B SR S = R PR ) K R i B

AEREEEEDEAER :

() R K

(b)g ST R AT R H KR B R I 1 R SO 4B

i) Bk o

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

%ﬂ%%@&ﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁ

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

A% () KRB IR T ( ﬁ@z?%%@ﬂﬂ
B (DAmE 5 ) K (i ) (D) g e BB
7~ B IH R 5 )

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility).
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Section in this Report
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REPORTING BOUNDARY
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GREEN OFFICE
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GREEN OFFICE — Emissions
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GREEN OFFICE — Emissions

BRI E — PR

GREEN OFFICE — Hazardous

Waste & Non-Hazardous
Waste
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Subject Area

B3 1

KPI Al.4
BH A SR R AL

KPI A1.5

BH B A SR B ALS

KPI A1.6
BH B AR BEALG

Content

E

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FJ?FEHE.J%%%W (LAMA R ) K ﬁu‘z@ﬂ%)
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Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
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Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources
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Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water, and other raw materials
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Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total
(kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
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Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
roduction volume, per facility).
p p y

MAE K & r“ Ll E e
B o

LAV ~ B TH R R

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
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Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
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Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.
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Section in this Report
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GREEN OFFICE — Hazardous
Waste & Non-Hazardous
Waste
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GREEN OFFICE — Emissions
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Waste
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USE OF RESOURCES —
Electricity & Water

Consumption
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Considered to be immaterial in
an office-based operatlon
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GREEN OFFICE
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Considered to be immaterial in
an office-based operatlon
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Considered to be immaterial in
services-based business
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Aspect A3:The Environment and Natural Resources
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KPI A3.1
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Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources.
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Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
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Aspect A4 Climate Change
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KPI A4.1
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Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.
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Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.
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Employment and Labour Practices
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Aspect B1: Employment
JE B IR

General Disclosure
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Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment,

and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.
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Section in this Report
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Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.
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Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
eographical region.
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety
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KPI B.2.2
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KPI B.2.3
P ok B R FE HEB.2.3

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.
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Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in
cach of the past three years including the reporting year.
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Lost days due to work injury.
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Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are nnplemented and monitored.

il BT R A0 0 Bk 3 (e R BEL 42 A G > LA B A BE L
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Aspect B3: Development and Training
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General Disclosure
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Policies on improving ernployees7 knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training

activities.
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The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle

management
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Section in this Report
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The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards
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) ok 45 R 5 B4.2

Operating Practices
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Aspect B5: Supply Chain
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KPI B5.2
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KPI B5.3
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Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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Description of measures to review employment practices

to avoid child and forced labour.
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Description of steps taken to ecliminate such practices
when discovered.
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Management

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
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Number of suppliers by geographical region.
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Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

Tt A R D R R A A A > ) R
F A4 e 7 %

LAT A B AE 1
DA BAR B AT I B T ik

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are

implemented and monitored.
15 7 A ] Ak ) L B sk A {1 BR R ) BR
()1 1 DA SR R AT B B R U7 1 o

S5 ekt e JE B

Section in this Report
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Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
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KPI B6.5
[bH 2 4838 4 4 B6.5

Bison Finance Group Limited

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling, and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

J&E 4~ R

and methods of redress.
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Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
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Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.
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Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
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Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
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Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
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Section in this Report
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SUPPLY CHAIN
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OPERATIONAL PRACTICES
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Considered to be immaterial in
services-based business
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CUSTOMER SERVICE
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
PROTECTION
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COMPLIANCE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT, ANTI-
MONEY LAUNDERING
AND ANTI-CORRUPTION
PRACTICES & CUSTOMER
SERVICE
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
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KPI B7.3
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Community
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Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and money

laundering.
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() R K&

(b) ST PR AT AN A EE RS B AR B i B
ibREg S

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
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Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
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Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.
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Aspect B8: Community Investment
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KPI BS.1
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KPI BS.2
P ok 45 3 45 HE BS.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the

D
communities 1nterests.
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Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
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Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus

area.
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Section in this Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position

AR S IR LR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Bison Finance Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bison
Finance Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 111 to 205, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the “Basis for qualified opinion” section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

As detailed in our auditor’s report dated 29 March 2023, we
expressed a qualified opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of Group as at and for the year ended 31 December
2022 due to the scope limitations on the carrying values of the
Group’s interest in a private equity fund (the “Fund”) accounted
for as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and the
corresponding net unrealised fair value loss.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the Fund’s carrying value
includes the Group’s interest in three underlying investments: (1)
an unsecured redeemable bonds issued by Emerge Ventures Limited
(“EV”), a private company, (the “EV Bond”); (2) an unsecured
redeemable bonds issued by A Metaverse Company (“AMC”), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “AMC Bond”); and (3) the listed shares
of AMC (the “AMC Shares”).
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As detailed in note 19, the AMC Bond was matured in February
2022. Up to the date of this report, the bond is still not redeemed
by AMC. In addition, the trading of AMC’s shares had been
suspended on the Stock Exchange since 1 April 2022 and AMC had
not published its financial information for any financial period after
the six months ended 30 June 2021. Subsequent to the Group’s
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022, AMC has published its audited consolidated
financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2022, and its interim financial information for the periods ended 30
June 2022 and 2023. And the trading of its shares has been resumed
on 6 November 2023.

Based on AMC’s recent published financial information,
management conducted fair value assessment on the AMC Bond
with the assistance of an independent valuer, and determined
that the fair value of Group’s interest in AMC Bond amounted to
approximately HK$11,443,000 as at 31 December 2023. Together
with the quoted price of the Group’s interest in AMC Shares
of approximately HK$2,715,000 as at 31 December 2023, an
unrealised fair value loss of approximately HK$5,793,000 on the
Group’s interests in the AMC Bond and AMC Shares was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2023. We have obtained sufficient
appropriate audit evidence relating to the carrying values of the
Group’s interests in the AMC Bond and AMC Shares as at 31
December 2023.

However, since there are scope limitations on the carrying values of
the AMC Bond and AMC Shares as at 31 December 2022 and on the
corresponding unrealised fair value loss recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2022, our opinion on the current
year’s consolidated financial statements is inevitably being modified
because of the possible effects on the current year’s unrealised fair
value loss recognised, and the comparability of the current year’s
figures and the corresponding figures in respect of the Group’s
consolidated financial performance and consolidated financial
position.

In respect of the EV Bond, as also detailed in note 19, the bond
was matured in January 2022. Up to the date of this report, the
bond is still not redeemed by the issuer and no audited financial
information of EV for all years since 31 December 2021 have been

provided by EV to the Fund or to the Group.

Based on the net assets statements of the Fund and limited available
financial information and relevant supporting information of EV,
management conducted fair value assessments on EV Bond with
the assistance from an independent valuer, and determined the
fair value of the Groupys interest in the EV Bond is approximately
HK$5,979,000 as at 31 December 2023, resulting an unrealised
gain of approximately HK$682,000 recognised for the year ended
31 December 2023. Neither the Fund nor the Group were provided
with sufficient and appropriate information about the status of
the operations and financial position of EV for management’s and
valuer’s assessments of the recoverability and the carrying value of
the Group’s interests in the EV Bond as at 31 December 2023.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Management was unable to provide us with other sources of
information or other evidence to support the appropriateness of
the key inputs and assumptions adopted by management in their
assessments of the determination of the carrying values of the
EV Bond as at 31 December 2022 and 2023. As a consequence,
we were unable to assess the fair value of the EV Bond and there
were no other satisfactory procedures that we could perform to
determine whether any adjustments to the Group’s interests in the
EV Bond as at 31 December 2023 are necessary. Any adjustments
to the carrying value of the Group’s interests in the EV Bond as at
31 December 2022 and 2023 could have a significant consequential
effect on the unrealised fair value loss recognised in profit or loss
arising from the Fund as reported by the Group for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2023.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matters described in the “Basis for qualified
opinion” section, we have determined the matters described below

to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements” section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit

opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matter

Impairment of accounts receivable

As at 31 December 2023, the
Group had accounts receivable
amounting to HK$23.2 million,
before impairment of HK$7.1
million. The Group’s accounting
for impairment on accounts
receivable was based on a
lifetime expected credit loss
(“ECL”) under the simplified
approach, and the measurement
on the Group’s accounts
receivable under such approach
was estimated by management
through the application of
judgement and use of highly
subjective assumptions. The
impact of economic factors,
both current and future, and
forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors were also
considered in management’s
assessment of the likelihood of

recovery from customers.

Management engaged an
independent professional valuer
to determine the valuation
models for the ECL assessment.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3, 20 and
36(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

Bison Finance Group Limited

How our audit addressed

the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures included:

assess the internal control
over ECL assessment

processes;

assess the competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of the independent
professional valuer engaged
by management;

assess the inputs and
historical loss patterns
used by the Group in
calculating the ECL
impairment allowance
on a sample basis by
agreeing details to
respective transaction
records, checking the
ageing classification,
historical default data
and forwardlooking

assumptions involved;

examine the working files
and modelling documents
the

methodology, procedures

to understand

and assumptions involved
and evaluating these
documents against HKFRS

9 requirements;

evaluate whether the
historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted
based on the current
economic conditions
and forward-looking

information;

review the subsequent
settlements after the year
end to assess the adequacy

of impairment allowance.
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed

the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans receivable

As at 31 December 2023 the
Group had loans receivable
amounting to HK§$24.1
million, before impairment of
HK$7.9 million. The Group’s
accounting for impairment
on loans receivable was based
on the general approach,
and the measurement on the
Group’s loans receivable under
such approach was estimated
by management through an
application of judgement
and use of highly subjective
assumptions including the
identification of loss stages,
estimates of probability of
default, loss given default,
exposures at default and
discount rates, adjustments for
forward looking information
and other adjustment factors.
Management judgement was
involved in the selection of
those parameters and the
application of the assumptions.

Management engaged an
independent professional
valuer to determine the
valuation models for the ECL

assessment.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3, 21, 22
and 36(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

Our audit procedures included:

C assess the internal control
over the monitoring of

loans receivable;

C assessing the inputs used
by the Group in the
calculation of the ECL
by agreeing the details to
the loan agreements and
checking the contractual
due dates;

. assessing the loss stages,
recovery rates by reference
to financial information
of the debtors and their
credit rating, if available,
checking forward-looking

assumptions involved;

° assess the competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of the independent
professional valuer engaged
by management;

. understand and discuss
with management for
judgements used under the
ECL approach;

C examine the working
files and modelling
documents to evaluate the
methodology, procedures
and assumption adopted
during the calculation
of the ECL and staging
allocation.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. As described in
the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section above, we are unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the carrying value
of the Group’s interest in the EV Bond as at 31 December 2023.
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other
information is materially misstated with respect to these matters.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Mr. Chan Sai Ho.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024

Chan Sai Ho

Practising certificate number P07705
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Revenue

Other income and other losses, net

Cost of services provided

Staff expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation

Reversal of/(provision for) impairment
losses on financial assets, net

Provision for impairment losses on
non-current assets

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Other operating expenses, net

Finance costs

Loss before tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss and total comprehensive loss
for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted
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Non-current assets

Property and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Accounts receivable

Loans receivable

Loan to a related company
Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Current liabilities
Accounts payable

Other payables and accruals
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Promissory note

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

The consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 205 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and were

signed on its behalf.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-FZ =+ H =T —HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR BEH N
Share
held for Share
Share Share  share award option  Contributed
capital premium scheme reserve surplus
Rey bRt 8l TRt L
Rk W HHZRR ] B
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS'000
T #kTx #kTn #kTx #kTn
At 1 January 2022 RZBZZE-H-R 142,184 288,740 (40,949) 4677 531,569
Loss and total comprehensive FREER
loss for the year 2HERAH = = = = =
Transfer upon deregistration of REH—FHEA K
a subsidiary i = = = = =
Transfer upon termination of TR I 9 Bt 6
share award scheme g - - 40,949 = =
Transfer from share option R R e A
reserve upon the forfeiture of TR R
share options (Note 29(5) (W) - - - (33) -
At 31 December 2022 and e
1 January 2023 FIAZH-HR
It et i 142,184 288,740% = 430 531,369*
Loss and total comprehensive ERERR2EER
loss for the year a5 = = = = =
Transfer from share option TRE BB e P
reserve upon the forfeiture of et
share options (Note 29(5) (Witp) - = = (1,21) -
At 31 December 2023 REBZZE
FZAZFR 142,184 288,740% - 3051% 531,569¢
These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of a negative *

amount of HK$83,543,000 (2022: a negative amount of HK$62,907,000)

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Bison Finance Group Limited

Other Exchange
ShE
JElb B L1
HK$000 HK$'000
L ST L ST
(605) (5,650)
605 -
- (5,650)*
- (5,650)*
7% S5 fot A AR L 556

62,907,0007C) °

Accumulated
losses Total

Rit
17 &t
HK$'000 HKS'000
e #kr
(717,897) 202,369
(123,092) (13,09)
(605) -
(40,949) -
353 -

(881,890)% 9,211

2636)  (063)
111 =
(901,253 38641

Non-
controlling
interest
Flk
£
HKS'000
T

(2]

Total
equity

L £4]
Al
HK$'000
T

200,369

(13,09)

77

(20,638)

58,639

LR BES IR IR A 45 A R &
B U5 183,543,00000 ( =& AR - B BRI



Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
— Finance costs
— Interest income
— Depreciation and amortisation
— Dividend income from investments
in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
— Provision for impairment loss on
property and equipment and
right-of-use assets
— Gain on lease modification
— Impairment loss on intangible assets
— (Reversal of)/provision for
impairment loss on prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
— Reversal of impairment loss
on accounts receivable
— Reversal of impairment loss on
loans receivable
— (Reversal of)/Provision for
impairment loss on a loan to
a related company
— Net realised and unrealised
losses on financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

Operating loss before changes in
working capital

Decrease in accounts receivable

Decrease in loans receivable

Decrease in loan to a related company

Increase in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
Decrease in an amount due

from a related company
Decrease in cash held on

behalf of clients
Decrease in pledged deposits
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable

Decrease in other payables and accruals

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_FZ =+ H =T —HIEFE
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W T T
(20,631)
9,473

(1,571)
993

(158)
(50)

(563)
(2,883)

(14,258)

(2,905)

5,383

(27,170)
7,020
16,900
5,234

(8,020)

361

(1,452)

(126,732)
9,491

(1,765)
15,384

(780)

20,487
(1,856)
23,418
1,204
(2,243)

(1,801)
3,455

39,657

(22,081)
26,501

(444)
513
79
375

(2,393)

(20,297)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEFZ -+ H =t —HILFE

Cash used in operations
Interest received

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash used in
operating activities

Cash flows from
investing activities

Bank interest received

Dividend income received

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from capital withdrawal of
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from refund of non-pledged
time deposits with original
maturity of more than three months
when acquired

New non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of more than
three months when acquired

Disposal of subsidiaries

Payment for purchase of property,

plant and equipment

Net cash generated from
investing activities

Bison Finance Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE_FZ -+ A=t —HILFE

2023 2022
RS —EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Bt 5 W T T T

Cash flows from R H R BB & E

financing activities
Principal portion of lease payments GENER Zzlgé’z\%lgﬁi}' (8,821) (10,063)
Interest element of lease payments g 1_," Z *U B (473) (414)
New bank loans and other HTERAT H At £ 2K

borrowings raised — 3,000
Repayment of bank loans and 1B IR SR AT B 3K S FLAth i 3K

other borrowings - (3,000)
Interest paid 2 At FLE (1,135) (5,651)
Net cash used in il & Y B e ) B 4 A

financing activities (10,429) (16,128)
Net decrease in cash and Wa kB E&FEDEA

cash equivalents T (6,695) (23,266)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHB & RBEEEY

beginning of year 119,131 142,397
Cash and cash equivalents ERBERBREEFEHD

at end of year 112,436 119,131

Analysis of balances of cash and B & KB 4% E Y&

cash equivalents Vi
Cash and bank balances 4 S SRAT &G iR 24 112,436 119,131
Non-pledged time deposits FE AL E W AF K 24 - 5,008
Cash and cash equivalents &5 W IR UL 3% P 21 B &

as stated in the consolidated KBl &EEY

statement of financial position 112,436 124,139
Non-pledged time deposits with [ENGER B sk R ]

original maturity of more than H 2 I35 e WA 3k

three months when acquired - (5,008)
Cash and cash equivalents HOBHERERMINNR &

as stated in the consolidated KBl &EEY

statement of cash flows 112,436 119,131
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Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
company incorporated in Bermuda and has its registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
6th Floor, China Taiping Finance Centre, 18 King Wah Road,
North Point, Hong Kong. During the year, the Group was

principally engaged in the provision of financial services.

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding
company and the ultimate holding company of the Company
are Bliss Chance Global Limited (“Bliss Chance”) and
Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited (“Bison Capital”)
respectively. Bliss Chance and Bison Capital are incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands.

On 8 October 2021, the Company was notified by Bliss
Chance that it received a letter regarding the appointment
of two joint and several receivers (the “Receivers”)
over 680,508,005 shares of the Company (the “Charged
Shares”), which were charged under a share charge executed
by Bliss Chance as the chargor and Fruitful Worldwide
Limited as chargee (the “Share Charge”). Based on the
information provided by Bliss Chance, the Receivers were
appointed by Fruitful Worldwide Limited due to non payment
of quarterly fixed dividend by Bliss Chance in accordance
with the terms of an investment agreement dated 17 May
2017 which constitutes an event of default pursuant to the
Share Charge, causing the security under the Share Charge
become immediately enforceable.

On 29 December 2021, the Receivers have entered into a
memorandum of understanding with an interested party in
relation to the possible sale of the Charged Shares which was
subsequently terminated in June 2022.

After making appropriate enquiries with the Receivers, the
Receivers indicated that (i) they are unable to actively look
for potential purchaser for the controlling stake (i.e. 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company) (the “Controlling
Stake”); and (ii) they are not in discussion with a potential
purchaser over the Controlling Stake and the Company
understands that an offer on the Charged Shares is unlikely to

be imminent.

Up to the date of this report, no further action was taken by
the Receivers and there is no change to the Group’s holding

companies.
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The class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise
specified. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows:

Name of company

ik

Bison Technology Limited (Note (ii))
Bison Technology Limited (W)
Bison Corporate Finance Limited
ARERAERRAR

Bison Financial (Hong Kong) Limited

Bison (HK) Management Services Limited

BTS Investment Limited

BTY Investment Limited

Creative Time Global Limited

Initial Glory Limited

MB-Vision Limited

Plenty Prestige Management Limited
Premier Future Limited

Shangtai Asset Management Limited

Silver Sea Limited

Target Capital Management Limited
REGREHARAR

T ARENEHEERERAA
o5 BRI B A TR A )

AMTEC Technolgy (HK) Limited

Issued and paid-

Place of incorporation/ up share capital
operation Note (i)
‘ ERTRME
ol IS 3 BeAe (WERE (i)
The British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong usstt
KBELHE /& HETL
Hong Kong HK$7,000,001
%§ﬁ§ 5 #7,000,001 7C
Hong Kong HKs1
#h %
Hong Kong HKS$1
£t B
Cayman Islands USS0,0}
B2 REE 0.03% 7T
Cayman Islands USS0,0}
2 RS 0.00% 7t
The British Virgin Islands USSJ
S LR 1370
The British Virgin Islands usst
KEELEL i
Hong Kong HKS2
v’g Wt
The British Virgin Islands Uss1
KHELED T
The British Virgin [slands usst
BB E LR 1370
Cayman Islands Uss0.02
HemE 0.02% 7T
Hon, Kong HKS$1
% kb
Hong Kong HK$30,000,000
ﬁ% 5 30,000,000 7C
The PRC (Note (iii) S$$700,000
TR (Hf it i) 700,0005 TG
The PRC (Note (iv)) 553,000,000
R (Hfitav)) 3,000,000 7G
Hong Kong (Note (v)) HK$100
%‘%/W;ﬁm/ #1007

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

AR ) M A 5 HE T2 b
Direct Indirect
HE i 4%
100 B
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
100 B
100 -
B 100
100
100 B
100
100
B 100
- 100
100
- 51%

H %

B 5 A 45 WA > B 35 B S0 325 75
Jbe o AR 2% ) B 4 F B REAE AR

Principal activities

FEEH

Investment holding

BEER

Provision of advisory services on
COrPOrate finance

R {5t A8 T D A

Investment holding

BB

Provision of management services

R TR

Provision of fund management

services

TR S T AR 7

Provision of fund management
services

TR R

Investment holding

BB

Investment holding

13 <EL13

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding

SRR

Investment holding

Era el

Provision of fund management
services

SR R

Investment holding

S BHER

Provision of asset management,
investment advisory, fund advisory
and other consultancy services

REEEER HERM Ee
L A o o

Investment holding

BEER

Software development

R 8

Provision of information

fRAEH

SEERSARA A



Notes:

@) The class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise

specified.
(ii) It is formerly known as Acton Eagle Limited.

(iii) It is registered as a limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong Kong

or Macao’s sole proprietorship of legal person).

(iv) It is incorporated on 12 April 2023, and registered as a
limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macao’s sole

proprictorship of legal person).

v) It is incorporated on 3 April 2023, and registered as a limited
liability company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistency applied to all of the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair values. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS”), which is
also the functional currency of the Company, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an

investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the exchange
fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
consolidated financial statements:

HKEFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Policies

Practice Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from

a Single Transaction

Amendments to International Tax Reform —

HKAS 12 Pillar Two Model Rules

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The nature and the impact of the new and revised
HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described

below:

(@)

()

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
The Group has disclosed the material accounting
policy information in note 2 to the financial
statements. The amendments did not have any
impact on the measurement, recognition or
presentation of any items in the Group’s financial

statements.

Upon the application of the amendments, the
Group has determined the temporary differences
arising from right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. However, they did not have
any material impact on the overall deferred tax
balances presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position as the related deferred tax
balances qualified for offsetting under HKAS 12.
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The Group has several subsidiaries operating in Hong
Kong which are obliged to pay LSP to employees
under certain circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group
makes mandatory MPF contributions to the trustee
who administers the assets held in a trust solely for
the retirement benefits of each individual employee.
Offsetting of LSP against an employee’s accrued
retirement benefits derived from employers’ MPF
contributions was allowed under the Employment
Ordinance (Cap.57). In June 2022, the Government of
the HKSAR gazetted the Employment and Retirement
Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”) which abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions to offset severance payment and LSP (the
“Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take effect
on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). In addition,
under the Amendment Ordinance, the last month’s
salary immediately preceding the Transition Date
(instead of the date of termination of employment) is
used to calculate the portion of LSP in respect of the

employment period before the Transition Date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPEF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong’y which provides guidance for
the accounting for the offsetting mechanism and the
impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting

mechanism in Hong Kong.

The abovementioned change in accounting policy does
not have any material impact on the Group’s results and

financial position.
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The Group has not applied the following revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these consolidated financial statements. The Group
intends to apply these revised HKFRS, if applicable,
when they become effective.

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its

HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture’®

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback!
Amendments to
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments’)'*
Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with
HKAS 1 Covenants (the “2022
Amendments’)"*

Classification of Liabilities as

Amendments to
HKAS 7 and Arrangements‘
HKERS 7

Supplier Finance

Amendments to
HKAS 21

Lack of ]:"chamgeabj]it)/2

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

+ As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no

change in conclusion

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far the Group has concluded that
the adoption of the revised standards is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date
fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a
business when the acquired set of activities and
assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability

to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the

acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.
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The Group measures its listed and unlisted
equity investments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement

date. The fair value measurement is based on the

presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in

the absence of a principal market, in the most

advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that

market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset

takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another

market participant that would use the asset in its

highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are

appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value
is measured or disclosed in the consolidated

financial statements are categorised within the fair

value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 -

Level 2 =

Level 3 -

based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

based on valuation techniques

for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required (other than deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or CGU’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the
asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.
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An assessment is made at the end of each
reporting period as to whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill
is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy

for that revalued asset.

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the

Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the

Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of

the Group;

or
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(b) the party is an entity where any of the

following conditions applies:

®

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Bison Finance Group Limited

the entity and the Group are members

of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint

ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(@);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.

(b)
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Property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended

use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property
and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property
and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-
line basis to write off the cost of each item of
property and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates

used for this purpose are as follows:

Leaschold improvements Over the remaining
lease term

Audio and visual equipment 5 — 7 years

Hardware and software 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 — 7 years

Where parts of an item of property and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,

at least at each financial year end.
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An item of property and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of

each reporting period.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives represent
fund contracts, customer relationship and website
and mobile apps which are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

of 5 to 10 years.

Intangible asset with an indefinite useful live
represents a licence and is tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the CGU level.
Such intangible asset is not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted

for on a prospective basis.
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The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-
of-use assets representing the right to use
the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets are recognised
at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining
lease term
Motor vehicle 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset
transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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Bison Finance Group Limited

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at
the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that

triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.
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The Group applies the short-term
lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases of office equipment
(that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to leases
that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies
at lease inception each of its lease as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not
transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When
a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income from operating

leases is recognised in accordance with note

2.4(0)(ii)(a).

Leases in which the Group does not
transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When
the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
subleases are classified as a finance lease
or as an operating lease with reference to
the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption
described in note 2.4(g)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them.
With the exception of accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified
and measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.
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The Group’s business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages
its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling
the financial assets, or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost
are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling,
Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

The subsequent measurement of financial
assets depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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This category includes equity investments 5% BRI B 36 A 4 I dE R

which the Group had not irrevocably AT f B b AR 5 4 N A E(E
elected to classify at fair value through other wh A HoAth 2 T 4 2 A
comprehensive income. Dividends on the HXZIK*&%Z H AT 2R A ﬁﬁ
equity investments are also recognised as _LH% HQZIKTQQE/J Hﬁ,u\
other income in the consolidated statement A GEE Rt RN FERR 2%/\
of profit or loss when the right of payment A o

has been established.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a SRUVERE (SmE A &
part of a financial asset or part of a group AilE = — sk — 4
of similar financial assets) is primarily JEALL A <5 Pl L v —
derecognised (i.e., removed from the ) I%f?ﬁﬂ h% LT #
Group’s consolidated statement of financial JJ:ﬁﬁ (AR AEEEZE S
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When the Group has transferred its rights A AR E AR B EHAE
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control of the asset, the Group continues to

recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For
credit exposures for which there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next
12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
The Group considers that there has been
a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.
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The Group considers a financial asset in
default when contractual payments are 90
days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach
and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except
for accounts receivable which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instruments for which
credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial
recognition and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 —  Financial instruments for
which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 —  Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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For accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or when
the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include lease
liabilities, accounts payable, other payables
and promissory note.
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The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

After initial recognition, accounts and
other payables and promissory note are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged

or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in
the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

The Group maintains scgrcgatcd clients’ accounts
with licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising
from normal business in connection with the
Groupys brokerage activities. The cash held on
behalf of clients is restricted and governed by
the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules
(Chapter 5711) of the laws of Hong Kong under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group
has recognised the corresponding clients” accounts

payable to respective clients.

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
financial position comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with
a maturity of generally within three months that
are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value held for the purpose of meeting short-term

cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, and short-term
deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as
a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit or loss net of any

reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability
method, on all temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all

taxable temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

0 in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Revenue from contracts with customers
is recognised when control services is
transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract
includes a variable amount, the amount
of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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If a contract meets all the criteria for
a contract with a customer at contract
inception, the Group does not reassess
those criteria unless there is an indication
of a significant change in facts and
circumstances. When there is an indication
of a significant change and deterioration in a
customer’s ability to pay the consideration,
it triggers the Group to reassess the
contract by considering the customer’s
ability and intention to pay that amount
of consideration when it is due. When
the Group considers the customer has no
ability to pay the consideration for the
remaining services after reassessment, the
Group does not recognise revenue from the
contract for the remaining period until all
or substantially all consideration is received
from the customer with no remaining
obligations to transfer services to the
customer.

Financial advisory and consultancy
fee income is recognised at a point in
time on completion of services.

Fund management service income
is recognised over time on a time-
proportion basis as services are
provided. Management fee is
calculated either at a percentage of
client’s committed contribution or
at a percentage of the net asset value
of each fund and performance fee is
calculated based on a fixed percentage
of the increment in the net asset value
during the relevant performance
period. Fund advisory service income
is recognised over time on a time-
proportion basis as services are
provided. Advisory fee is calculated
based on committed contribution or
the net asset value of the investment
funds.
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Bison Finance Group Limited

External asset management advisory
commission income is recognised
at a point in time when the Group
refers individuals to the third party
financial institutions for account
opening. Commission is calculated
based on percentage of the brokerage
commission earned by the third
party financial institutions from the
individuals. Hence, the commission
gives rise to variable consideration
which is constrained until the
individuals trade.

Rental income is rccogniscd on a
time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Interest income from loan financing
is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when
the shareholders right to receive
payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements. Interim
dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Companyys memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.

A contract liability is recognised when a payment
is received or a payment is due (whichever
is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the cmployccs’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specific amount
for the employees in the PRC, pursuant to the
local municipal government regulations. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.
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The MPF Scheme and the central pension
scheme in the PRC are defined contribution
plans. Forfeited contributions will not be
used by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contributions. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
The capitalisation of such borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sales are interrupted or
complete.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the consolidated
financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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Non—monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or

profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or
income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to
an advance consideration, the date of initial
transaction is the date on which the Group
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of

the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of PRC subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the

transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve, except to the extent that
the differences are attributable to non-controlling
interest. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for accounts receivable.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking

estimates are analysed.

For fund management fees receivable, the Group also
takes into account the recoverable amount of the
underlying assets that can be realised from each of the

managed funds to arrive at the ECL.

Loans receivable were based on probability of default
approach to estimate the ECLs under general approach,
and the measurement of the Groupys loans receivable
under such approach was estimated by management
through an application of judgement and use of highly
subjective assumptions including the identification of
loss stages, estimation of probability of defaults based
on their credit ratings; loss given default based on the
recovery rate, explosures at default rate, adjustment
for forward-looking information and other adjustment

factors.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs
on the Groupys accounts receivable and loans receivable
is disclosed in note 20, 21 and 22 to the consolidated

financial statements, respectively.

88 i R I ) R S A 2 T Y JRE S 9B
BT AR o A KR B AR MR I o AR AR
T BAE A e R IR S 1 B R A o
100 > A1 FE ) A AR DL ( Wiﬁ&/@
Wiﬁwﬁiﬁfiﬁ FEREAL

AE 2 B A R U@ﬁﬁ
WELﬁﬁ“fﬁﬁiﬁ i o
E A R T LU > Sl A A
Lk -3k

AL M Wi A B B A AR T
% 1T 41 T B B A% 3 4 58 B 06 A
oA 7 1 T i [E] A > DA o T
R EEH-

JE Wi £ %ML%MK%HJ &
J7 T B TE G B 1R W E
@%ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ%$%@ﬁw
B 2 FEAG - ZH KO ) B RN A R
BB SR e B R
PE A5 B0 5 E AMh w1 0 8 A MR - L
[ i R 1 3 44 15 O 3 - 9 A JEL B R
W HT BE MEAS EAE Y 5 R o Ath 58
BHRE-

R S B R A R~ TR RS IR
&ﬁ%ﬁ%%@zﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
i T E K AL 5T MG S B E N &
BB BRI AL B TR ) A A IR L R
O o AN 4R B 1 IR SR S B 1 AR B
T 34 78 35 R B 1) T8 R T A 4 7 AR
RAKEFHERELD - A AL
1] R A e e B B Wi R K ) TR A A B
i 15 R 0 Bl A B S R B AR
20~ 21 Moo 7% o

HESMEHRAGRAA



The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including
the right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting
period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such
an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value-in-use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The information about the property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets is disclosed in

notes 15 and 17, respectively.

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such
as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The private equity fund has been valued based on the
net asset value which considers the fair values of the
underlying investments. The Group classifies the fair
value of these investments as Level 3 (2022: Level 3)
as the private equity fund invested in two (2022: two)
unlisted bond investments (2022: and one suspended
listed equity investment) during the year. The fair value
of the private equity fund at 31 December 2023 was
HK$23,850,000 (2022: HK$29,465,000). Further
details are included in note 19 to the consolidated

financial statements.

No operating segment information is presented as the
Group only operates in one single operating segment, i.e.,
the financial services which comprise licensed businesses
including provision of investment advisory services to fund
management, corporate finance advisory service, securities
services, external asset management services and fund
management services.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s non-current
assets were mainly located in Hong Kong.

Revenue attributed from customers that accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s total revenue during the years is as

follows:
Customer A % FA
Customer D % F D
Customer C -4=Te
Customer B % FB

* Revenue from relevant customer was less than 10% of the Group’s

total revenue for the respective year.
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S I S —
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An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from other sources

— Interest income on loans receivable

Total

Types of services

Fund management service income*

External asset management advisory
commission income

Financial advisory and consultancy
fee income

Others

Total

WA BT

2023 2022
- o S -
HKS$’000 HK$’000

W T

#E T T

KF A H WA 34,392 39,529
Al A IR G Y A
— JRE i B AL A 1,174 1,428
Mt 35,566 40,957
2023 2022
SROEE R
HK$’000 HKS$’000

T

R 25 28

T T

B4 BROB U A+ 5,428 13,615
AN A SR AR

e A 27,032 24,651
SURS B I % s R A

1,889 1,163

HAh 43 100

MGt 34,392 39,529

Fund management service income was earned by subsidiaries
of the Group acting as cither general partners, investment
advisors or investment managers in investment funds which
hold equity and/or debt securities as underlying investments
in companies. The investment funds invest in various
companies including third party companies and companies
in which Mr. Xu Peixin (“Mr. XU”), an executive director
of the Company, or his close associate holds shareholdings,
either directly or indirectly, or is a director of such
companies which were not consolidated in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Certain investments funds
have committed contribution by group companies of the
preference shareholder of the Company's holding company as
limited partner or shareholder which would not be involved

in the management or control of the funds.

Fund management service income was calculated cither at a
percentage of the committed contribution of the investors
in the funds or at a percentage of the net asset value of the

funds.
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Set out below are the book values of the investment T RA B E R LR A &/EX H

portfolios of the funds that have invested in, inter alia, HERBBABN AR MWESERER
companies related to Mr. XU and/or his close family B2 WRTHAE :
member:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T T

Book values of the funds’ investments in %é‘z\ﬁ/{\gﬁi@%ﬁiﬁ/ﬁ
companies related to Mr. Xu and/or HEZRBLEA BN A

his close family member: B 5 & B B T {E
— in funds whose management fees —ZERePHEM
are calculated at a percentage of ¥ S R GE
committed contribution of HEME D LE
the funds* (= 233,775 260,247
— in funds whose management fees —ZERePHEM
are calculated at a percentage of B EET
net asset value of the fund* EEEER A
Hx 1,616,679 1,563,649
Total B 1,850,454 1,823,896
* Book values of the funds’ investments above are extracted & it R B 1) MR T (T A Bk ST
from segregated portfolio reports issued by the independent B ESEMAER B REH
third party fund administrators. B
In addition, set out below are the management fee and AN > T R BN A s w) S w AR
performance fee (if applicable) of the funds in which TR ERAFRE EAAN
group companies of the preference shareholder of the WREMEERREENAEREGE A
Company’s holding company have invested (as limited o ) B R A
partner or sharcholder which would not be involved in ({28 )

the management or control of the funds):

2023 2022
R =8 X
HKS$’000 HK$’000

T T T

Management fees (=L 5,428 13,615

HASRERARA A



2023 2022
SRI=EE F

HKS$’000 HK$ 000

W T T T

Services transferred at a point in time e 755 7 AR IR FH] 2% e £S 28,964 25,914

Services transferred over time e 55 B By ] o B 5,428 13,615

Total st 34,392 39,529
The following table shows the amount of revenue RSN R R A R A A E
recognised in the current reporting period that was T 7 A e 4 1A D e i 2 UG A

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:

2023 2022
TR = S
HKS$’000 HK$ 000

T T o

Financial advisory business T 5 i ) 26 10 -

Securities service business ?ﬁ#ﬂﬁ%%%}% - 57

Total B 10 57
Information about the Group s performance obligation A B A 4 18] 4 24T 1 B R A
is summarised in the revenue recognition paragraph of [ B FF R | T A e RR B A
“Material accounting policics”. Al o
The performance obligations are satisfied upon services JB % FAT R 42 1 R 5 IRE 2 R T A
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to A MR H R 30290 H A F
90 days from the date of billings. o
Except for fund management service, the Group has BRIE S IRES A1 AREEER (K
applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of s A MR SE1sgE S 1 B

PP p p [RaliaSLap e — =

HKFRS 15 and does not disclose information about the 0 ] 47 RE BT ¥ > AS 8RR FE T
remaining performance obligations that have original BR D A — 4F 1 o iR R 4 AT A B &
expected durations of one year or less. #l o

Bison Finance Group Limited



The amounts of transaction prices (excluding the

variable considerations) allocated to the remaining

performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially

unsatisfied) for fund management service income

which is calculated at a percentage of the committed

contribution of the funds as at 31 December are as

follows:

Amounts expected to be recognised
as revenue:
Within one year
After one year

Total

Bank interest income

Dividend income from the investments in
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Rental income from a related company

Sundry revenue

Total other income

Exchange losses, net

Net realised and unrealised gains/ (losses)
on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 19)

— Listed and unlisted equity investments

— Investment in a private equity fund

Subtotal
Total other losses

Total other income and other losses

R ZH=1—H EE K
HEH 2 Rt A 2 e
A 5 W A BR N (OR JB AT 808 7 oK B
17) JE ) FAT B 22 5 18 (BR ] S8 AUfE

AN AR
2023
- S -3
HKS$’000
3 BT
TERHERR AU A I & %8 -
— 4R -
— AR -
Mt -
2023
—E =
HK$’000
T
SRAT A B A 397
Yo e fEEFAHE 2
SREERENRE
YA 158
R B B WA A 4
A -
M TE A 79
HoAth g A ZEFH 634
[ 4. s 45 3 35 (2,769)
e s REEFFA B Z
SREERND B K&
KB (EiE)
TR (M it19)
— BT I b T R
®& 232
— AR &
BE (5,615)
/NeT (5,383)
HC At s 48 48 (8,152)
Ho At A K HoAt s 18
ok (7,518)

2022
— g

HK$’ 000
T oo

1,474

1,474

2022

HKVWE
ki AT

337

184

203
190

914

(2,047)

(2,848)
(36,809)
(39,657)

(41,704)

(40,790)
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The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

A AL [ () BR B AT RS IR A B, (REA)

(crediting): F| & THAR B
2023 2022
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
#HT oo BT
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 17) Y& S (M aE7) - 3,158
Depreciation (note 15) e (Mfatis)
— Property and equipment e E Y& 793 2,705
— Right-of-use assets — i MG 200 9,521
993 15,384
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment losses Pl I (E M 1R
on financial assets, net (M) /ﬁ’%ﬁ T HH
— Accounts receivable (note 20) _Fﬁ R K (Mt iE20) (2,883) (2,243)
— Loans receivable (note 21) — B B K (M at21) (14,258) (1,801)
— Loan to a related company (note 22) —®A ?’ E% /N
B (K iE22) (2,905) 3,455
— Prepayments, deposits and other — TR AT BIE - H e
receivables (note 18) HCAth B SR R
(Mtitis) (563) 1,204
Total At (20,609) 615
Provision for impairment losses on FF U B (e 1R
non-current assets ﬁ;’ﬁ
— Intangible assets (note 17) W& E (Mfat17) - 23,418
— Property and equipment and — W) 2 B iR DA K
right-of-use assets (note 15) i M
(Btit1s) - 20,487
Total Mt - 43,905
Exchange losses, net B 51, 5 48 15 48 (2,769) (2,047)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 30) H B R B 2 ) i AR
(M7t30) (50) (780)
Lease payments not included in Kt AHE&ESEZ
the measurement of lease liabilities L& A5 3Kk 226 582
Auditor’s remuneration 12 B 4 2,160 2,400
Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’ g & & Al B s (A E4E
and chief executive’s remuneration): HHLESITHAR
i) -
— Wages and salaries — L& KH4 16,547 16,867
— Pension scheme contributions — IR ARG E /T}\ (5t
(defined contribution scheme)* LG #]) 462 645
Total st 17,009 17,512
* There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group & j[t 3% W BE BT p AR A (4 A 4R ) IR

B BT I OK

as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.
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An analysis of other operating expenses, net is as follows:

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Building management fees and air-conditioning
charges
Entertainment
Consultancy fees
Gain of lease modification (note 16)
Government rent and rates
Information and technology expenses
Lease charges for short-term leases (note 31(c))

Legal and professional fees

Transportation and travelling expenses
Miscellaneous

Total

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on a promissory note

Other interest cxpenses

Total

2023
SRS
HKS$’000
W T
12 BRI P 42

— AR 1,800

— I FEHIR TS 360
PR R SR IREE T E-

M 1,922
JFEE T e 4% 909
7K 7 2 511
MEEFT W s (M 7E16) -
o AH K 7 i 448
&R K Bh 4 S 656
Y ENHE S H

(KfiE31(c) 226
B 2,854
A M 2= ik B 32 931
e TH 2,091
o 12,708

Pl & LA A3 AT AR
2023
TREUE
HKS$’000
W T
HEAFEZFE 473
LR 2 AR 9,000
HoAth A1) 2 BA 52 -
HEr 9,473

HoAth 588 2 B BT IR

2022

DN > SN
HK$ 000
oo

2,000
400

1,908
574
374

(1,856)
438
792

582
5,006

209
3,077

13,504

2022

—
HK$ 000

T T

414
9,000
77

9,491
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Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, W4 CEMRD - Fi ARG 6

disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), 383(1)(a) > (b)> (C)&(fﬂl&& (AT (P
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part B a1 Bk B SRR B E > ARAE
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits A N s AT BN B B R AT

of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2023 2022
RO = X
HKS$’000 HK$’000

T T T

Fees 4 1,401 1,500
Other emoluments: HAth B 4
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fa B REY
i Al 4,793 4,801
Pension scheme contributions AR 4 FHE L 3K 64 62
Subtotal /Nt 4,857 4,863
Total HEr 6,258 6,363
During the prior years, share options were granted to REREFEE  CESE S AEEH Tﬂi1
directors in respect of their services to the Group, further i 5 ) ﬁi#:fx b M FE I R S A
details of which are included in note 29 to the consolidated P85 i R B G20 o A B B M R 45 A 1R
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has Tt 7 W R 1) 5% S T RE 1) SO AE (BN 9%
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or HHMMEE sEAFEEE S MBRERN
loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of o R I SCHE S5 B Y B R B R

grant and the amount included in the consolidated financial
statements for the year is included in the above directors’

remuneration disclosures.

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors AE A ) M ST FE AT E AT R 4
during the year were as follows: W
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T

Independent non-executive B JERATE S
directors:
Dr. QI Daging VPN, 3L 300 300
Mr. CHEN Yigong BN LoEAE 150 150
Mr. FENG Zhonghua HhELE 150 150
Total st 600 600
There were no other emoluments payable to the AF A 7 4 \WE{T%L ;'5 %}l T HE S 174 2 Ath T
independent non-executive directors during the year G F A
(2022: Nil).
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For the year ended BEZRO=4
31 December 2023 +ZA=Z+—H
1k 4R
Executive Directors: PiTESE:
Mr XU Peixin (“Mr. XU”) T sE A (TR 4 ])
Mr. SUN Lei (Chief Executive Officer) BELE (TTHHZ)
Mr. ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer) KA (EEHBE)
Subtotal INEE
Non-Executive Director: FEPATES:
Dr. MA Weihua (note (i) R (o)
Total B
For the year ended BEZERO
31 December 2022 +ZA=+—H
1k AR

Executive Directors: T F:
Mr XU Peixin (‘Mr. XU) TR iR (e ])
Mr. SUN Lei (Chief Executive Officer) BRERE (fTHAH)
Mr. ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer) RETHE (BEHEE)
Subtotal 7%
Non-Executive Director: FPATEF:
Dr. MA Weihua F5 B
Total L

Note:

(i) Dr. MA Weihua resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 1

September 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration, and did not receive compensation for
loss of office or as an inducement to join the Group

during the year (2022: Nil).

Directors’
fees

A
HK$’000
i3

200
200
200

600

201

. ,
Directors
fees

HEEE
HKS’000
L T

200
200
200

600

300

900

Salaries,

allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
TNy Y
gLl At 3t 5 At
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
EWH T EHTr  #%Tx
1,760 18 1,978
1,561 28 1,789
1,472 18 1,690
4,793 64 5,457
- - 201
4,793 64 5,658
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
HWAEH A B AR Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BHTT  B¥TT
1,770 17 1,987
1,560 28 1,788
1,471 17 1,688
4,801 62 5,463
- - 300
4,801 62 5,763
ik

() HEEMLRF = HEk
AT HEE

AR 486 778 4F 1A 5T 52 A PR 7 3 B R AT
BN B o B[] 5 S M ) 22
IS 48 DR fe T AR 5 A AS 4R A
A8 il T WS HATE: ] 4 1 B9 2 B (%

AE) o
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The five highest paid employees during the year included
three directors (2022: three directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining two (2022: two) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of

the Company are as follows:

NS AR EBME B GE =4 (=%
AR =) FE G B R RO B 3O
Bt aE10) s HER M4 (% ~ "4 W 4)
H i R B (B JF 2 S5 08 JF B AT B
ANB) FHMEERE T

2023 2022

SR CCE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
EWT L BT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e B Y AR A 1,905 2,690
Pension scheme contributions FERANE S I KF Y 32 36
Total HEt 1,937 2,726

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

e B <2 B A <P LA T 2 3 2 e e B
%&Jﬁiﬁ TEA B {E 8 B AR

Number of employees

2023 2022
TR AR - S
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z F ¥ %1,000,0007C 1 -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 #: %51,000,001 7 &
#: M 1,500,0007C 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 #:%1,500,001 75 &
#: 2 000,0007C - 1
Total st 2 2

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject
to any income tax in Bermuda, the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2022:
HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this subsidiary are
taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%).

Bison Finance Group Limited

MEARE-FHEHE LB E LR
Z R L B > A B IS 1 A B2 R
By T S JoB e e B W R BN AT AR BT A5 B

s ) £ %ME%%@WB"%%{%F{%ZH*
JE SR A U B H B FRe.5% (R
16.5% ) 1 ) 45 TEZIK%I*FEJWJ%"
A R A > 5 B 8 N /] A R A5 B AR R
MAEBERER-ZWNEARNE B
2,000,0007C (— T AF 2,000,000

JC) FA RE SRR Uik B #5208 05% ( & . AR
8‘25% ) 5B > HARMERBL S Al 16.5% (—
T 16.5%) 5B



No provision for the PRC corporate income tax have been

made as the Group did not generate any assessable profits
arising in the PRC for the years ended 31 December 2023

and 2022.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the

Groups operates.

Current tax — HK
— Under—provision in prior years
Deferred tax (note 28)

Total tax expense/ (credit) for the year

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to loss
before tax at applicable statutory tax rates are as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rates of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%)

Different tax rates for specific jurisdictions
Expenses not deductible for tax
Income not subject to tax

Tax effect of tax losses utilised from prior years

Tax losses not recognised
Under provision in respect of prior years

Total tax expense/ (credit)

HRhAEBERBZ —_Z_=F K _F
A=+ — B IRFE R R
B A= AT fo] 8 R i A - T A o R
A SEPT AR B H A

S Ath 3, % 2 8 SR Vi ) T A AR 1 A
JIT AE ) 125 M [ Y BLAT B R E B o

2023 2022
“RI=E R
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
BT BT
R 1H — s

— AR A B A R 7 8
R SE B IE (Bff 7E28) - (3,648)

A FERLIEB
ﬂifﬁ M 7 (3,640)

Ol E B R R BB 7 (K
) BEL IR I A 18 A SR A T

2023 2022
R EE —F
HK$’000 HK's 000
W T BT
IR 5L I s 4R (20,631) (126,732)
F%mmimwa
(=%

mwsﬁEMﬁﬁ (3,404) (20,911)
i A F VA E [ A0 B %

Z 1,014 6,148
AN AT 0B B 5 3,469 6,977
HBLA (3,410) (179)
A8 1 4 B2 1) 9 I

Jies 5 4 0 I 5 2 (592) (370)
oK il L JEL I 18 2,923 4,687
A AR AN 2 7 8
BLIEBA 2 (¥ %) HE %58 7 (3,640)

H % BB AR A



No final dividend is proposed for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

No final dividend in respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2022 was approved and paid during the year
(2022: Nil).

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share amount
is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$20,636,000 (2022: HK$123,092,000).
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue of
1,421,838,398 (2022: 1,421,838,398) during the year, as
used in the basic and diluted loss per share calculation.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 in respect of dilution as the impact of the share
options had an anti-dilution effect in the basic loss per share
amounts presented.

Owned assets
HERE
Leasehold Hardware Furniture
improvements  and software and fixtures
HEREEE  ERERE  KERKE
HKS’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T EW T #% T
31 December 2023 REZBZZETCA
=i
At 31 December 2022 and e S gy |
1 January 2023 =t-HE
“ERT=4-H-H
Cost A 6,556 2,675 1,682
Accumulated depreciation ST o (L
and impairment (6,383) (2,211) (1,264)
Net carrying amount S i £ 173 464 418
At 1 January 2023, net of REZBZ=ZE-A—H>
accumulated depreciation B R0 8 S
and impairment 13 464 418
Additions hE - 503 -
Depreciation provided during the year FRFHETE (152) (374) (267)
At 31 December 2023, net of REBZ=4EFZH
accumulated depreciation SR kRt
and impairment it e 2 593 151
At 31 December 2023 RZZFZZ£42A
=t-H
Cost A 6,556 3,178 1,682
Accumulated depreciation and SRR R
impairment (6,535) (2,585) (1,331)
Net carrying amount I 2 593 151
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EHAKRRE =% =6 =)
= %o

— iiﬁ%*%xuhe

N BRSO R R —F
—H = — H 1k BB B A R R R
(B F ;) o

B BE AR K 0 s 18 AR B AR AR
ﬁl%ﬁ)\?ﬁﬂﬁl&‘iﬁ%%zo 636 ,0007G (-
T AE i %123,092,000) HEoxta
B B

e 535 i 0 HE - B S A
%¢&%%%E%m%¢ma%ﬁ%
W B H1,421,838,398% (— :
1,421,838,398/l% ) °

7 B A 3B A BT 2 97 i B A R
HHEL S R B OIS
—EF_CEHFR_F__H+_HA=1+—
EigfﬁéﬂZt%ﬁﬁﬁiéﬁﬁ
]

Right-of-use assets

BB

Motor
Subtotal Buildings vehicle Subtotal Total
it &3 s it it
HKS’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$000
T EW T T kT BT
10913 56,451 813 57,264 68,177
(9,858) (56,451 (613) (57,264) (67,122)
1,085 - - - 1,05
1,055 - - - 1,055
503 1,598 - 1,598 2,101
(193) (200) - (200) (993)
765 1,398 - 1,398 2,163
11,416 58,049 - 58,049 69,465
(10,651) (56,651) - (56,651) (67,302)
765 1,398 - 1,398 2,163



Owned assets

Right-of-use assets

AEHE
Leasehold Hardware Furniture
improvements and software and fixtures
HENEEE  ERREE  GHREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  OBETE BETR
31 December 2022 3 S Y|
-
At 31 December 2021 and REZZ—-F+2A
1 January 2022 =t—Hk
ZE-ZF—-f-H
Cost WA 6,556 2,763 1,690
Accumulated depreciation and At R (g
impairment (4,565) (1,750) (934)
Net carrying amount S £ 1,991 1,013 756
At 1 January 2022, net of REBZZE-A-H
accumulated depreciation M Rk RO
and impairment 1,991 1,013 756
Additions NE - - -
Depreciation provided during the year ERFHATE (1,818) (549) (338)
Disposal i = = =
Impairment during the year R = = o
At 31 December 2022, net of e S5 |
accumulated depreciation =S RE 3 Tl
and impairment il R 173 464 418
At 31 December 2022 REZZZESZA
=+—H
Cost B 6,556 2,675 1,682
Accumulated depreciation and ST R
impairment (6,383) (2,211) (1,264)
Net carrying amount R 173 464 418

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Groupys
management considered that the investment advisory services
and fund management services business has continued to
be adversely affected by the unfavourable market situation
and estimated the corresponding recoverable amounts of
their property and equipment and right-of-use assets. Based
on these estimate, an impairment loss of HK$20,487,000
was recognised to write down the carrying amount of these
items of property and equipment and right-of-use assets to
their recoverable amounts for the year ended 31 December
2022. Neither provision for nor reversal of impairment was
provided for the year ended 31 December 2023. For details
of impairment assessment, please refer to note 17.

fERELE
Motor
Subtotal Buildings vehicle Subtotal Total
it e R it it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETE  BETr BETE BT BETx
11,009 39,236 813 40,049 51,058
(7,249) (33,959) (651) (34,610) (41,859)
3,760 5,277 162 5,439 9,199
3,760 5,277 162 5,439 9,199
- 24,569 - 24,569 24,569
(2,705) (9,3%9) (162) (9,521) (12,226)
- (20,487) - (20,487) (20,487)
1,055 - - - 1,055
10913 56,451 813 57,064 68,177
(9,858) (56,451) (813) (57,264) (67,122)
1,055 - - - 1,055

BE-ZF - F T HAH=Zt—HILFEE
A A A P R R A > B R IR % & 3
SEREEBBEZINAFTRN A
T 52 2 > M7 3 FL ) 36 I R DA K% fifi ) A
1 R R R g [ R AT AN R o AR IR %
g fEE o BE_ZE -+ _A=1+—
H 1k 4F B e 58 bk (B 5 48 % 20,487,000
JC o DA% % S5 ) 2E K R M A I fl I RE R
7E JH B B BR T ek 2 2 wT e [m] 4 4 o
BE_Z =+ _HA=Z1T—HILFE,
I 8 L 795 A > O S (E A A I - 5 R
WAE RS 2 7618 > e S B M aE7 -
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The Group has lease contracts for buildings and a motor
vehicle used in its operations under a fixed term of two
to three years. Certain equipment generally have lease
terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of low
value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There was no
lease contract that include extension and termination options
and variable lease payments.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are further set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January

New leases entered (note 15)

Lease modification

Accretion of interest recognised
during the year

Payments ’fTJL E-

A L5 B 6B O M T SR Y
HESK HBEE FWE=4F 4T
S0 ) AEL A 228 H SR &8
A1 ] o B o — BT 35 - A 4R B AN A )
A L2 [ DAS N £ g A oy R AH B
AL e 0 55 S S % A 1 R AR HE DL I T A AH
B SEE S -

7 AR o 4 1 (o R R ) IR T (L %
5 B I WO & BB R T RE

5 e

AN TR AR A BB IR DL R iR I AL ]
4 A A SR TR L B B B A T

2023 2022
S D S —
HKS$’000 HK$’000

W T T T

#— H — H Y i A 20,423 7,773
BRI A& (MfaE1s) 1,598 24,569
& &7

GRONIRR (R

Carrying amount at 31 December

Analysed into:
— Current portion

— Non-current portion

Total

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 36(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates

RE_H=+—HM
e 1h fE

v ﬁﬁWF'
JIL ijJ nI.S
— LB o

st

applied to lease liabilities is 3.16% (2022: 2.8%) per

annum.
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L&A
o M 5 36(b) P 7 -

- (1,856)
S A

473 414

(9,294) (10,477)

13,200 20,423

9,320 8,613

3,880 11,810

13,200 20,423

B2 B H o iR AR BB

E%FEEA/MM@$ﬁi
AR F K £53.16% (

—az==

—*?



Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit A&7 A 18 45 2 TR RR () FH B A B 3k O0E
or loss in relation to leases are as follows: W
2023 2022
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Interest expense on lease liabilities & & ER S B 473 414
Depreciation charges of right-of-use i FHE & e P8 B S
assets (note 15) (Htit1s) 200 9,521
Expenses relating to short-term leases HEEAAEE X 226 582
Impairment of right-of-use assets it A 2 e M
(note 15) (Bt7F15) - 20,487
Gain on lease modification (note 8) BB FT I i (B 7ts) - (1,856)
Total amount recognised in consolidated R &A1 KRR
statement of profit or loss ‘%@%E 899 29,148

The Group leases certain of its buildings in Hong Kong
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the
leases generally require a related company to pay a security
deposit and provide for periodic rent adjustments according
to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was HK$Nil (2022:
HK$203,000), details of which are included in note 33(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.

31 December 2023 SR O=ZH1TCA
=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2023 and AR = —H K
31 December 2023, net of —E =R
accumulated amortisation = — B MRS s R
and impairment S5 B S (E
At 31 December 2023 R-FZ=412A
=+—H
Cost ﬁkzl-‘
Accumulated amortisation ST B S (E
and impairment
Net carrying amount W T {% {E

AL EARPE RS E LT A
T 5 o L I S B R BRI S R E
A5 410 4 37 AR 5 o IRE T L B AR R L 4 o
7 45 A AE R RE SR I F 2 IR A B i R
JC (R AR i ¥003,0000T ) 0 mETE L
57 A R R M 5E33a) ©

Licence

i 1
HKS$°000
T

4,472

(4,472)

Fund
contracts
REERH

HKS$’000
W T

28,699

(28,699)

Customer

relationship

% F B &
HKS$’000
T

34,941

(34,941)

H % 4 fb 4

Total
it
HK$’000
W T

68,112

(68,112)

AR 2 ]



31 December 2022 R YZAZ—H

Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated R HE—H—HMAA

amortisation and impairment ?I] [5/% 2 ﬁgﬁﬁ K {Jﬁ {E
Amortisation provided during the year GANE 3p g
Impairment during the year N A
At 31 December 2022 REFZZHEFZA=+—H

At 31 December 2022 RZFZZHEFZH=Z+—H

Cost A
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ESE 3
Net carrying amount E’E E (?3 {E

Note: In assessing the useful life of the licence, due consideration is given
to the existing longevity of licence, the life cycle of the industry in
which the Group operates and the renewal barriers of the licence
in the future. In light of these considerations, no factor could be
identified that would result in the licence having a finite useful life.
Accordingly, the licence has been assessed as having an indefinite
useful life as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which

the licence is expected to generate economic benefits for the Group.

The Group’s intangible assets were allocated to the investment
advisory services and fund management services business
cash-generating unit “‘cGu’) for impairment assessment.
In addition to the intangible assets above, property and
equipment and right-of-use assets (including allocation of
corporate assets) that generate cash flows together with
the related intangible assets were also included in this
CGU for the purpose of impairment assessment. Based on
management’s estimates, an impairment of HK$23,418,000
and HK$20,487,000 including impairment losses for
intangible assets and property and equipment and right-of-use
assets were recognised to write down the carrying amounts of
intangible assets and property and equipment and right-of-use
assets to their recoverable amounts of HK$1,055,000 based
on value-in-use calculation for the year ended 31 December
2022. The calculation used cash flow projection based on
historical data and financial budget approved by the Board
covering five years. Cash flows beyond the five years were
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth
rate. The growth rates used did not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the businesses in which the CGU
of the investment advisory services and fund management

services business operates.

Bison Finance Group Limited

Fund Customer

Licence contracts relationship Total
i BEAH % F % At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK'$’000 HK$’000

BT T T BT T

4,472 - 22,104 26,576

- - (3,158) (3,158)
(4,472) - (18,946) (23,418)
4,47 28,699 34,941 68,112
(4,472) (28,699) (34,941) (68,112)
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For the investment advisory services and fund management
services business, the key assumptions used in the value-in-

use calculation in 2022 were as follows:

2022

AR H b 4% to 9%
4% F.9%

=1 2 R 2.8%
B Bl R T B R 14.61%

% of revenue growth

Long term growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate

BWE-ZF =+ _H=T—HILFEE,
A S5 B0 AR B K Ak 4 AR S 2
B 00 B 4 7 AR B BR A AR R o B
i R > MR AT R HE [

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has been
experiencing operating losses on the investment advisory
services and fund management services business CGU.

The management considered reversal of impairment is not

necessary.
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
#EW T T BT T
Prepayments T AT 3 IH 5,746 888
Deposits and other receivables Fi 4 T HAth, B Wi R 2K 10,541 7,379
16,287 8,267
Impairment allowance T {E 5 A
— Other receivables — At JRE ST B 3K (1,071) (1,634)
Total HEEt 15,216 6,633
Represented: g
— Current portion — i B 43 6,815 3,524
— Non-current portion — Ik i B 4 8,401 3,109
Total HEt 15,216 6,633

% K H A B WO 3 246 TARRRE &
MG & KA M ER TS RAREF X
T EY 2R o R 25 i R 8 8 5 B E A
A 3AEAT Bl 0 A (578 ) o M1 20 325 ik
Sl e B RF A HAE Bl IRE i 2% A
S5 38 1 s 18 A0 8% o 1T A 4R R R AT A
wh o i 18 31 1 78 R B LA R ke B IR
D B TE B R A KL AR L

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent work
deposits, rental deposits and utility deposits and fees paid
on behalf of customers. Where applicable, an impairment
analysis is performed at the end of each reporting period by
considering the probability of default. In the situation where
no credit ratings can be identified, expected credit losses are
estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference
to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate.
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Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows: B
Stage 1
BB
HK$’000
wH T
At 1 January 2022 REF_—4F—HA—H -
Provision for impairment losses 90 (L R A 211

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 WoE -+ _H=+—H

“F =B 211
Reversal of impairment losses (L s L 23 [l 679
At 31 December 2023 W_ZF_=F+-A=t—H 890

The financial assets included in the above balances classified
as stage 1 relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31 December
2023, the loss allowance for balances classified as stage 3 was
assessed with the probability of default ranging from 0.96%
to 100% (2022: 36% to 100%) and loss given default ranging
from 61.35% to 62.80% (2022: 62% to 100%).

Listed equity investment, at fair value
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value

Private equity fund, at fair value

Current portion

Bison Finance Group Limited

2100% ( —F = 4 1 36%2.100% ) KX E
HIHE 5 F61.35% % 62.80% (T
62%%100% ) FEA o
2023 2022
SEROEE R
Note HK$ 000 HK$’000
B 5 BT ki I
o nfEEFREZ B
JREHEHR & (a) - 901
N fEEFT e E L
iR R E ) - .
N LB B 2 FASE
i HE 2 4 (©) 23,850 29,465
it B &R 23,850 30,366

Expected credit losses

JFC At SR 1 9 (M 4 458 45 1) 5 )

5 B 18

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
520 Bt Sl B At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wHTr Ww¥Tx W% Tx
= 430 430

= 993 1,204

= 1,423 1,634
- (1,242) (563)

- 181 1,071

S 5 65 5 B 1
) 40 42 0 90 4 0 MM
AR —F = =R
5 1y 53 B 1 5 L8 140 0,964



During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group sold all shares of the listed equity investment.
The proceeds from disposal of the shares amounted
to HK$1,133,000. A net realised fair value gain of
HK$232,000 (2022: a net unrealised fair value loss of
HK$848,000) on listed equity investment in Hong Kong
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group subscribed 10% shareholding interest in a
private company incorporated in Hong Kong at a
total consideration of HK$2,000,000. The Directors
considered the Group has neither significant influence
nor joint control over the investment and therefore
it is classified as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with the requirements
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Fair value loss
of HK$2,000,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
disposed of its subsidiary Bison Digital Holding Limited
which holds 10% shareholding interest of the private
company. As at 31 December 2023, the Group has no
shareholding interest in the private company.

On 22 February 2019, Premier Future Limited
(“Premier Future”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and BeiTai Investment Limited (the
“General Partner”), an independent third party of
the Company and its connected person (as defined
under the Listing Rules) (“independent third
party(ies)”), entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which Premier Future has agreed to
subscribe for limited partner interests in BeiTai
Investment LP (the “Investment Fund”). As at
31 December 2023, the Group’s capital contribution
amounted to HK$72,000,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$72,000,000), representing 71% (31 December
2022: 71%) of the aggregated capital contributed by all
partners in the Investment Fund. The remaining capital
contributions to the Investment Fund were contributed
as to 19% (2022: 19%) at HK$19,000,000 (2022:
HK$19,000,000) by Fullbest Star Limited (“Fullbest”);
and as to 10% (2022: 10%) at HK$11,000,000 (2022:
HK$11,000,000) by a private equity fund managed by
the Company’s subsidiary.
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The Investment Fund is a close-end private equity fund
structured as a limited partnership in the Cayman Islands
with an investment objective to achieve long-term
capital appreciation through investments in convertible
bonds and other investments. Under the partnership
agreement, none of the limited partners may take any
part in the conduct of the business of the Investment
Fund or be involved in the making of any investment
decision of the Investment Fund, and is subject to the
Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. Subject to certain kickout conditions,
the General Partner may determine to invest in debt
securities or equity securities of both private and listed
companies in Hong Kong or elsewhere or by investing in
such other financial instruments, and shall act at all times
in good faith. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
has neither significant influence nor joint control over the
Investment Fund and therefore it is classified as financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss in accordance
with the requirements under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. Details of the transaction were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 22 February 2019.

As at 31 December 2023, there was no unpaid capital
commitment on investment in the Investment Fund

(2022: Nil).

As at 31 December 2023, the underlying investments of
the Investment Fund included an unsecured redeemable
bond which was stated at fair value with a maturity date
of 18 January 2022 issued by Emerge Ventures Limited
(the “EV Bond”), a private entity in Hong Kong which
is wholly-owned by a business associate of a close family
member of Mr. Xu; and listed equity securities of and an
unlisted unsecured redeemable bond which was stated
at fair value with original and extended maturity date of
11 December 2021 and 15 February 2022 respectively,
issued by A Metaverse Company (‘“AMC”) (the “AMC
Bond”) in which Mr. Xu holds a less than 30% indirect
beneficial interest. The Group’s share of the fair values
of EV Bond and AMC Bond amounted to HK$5,979,000
(2022: HK$5,297,000) and HK$11,443,000 (2022:
HK$11,625,000) respectively. The quoted price (2022:
assessed fair value) of the Group’s interest in the AMC
equity securities amounted to HK$2,715,000 (2022:
HK$8,325,000) as at 31 December 2023.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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The Group’s interest in the Investment Fund is
accounted for as financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss based on the share of the net asset
value of the Investment Fund because its contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and
interest. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
net unrealised loss of HK$5,615,000 (2022: net
unrealised loss of HK$36,809,000) was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The total accrued coupon interest as at year end for
both the EV Bond and the AMC Bond had been settled
in 2022 while the principal amounts of these bonds
had not been redeemed upon their respective maturity
dates and up to the date of this report. At the same
time, AMC’s equity securities had been under trading
suspension in the Stock Exchange since 1 April 2022
and the trading has been resumed since 6 November
2023.

On 22 February 2022, the Investment Fund has reached
the end of the investment term. The General Partner
has initiated the liquidation process of the Investment
Fund by realising the underlying investments by sales
of the listed equity securities and redemption of bonds.
The proceeds from the liquidation of the Investment
Fund (after deducting the handling charges) are
expected to be recovered by the Group before the end
of 2024,

AL E R G I SRS TR IR E
LB EEE 2 EEFHEHARY A
s REEFT AR 4 2 4 Rl g E
R R RGBSR ELIEMEE
TARE KA -BE T =

+HA=+—HILEE BERE&EE
18 f 2%l 58 R 2 B s 1T B AV I
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2023 2022
TR = - S
HKS$’000 HK$ 000

T T T

Accounts receivable B WA B 2K 23,155 30,175
Impairment allowance T 15 A (7,142) (10,025)
Net carrying amount S T VHE 16,013 20,150
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An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date or payment

T o B OR > % 98 5L B A Rt B 2
B 4B WS B R (0 R e 18 9 ) R i 2 A

schedule and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

LU

2023 2022
TR =M - S
HK$’000 HKS$ 000

T

T T

Within 1 month — 1 A " 14,607 19,723
1 to 2 months — 2 E A 24 49
2 to 3 months W& =18 H — 34
3 to 12 months =&+ _ffA 748 249
Over 1 year ﬁ?@—ﬂz 634 95
Total HEt 16,013 20,150

The Group normally grants credit to existing customers where
payment in advance is normally required for new customers.
The credit period is generally 90 days from the date of billings.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s accounts
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its accounts receivable balances. Accounts receivable are non-
interest bearing,

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
an account receivable amounted to HK$1,200,000 before
impairment of approximately HK$1,200,000 that was due
from AMC in which Mr. XU had a less than 30% indirect
beneficial interest. The amount was fully repaid and the
provision for impairment was reversed during the year ended
31 December 2022.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

accounts receivable are as follows:

At beginning of year A1)
Reversal of impairment losses

Amounts written off as uncollectible

At end of year R
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2023 2022
SEFR = X
HKS$’000 HK$’000

W T T T

10,025 19,822
(2,883) (2,243)

7,142 10,025



An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, service type, customer
type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, accounts receivable
are written off if past due for more than one year and are not

subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s accounts receivable using a provision

matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

Current

B
Expected credit loss rate BEEEERR 19.37%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) IR AR (BT o) 18,117
Expected credit loss” (HK$’000) FMERER (B%T ) 3,510

As at 31 December 2022

Current

ik
Expected credit loss rate BEEEERE 22.87%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) fR T ALE (T oT) 25,494
Expected credit loss” (HK$'000) FMESER (B%T ) 5,830

& Included in the balance was impairment for receivables derived

from fund management business of HK$4,393,000 (2022:
HK$7,429,000). The assessment of recoverability for the accounts
receivable from each fund was based on the financial position and

settlement pattern of each fund.

T 4% ik S 2 R D 48 A A e AT
gr AT DL B A SR - SRR
FLHE A A B AR ) 2 8 % 5 2 3
Ao AL (B M ~ BB K8 R ~ %0 5 8 B
&%) T A6 09 H B o R% w0 S A
ST AE &5 SR~ B e Iy (] B (B RO ki H
HY AT A5 A9 A BR O 25 S 1R RIIR LA R
2R A SR L TE B 04 1 B A B R
— JBCT o MR AR A A 0 O — 4 K
B 28 52 FROT 5 7 9l 17 905 583 F - LA e o

A7 B A 45 T DR T 936 445 R e 2 0 B AR
A5 B RS

R-FZ=#+"HA=+—H

Past due
gt
Within 1to2 2to3 Over
1 month months months 3 months Total
1H A K 1520 A 2E3MA WA At
- 20.00% - 72.40% 30.85%
- 30 - 5,008 23,155
- 6 - 3,626 7,142

R _F__EFZH=1—H

Past due
fai 4

Within 1to2 2t03 Over
1 month months months 3 months Total
DA 1%2f A 2E3fA BEEA Mgt
1.67% 2.00% 2.86% 92.42% 33.22%
60 50 35 4,536 30,175
1 1 1 4,192 10,025

* AN BT R & M W A AR A M U R 2K
(B 15 4,393,00070 (L& AR R
7,429,0000G) ° A 45 45 5L 4 1Y B IR D e &
S R T Al TRE A A% 4 B K 190 T g [ o
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Loans receivable — unsecured JRE Wi 5 3K —
Impairment allowance T AE 13 A

Current i @j

The loans were made to two (2022: three) independent third
parties with effective interest rate of 3% (2022: 3% to 12%)
per annum and are repayable within one year (2022: within

one year).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a net reversal of
impairment losses of HK$14,258,000 (2022: HK$1,801,000)
(note 7) was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss due to the net-off effect of repayment of certain
loans receivable of HK$21,582,000, and the corresponding
increase in allowance of expected credit loss of the remaining

unsettled overdue loan balances.

Management makes periodic and collective assessment as
well as individual assessment on the recoverability of loans
receivable based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative forward-

looking information that is reasonable and supportive.

Movement in expected credit losses is as follows:

At 1 January 2022 WEEZZHF—H—H
Reversal of impairment losses, net Tok (L e 4R 43 1) 0

At 31 December 2022 and N_FEZZHEFZH
1 January 2023 =t+—HEK
“E - —H—H
Reversal of impairment losses, net RN TRt R
At 31 December 2023 N_FEET A
=+—H
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BT

2023 2022

SR OEE o E
HKS$’000 HK$’000
W T o T o
4 A1 22,410 43,147
(6,983) (21,241)
15,427 21,906

FZERRIRMETHA (ZF 4 =
) BB SL 5 =5 o B A R 3 306 ( =
*$'3%£12% . ”Eﬁ/\ AE R (

TR R

M/H

BE_F-_="HF+_H=+T—HIF
Fi A &7 A 18 4R 2% R ER U (E s 48 45 [

T AR AU B 14,258,00000 (& AR
f%’ﬁ"%‘l 801,0007C) (Wu£7 JEEEEM%?%‘
21,582 ooonZE?W%Llﬁcﬁfkt A I
B R o 45 1 i 0 £ KRR A T U A5
TR M AR R XS N 2 R BT -

BT AR P R T 45 07 A Bk 8 1 A B LU

Ko & PR I A B SR E B K T E I
PE R} S i B EK A T i ] AT
HA AL B ETAG DA B AR Al B A o
HHIE SEEREZFH T
Expected credit losses
BE & E8R
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Eﬁlﬁéﬁx S B 530 Bt Bt
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
wHTor  B¥To W%t
- - 23,042 23,042
- - (1,801) (1,801)
- - 21,241 21,241
- - (14,258) (14,258)
_ - 6,983 6,983



Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December

2023 and 2022 by the Company’s internal credit rating and

year-end classification is as follows:

As at 31 December 2023

Internal rating grade:
C/ccC

As at 31 December 2022

Internal rating grade:
c/cce

(VICEE:

12-month
ECL
(Stage 1)

1216 H #
REER
(5 1Bt
HKS’000
BT

e T Y o s

A ETH
c/cce -

12-month
ECL
(Stage 1)

12{f A W
FEER
(1B

HKS’000
T

REFZZAEFZA=F—H

Wilble Bt -
c/ece -

Obligations rated C/CCC are highly speculative

e 28 7 7 5 8 A A R A
FoSER T b _A=t

and are likely in, or very near, default with some
prospect of recovery of principal and interest.

As at 31 December 2023, loan to a related company in the
gross amount of HK$1,665,000 (2022: HK$6,571,000),
before impairment of HK$931,000 (2022: HK$3,836,000)
(which is not a connected person under the Listing Rules)
is interest bearing at 15% (2022: 15%) per annum and was
already past due. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
a reversal of impairment losses of HK$2,905,000 (2022:
provision for impairment losses of HK$3,455,000) (note 7)

was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

F14) 48 B T (L HEA T A0 AT A0
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
credit- ECL credit-
impaired impaired
(Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
A B 5 B A
REGENN  REFANN
HHGEEER  ENESER
(S2MEB) (3P B At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
E%TFr E%TF E%T
- 2,410 2,410
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
credit- ECL credit-
impaired impaired
(Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
AR EHER REHEN
BEGANN  BEFEHN
BHGERER EHGEEES
(FMEE) (4§30 B st
HKs'000 HKs'000 HKs'000
EHT T T
- 43,147 43,147
C/CCC: C/CCC%W Y S
AR 7T BE j#%%Liﬁﬁm
%i—‘ﬁiﬁIﬁﬁqi[]ZKézli$U¢m°

AFC=F A= —H B TH
W wl (I 3 B RNIE N 2 B A L)
R R A s ¥51,665,0000C ( F T
4 d§ﬁ§657100075 (5 10 B ek (H 49 5
ﬁ¥931 0007C ( — AR 3,836,000

fﬁﬂ%m@ TR A waﬁ
BHEREaH e T =4+ _H
_+ H¢$ » W ME G HR 4 R A 9 T
2,905,0007% ( 2 = T4 I8 (H s 1R
%%m&mwM(Wﬁ7EimA@@
FINFERR -

H % 4 fb 4

AR 2 ]



As at 31 December 2023, deposits amounting to HK$800,000
(2022: HK$800,000) were pledged for the corporate credit

cards issued to the Group.

R oFE=Z4HE+FHA=Z+—H> ﬁa*—wﬁ
#800,0007C ( - — T 4F @ ¥ #800,0007T )
Bl A 42 [ 28 5 1 2N FIME R AR A o

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T

Cash and bank balances B4 e R AT &5 B 112,436 119,131
Non-pledged time deposits FE A E B A7 K - 5,008
Cash and cash equivalents W& B &5 EY 112,436 124,139

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$110,286,000 (2022: HK$113,618,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised

to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and six months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and time deposits are deposited in creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

An ageing analysis of accounts payable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and the date of
issuance of the bills, is as follows:

Within 1 month i iE A

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within one year.

Bison Finance Group Limited

PR EWR > AEBEUANRE (TAR¥])
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi&%ﬁ T AR B v 110,286,000

T ZFE A %%11361800071:) A
E%TTEEEN@Z’%’& B SR AR
5 A B A HE <<9I\IE£IE1N§J>> K (&
BE ~ £ [ 7 fof S LB E) » AL E A E

%?&T@L %IE%I%E’J%& TAF N R
Sy HoAth &

SRATH & MIEE H AT R R RIL 2 H)
FI R 5 o 55 A E B AE R A R — i 2
~H£/\1EIHT¢% M7 A< £ | 9 B Iy

Aaﬁkﬁ'ﬁﬂi)ﬂf?”%iﬂ E A 77 3K
IR B $RAT & R 8 W AE SRAE
i %,.\ﬁ%ﬁnﬂﬁﬂfggﬁﬁ?ﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁ(’

R B R LB AR
1 250 9 A AR HR B AT A

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK S’ 000

W T T oo

4,765 4,404

JEAT IR AR A E > — i —F N EEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo B B 255 e A B

26 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26 XH {th FE £5F Bz 3k & WE 51 &

2023 2022
—EE =4t -
Note HKS$’000 HK$’ 000

B 5E T T T

Other payables L At 8 AT B 3K (a) 884 2,250
Accruals fESH 2 H 19,151 11,352
Contract liabilities EHAE (b) - 70
Total HEr 20,035 13,672
Notes: Mt -
(a) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average (a) Al AT BROIE B R S P XA O A =
payment term of 3 months. He
(b) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (b) GRABEMFEEDT
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T HEWET o
Fund management business: HEEHERE:
— Receipts in advance - ﬁq&%@ - 60
Financial advisory business: Vigid lET
— Advisory fees received in advance — T i ) - 10
Total st - 70
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver AHAEEIEAIRMERESEN RELDHR
fund management, stock dealing services and advisory services. 5 T L) T 5 T Wi BB e A L ASF T o
)
27 PROMISSORY NOTE 27 R ERE
The movements of the promissory note are set out below: LSRR 2 s E T
HKs 000
BT T
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, W_EF 4 —H—H-
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 “ECHETZA=+T—H-
B & el = 3
—E-=#+"H=+—H 90,000

2023 HASMEEHAGRA A 181



On 9 August 2019, the Company issued a promissory note
in the principal amount of HK$90,000,000 (“Fullbest
Promissory Note”) to Fullbest, a company beneficially
owned and ultimately controlled by a close family member of
a director of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company who
resigned in 2021. The Fullbest Promissory Note bore interest
at a rate of 10% per annum for a term of one calendar year
which is subject to an extension for another one calendar
year by the written consent of Fullbest. An arrangement fee
of HK$600,000 was paid during the year ended 31 December
2020 to Fullbest to extend the maturity date from 8 August
2020 to 8 August 2021. The maturity date of Fullbest
Promissory Note was extended to 30 April 2022, During
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023,
the maturity date of Fullbest Promissory Note was further
extended to 31 May 2023 and 31 May 2024, respectively.
In the opinion of the directors, the terms and conditions of
the Fullbest Promissory Note including the extension were

conducted on normal commercial terms.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are
as follows:

At 1 January 2022

At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023
and 31 December 2023

B =F—JLE/NH JLH > 2828 6] W] Fullbest
(HAAFREZEMB AR —ZEHSE (B
AR T —FERT)CEABREE
B K S s 7)) B AT AR A B
90,000,0007C 1Y 7K 5t Z£ 45 ([ Fullbest & 5
FEI]) o FullbestK 5 52 35 # 4F F % 10%
'I‘u_n E%ﬁ)%#ﬂﬁ”ﬁﬁ > A § Jél:ullbestﬁﬁi
A BT — S FE T T4
+-A=+— Eljtﬁf BmFullbesti
57 42 Bk 2 ) #s % 600,0007T > 1% 233 B
CECEFENANHEE T - —FN
H/\H - Fullbest%fﬁmﬁﬁaﬁ ZIHAH #E—
HuE —E - FPH =+ HoHE
E T A=t HERZF =

+—-H=+—H thﬁr Fullbestﬁﬁmﬁﬁ
FIEIHH Rl — e —F — =4 H
A=t—HE=F_MNFEAH=+—H-

ﬁ% At Z% Fullbestﬁﬁm:ﬂﬁmﬂk &ﬂkﬁ:
(BLHE 1A ) T4 — i v SE I A T o

EIEBLIH BB E R BB AT

Customer
relationship
% F B &
HK'$’ 000
BT

W_F__4F—H—H (3,648)
Credited to the profit or loss A

3,648

R-FZZH#+-H=+—H~
RO =4E—-A—HK

“ERO=EH+FZA=Z1—H =

At 31 December 2023, the Group had estimated tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$423,470,000 (2022:
HK$410,591,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the

losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
HK$70,693,000 (2022: HK$67,747,000) as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and
in the opinion of the directors, it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses and deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Bison Finance Group Limited

BE_Z_=F+_HA=1+—H &%
8] 7E 7 #5747 B TE S 15 7 17 423,470,000
Jo (=& A A5 H5410,591,0000T)
A D44 R 309 R A K 8 B 4R R A R
2 R T A o

WEAFCEE B AEREZEAH

& AS K n] BE A ME SRR Vi 1) n Bh A B TE s

Ei= AT IV R TS G MR T e

m@wmm(giggﬁ W67 747,000
TG ) Tife R A0 AiE B TH 7 o



Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 cach

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

2023 2022
—ECER it Sy :
Number of Number of
shares shares
Bt 4 % H A 8
000 HK$’000 000 HK$'000
T it i3 T i T
o
T R (v W0, 1T
1)L 38 1 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
E#HTROME:
5 i 1 (s W01 00
15 48 fi 1,421,838 142,184 1,421,838 142,184

A summary of movements in the Company’s share

capital is as follows:

At 1 January 2022,
31 December 2022,
1 January 2023 and
31 December 2023

AN 7 2 WA 5 B A

Number of
issued Ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
C#1f7
et %A Tak b st

AR~ f—H-
B e SV ES SR
—Eo=g—f—AR

'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKs'000
T #WTr  E¥Tr B%Tx

“ERZEEYZA=E+T—H 1,421,838 142,184 288,740 430,924

The share option scheme (the “Share Option

Scheme”) of the Company was approved and adopted

by the sharcholders of the Company at the annual

general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2018.

The Company might grant options to the eligible

participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the

Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on the

adoption date of the Share Option Scheme on 8 June

2018.

There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group

does not have a past practice of cash settlement for

these share options. The Group accounts for the Scheme

as an equity-settled plan.

AN T i R RE ST (T 0 B R A )
AR A FBCR S —F— VAN AN
B Yl /NS K Syl o
N E S R NN RS < i
P R DAAR B E R E
108 B T M A R S AR A T 2 A A R
e JBEME S5t 5 B IS R RE ST B R A H
W (FE—/NFENH/NH) B+
M—EAHK-

AT AR 4R DL B 4 A O o AN 4R A 1
3 4 DL BT <5 45 5 5% S W BB o AR 4R
B 5 w3 2 — T DA 2 45 5
AT #EIAMR -

HASRERARA A



The following share options were outstanding under the A TR B S S D JECT R AT Y

Share Option Scheme during the year: REREN R
Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
B SF- 35
I WRMEEAE
HK$’000 ’000
3 AT T4
At 1 January 2022 WZF__F—H—H 0.33 52,220
Lapsed during the year TR AE A 2R B 0.33 (3,000)
At 31 December 2022 and o E - HFE+ A
1 January 2023 =+—HkK
“E =4 —H—H 0.33 49,220
Lapsed during the year TR AE A 2R B 0.33 (15,000)
At 31 December 2023 )/ N O
+—-H=+—H 0.33 34,220
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share AR A R W R AT 8 I I RE RS
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting AT A8 AT -
period are as follows:
2023 S

Number of options

Jik ¢ e % I
000
T

34,220

2022

Number of options

Exercise price*

A7 f 45 =
HKS$ per share
i W

0.33

Exercise price*

Exercise period

7 668

27 March 2020 to 26 March 2025
SR CREZACFHLEHEZZ_HE=ZH_1+AH

Exercise period

Fi e ffE 1T
’000 HKS$ per share
T (Yidid
49,220 0.33 27 March 2020 to 26 March 2025
CERCFEEA ST ERECFCHEEA T FAH
3 The exercise price of the share options is subject to * I O RRE 1) A 68 46 T R0 B 3 B AT AT
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other i NN i NS RS V30 i)

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Bison Finance Group Limited
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On 27 March 2020, 118,020,000 share options of
the Company (“Share Options”) were granted to
the directors, employees, lenders and a consultant of
the Group pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise price of the Share Options is HK$0.33 per
ordinary share of the Company (the “Share”), which
is not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
HK$0.315 per Share as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchanges on the date of grant of
the Share Options; (ii) the average closing price of
HK$0.308 per Share as stated in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchanges for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the Share
Options; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share, which is
HKS$0.1. The Share Options vested immediately on the
date of grant as stated in grant letters and among which
53,800,000 Share Options expired on 12 September
2020, 3,000,000 share options lapsed during 2022 and
15,000,000 Share Options lapsed during current year
and the remaining 34,220,000 Share Options (2022:
49,220,000 Share Options) will be exercisable until
26 March 2025. Share option reserve amounting to
HK$ 1,273,000 (2022: HK$353,000) was transferred to
accumulated losses upon the lapse of 15,000,000 (2022:
3,000,000) Share Options accordingly.

The Company has rebutted the presumption in
paragraph 13 of HKFRS 2 for measuring the equity-
settled transaction with the lenders and consultant by
reference to the fair value of the Share Options rather
than the fair value of the related services as these
services or financial support received by the Group
cannot be measured reliably.

No equity-settled Share Option expense was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2020 was estimated
as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%)

Expected volatility (%)

Historical volatility (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%)

Expected life of options (year)

Weighted average share price (HK$ per share)

/\4::

CECEFEZA T LR AL
%I*Eﬁﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁf%ﬂﬁ%% & 8 -
AR N K B R 2 118,020,000 A
o v B R RE (TG JBEHE | ) o B A 2
1708 {8 7 1 B A N w3 5 A (1

) #5 #50.3370 > AMMER AT % H
ZHE A G R B A
W1 7 B 2 BT A H ORE R T 22 ik
A8 A B ¥ 0.31500 5 i) B it B
MR MER B AT S 2 B A
W =2 Jr 4 H A8 3% BT 8 2 - 0k
T 18 45 5 s 150,308 7G5 B (i) — % A%
iy 2 T E > B s 0. 10T - B A% RE R
5 Bk T o 1 52 T HOHA B 2 5 RS

H r153,800,00017 i L RE Y — & — &
EJLH +~ H J& i > 3,000,00017 1
JEERE A % = AR AL 15,000,000
Tﬁﬂ%ﬂx’f&ﬁ/‘ﬂiifﬁexj{ Wﬁﬁ??
34,220,000 i B (—F — —
49,220,000¢53‘E%ﬂx1‘& TﬁA:2~£
= H AN H R AT A o B %
s ¥51,273,00000 ( % T A
‘ﬁ%‘sss,ooo;r: £ 15,000,0001 ( %
T A 13,000,000 ) il S HE O 2 RE
i B e

AR TR BRAN G BB i 15 16 1))
FomR B 2 e > 2% WM
O OB (E T JE AR BE AR 1 S B (A
il dat SRR B B AT R DAE 4
B G R B A 4R B R B ) %
5 RS B S Sl 1R A ] SE R R

wE_F=F+"A=+—H1L
4 BE > 3l S R AR 5 18 28 K e RE DAL

e “\u%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁaﬁi S0 ey
4E) o

P

BE_F_FFE+_A=+—HI
AR BB DL 45 A B IR b
Y 2> SRAE(E S % Hh F O30 4% — JH K

oy (Fh B A5z H 1 1 E 1 ok S s 1)
AT AN T o N R E A A A B
if%:

B 2R (%) 0.00%
T HA I 1R (%) 47.67%-84.35%
JEE 52 I R (%) 84.35%
48% JE gz 1) % (%) 0.608%-0.651%
W I AE TR T A PR (4F) 0.462-4.995
IR 35 A (A i s ) 0.33

HA4 L EARA



The expected life of the share options was based on
the historical data up to the past 10 years and was not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that might
occur. The expected volatility is determined based on
the historical volatility of the shares of Company for
a period of 10 years. Reflected the assumption that
the historical volatility was indicative of future trends,
which might also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
The dividend yield is based on the historical dividend
yield of the shares of Company for a period of 10 years.

The share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses upon forfeiture of the share options
before their expiry date.

No other feature of the share options granted was

incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

The fair value of the share options are subject to the
above inputs and limitation to the binomial model.

Details of net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of during

the current and prior years and the financial impacts are

summarised as follows:

Net assets disposed of:

Subtotal

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 7)

Total consideration

Satisfied by:

Note:

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note)

Cash and cash equivalents

Other payables and accruals

%A

At

(Htit7)

A

Cash B4

The unlisted equity investment carries at a zero fair value, please

refer to note 19 for more details.

Bison Finance Group Limited

EHEFEE:
AR EEF ARG Z
EREE (M)
B LB &% EY
oAt A AR

H B B 2w Wi A

H DL 77 AT

S e HEE w0 PR DA i 2 98 K 104F 1Y
JEE S B 2y R e - R W6 RE SR N AT RE
Hh B A AT 18 05 3o TH 9 I 0 S ik JRE
SR A 5 N A A S 2 AR 3 IR
ﬂi‘ﬂ‘ F/T\mn% ﬁ%ﬁ&'ﬂmﬂ*ﬁﬁﬁ
$®7h%%+¢%ﬁ2%i&%
i SE o SR RE SR AT 4R T R 2K
A W) AV S S @5
R RIRA 2> w7+ 4 3 A Y
[ s S A

S IS AR fh 5 5165 S P IS i T 0
Bl T2 i R LSRR o
B % A R e HEE E i L Ath
oS FAEEF & -

IR HE 2 2 s AE M A2 B Al i A BR
Je IR AR

FHROEA

RARERE R BAEEED i B 4 7 2
W E TR M A R A A R

ok e T

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T

- 60
(50) (840)
(50) (780)
50 780

F bR R A REME R E
ZE g 2 B MR o



An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

Cash consideration (notes)

Cash and bank balances disposed of

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents

Bae M8 (M)
B B KaRAT

H A R B 2 W Y B e e B SE R AR
FRATT -

2023 2022
—RT= .

HKS$’000 HK$ 000

W T oo

A

T % BR - (60)

H B R e 2w B B e

in respect of disposal of subsidiaries &S EY A - (60)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 2 August 2022, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of its
entire equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Roadshow
Media Limited for a consideration of HK$2. The gain on disposal
before and after tax amounted to approximately HK$296,000. The

transaction was completed on the same date.

On 31 October 2022, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of its entire
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Leader Force Limited
for a considered of HK$1. The gain on disposal before and after
tax amounted to approximately HK$484,000. The transaction was
completed on the same date.

On 28 June 2023, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose its entire
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, RoadShow Media
Group Limited for a consideration of HK$8. The gain on disposal
before and after tax amounted to HK$50,000. The transaction was

completed on the same date.

On 18 October 2023, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose its entire
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Bison Digital Holding
Limited for a consideration of HK$8. The gain on disposal before
and after tax amounted to HK$8. The transaction was completed on

the same date.

0) ﬁA:A*AE/\HQEI A B2 [H] B — 44 18 ST
o5 =7 W) o B R Wk u&%/\éﬁﬁfﬁ%/&
T Roadshow Media LimitedZ 2= 5 5 # > 1¢(E
£ W5 27T o R BB B BRBE A% B i 2i S 4D
5 5296,0007C © 7% 38 5 B A A H 58 5

Gy MIZFZZETA=ZT—H AEHRE
ST 5 — 7 w1 o0 B E ek U\tlz'.u,\ééfé‘ﬁﬁ
J& 7 Fl Leader Force LImlthZ%%KE&TE 18
oW W0 o BRBLAT K bR B IR A5 A A
5 1 484,0007T © #% 3¢ & B A R H 58 AL

iy MIOFZ=FEANHANH REFEE—Z
J8 3L 5 = 05 WY L B Wk o DA L A G
J& /A F] RoadShow Media Group Limited Z 2=
JBEHE > A A8 2 s M8 T o BR B AT S BR B4R 1 B
e 4 2% W ¥ 50,0007C 7% 38 5 E R Rl H 58 -

(v) MIZEFZ=HF+TH+HNH> KEHE -2
L Z 7RI OL H E ko DL B A
/A F] Bison Digital Holding Limited Z 2= #B EAE >
FRAB By W Wes T o BR BT K R B A% i 45 I AR
L5 U M8 T o 7428 S TR R H 58 A »

HASRERARA A



During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
and leases liabilities of HK$1,598,000 (notes 15 and
16(b)), respectively, in respect of lease arrangement of

buildings.

At 1 January 2023
New leases
Interest expenses

Changes from financing cash flows

At 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2022
New leases

Lease modification
Interest expenses

Changes from financing cash flows

At 31 December 2022

Bison Finance Group Limited

MR- _=F—H—H
HEI A

BB X

A B B A

R-ZFZ=£+"A=+—H

o St S R
HATHA

HEBT
BB 32
A B &R

R-FZZF+ZH=1+—H

BE_FZ-_=F+_HA=1+—H1
S AEEAFREFHEZHEN
HFHAEEEAHMEAENIERS
7B B W ¥ 598 0007T (Fff 3E15 K%
16(b)) °

Interests

payable

included in

Lease Promissory  other payables
liabilities notes and accruals
st A Al 6 A

e 3k % JE st

2 Ji 0 A

M £ £ & LR A&
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
W T W T o #W T

20,423 90,000 7,000
1,598 - -
473 - 9,000
(9,294) - (1,135)
13,200 90,000 14,865
Interests

payable

included in

Lease Promissory other payables
liabilities notes and accruals
it A H At e £

AR K e T

% FH Y JE A

HEAH RO A&
HKS$’000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

T BT T BT T

7,773 90,000 3,574
24,569 - -
(1,856) - -

414 - 9,077
(10,477) - (5,651)
20,423 90,000 7,000



The total cash outflow for leases included in the

consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: HABEMT -

2023
HK$’000
T

Within operating activities (note 8) AR Bl R
(Bt 7ts) 226
Within financing activities A RLE B & U = 9,294
Total et 9,520

The Group had the following contractual commitment at the

end of the reporting period:

2023
- Y
HKS$’000
EWT T
Contracted, but not provided for: B S ORET S L
Investment in subsidiaries 7 Mﬂ% N Z B %‘: 64,574

In addition to the transactions and balances as set out in
notes 5, 6, 19, 20 and 22 to these consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions GRONEE R e b DN
with related parties during the year:
2023
Notes HK$’000
Bt 5 EWT T
Rental income received from B B F W Y
a related company FH 4 U A @) -
Loan interest income received Q Egj Hﬁ%/l}ﬁj L&EX £
from a related company B A (ii) 328

AAAGERERBERNHER &R

2022
.
HKs$’000

T T

582
10,477

11,059

A SR B it R BT 91 5 R R IS

2022

N
HK$’000

T o

41,234

PRASGE & A BSH R i 55 ~ 6219~ 20
K22 T 8 38 5y Te 4 B A > A 48 1 i
TTUTIRS :

2022
.
HKs$’000

T T

203

509

HASRERARA A



Notes:

@) Rental income was charged to a related company mentioned
in notes 6 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements at

a rate mutually agreed between parties.

(ii)  Loan interest was charged to a related company mentioned
in notes 5 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements at

a rate mutually agreed between parties.

Apart from those mentioned in notes 19 and 22, the
balances with the related companies were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s

directors and chief executives, is as follows:

wit

Gy & WA TS T 1 0 B R ) AR
B i 2 Mt 5k e S22 BT Hlk B W N WDk
EXO

Giy  BEEKA B T T 1 2 R R AR
T 2 B 5 s T o0 i At fY B g
WS B o

B
}

s

4

»

B 6 5 19 M 22 Fr it 3 4b > L BR B )
() & i oy JHE G 4~ 40 5 I ZH 5 BEOR

3 -

ALEEZEMABNME (L
A TARFER L RFETEAR
9 KIH) 41°F

2023 2022
SR O=E X
HKS$’000 HK$’000

W T i R

Salaries, allowances and benefit in kind B B KB W) AE A 5,393 5,401
Pension scheme contributions FER N 1R EL 64 61
Total compensation paid to key I TFEEEHEANEN

management personnel | 4 4 %E 5,457 5,462

Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Bison Finance Group Limited

T N m AT BN B S i —
GREE W RER iR & R



The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial TR A R > 4558 4 il T HL A0 B T e

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T
follows:
Financial
assets at
fair value
through profit
or loss — Financial
mandatorily assets at
designated amortised
as such cost Total

%o R
it A 2
SHEE EEMNRA R
(3 2 %) & a5t
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
# T % T T

A REEFARRZ

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss SREE 23,850 - 23,850
Accounts receivable JRE Wi R 2K - 16,013 16,013
Loans receivable JEE Wi B 3K - 15,427 15,427
Loan to a related company 4T B AR 2 B - 734 734
Financial assets included in FEATEATEOR » 54 KEAD

prepayments, deposits and JE IR T 4 L

other receivables - 9,688 9,688
Pledged deposits REiR T - 800 800
Cash and cash equivalents Ba kB &S EY - 112,436 112,436
Total Bt 23,850 155,098 178,948

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

1% 8 8 A
At E Y

<& i 81
HKS$’000
W T o

Accounts payable

Financial liabilities included in other payables

and accruals
Lease liabilities

Promissory note

Total

JE AT AR K

aE A At R AT R S % HE T T )
il B 1R

HE AR

R 5 ZE %

H 7

4,765
19,883

13,200
90,000

127,848

A A R A



Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss — Financial
mandatorily assets at
designated amortised
as such cost Total
HAREE
A AHR
SHEE HEBHRAGE
(Rl %) [ 4 st
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

BT BT T

Financial assets at fair value BARBHEFAREZ
through profit or loss SRLERE 30,366 - 30,366
Accounts receivable JRE Wi R 3k - 20,150 20,150
Loans receivable JE M B K - 21,906 21,906
Loan to a related company LTHRB AR ZER - 2,735 2,735
Financial assets included in FEATEA FOR - 4 KA
prepayments, deposits and JRE WS BR K B 45 Bl
other receivables = 5,745 5,745
Pledged deposits L A7 3 - 800 800
Cash and cash equivalents Be kB e%EY - 124,139 124,139
Total o 30,366 175,475 205,841
Financial

Accounts payable

Financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals

Lease liabilities

Promissory note

Total

Bison Finance Group Limited

liabilities at
amortised
cost
G40

4 Rl £ A
HK$ 000

T T

JRE A} B 2K 4,404
T At JE A5 B 2k % HE s Y

ol =K 13,532
GiEN =R 20,423
TR L P 90,000
HEr 128,359



The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

A AR il TR O 60 455 AR T (E B
N S AEE A BEAE T B S TR /Y
MR THT (e o~ S AB(E AN T

Carrying amounts Fair values

W 1 i o PR E

as follows:
2023
Y S
HKS$’000
w8 T
Financial assets & B

Financial assets at fair value WA REEFAERGZ
through profit or loss GG E 23,850

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the
financial controller is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The corporate finance team
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair value of a listed equity investment is based on
the quoted share price.

2022 2023 2022
CROCE SBOSE RO
HKS$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000

whHTor  #WTxm BW T

30,366 23,850 30,366

A S5 ] b B s A B SRR A SRR R
B R R E e TR R R
BZBRRREF A ERE B K E
Bl BB S B -
T A% o B> 4 3K B R e
o AT e B 2 fE (S B R E Al
{67 1B 2 3 2 A g o A {E
MY Ao E B g
A UCHIE ) R A 3 T 5 o A (E
P L2 55 SRAEAT B v

EREERAMZ A REERE AR
B 75 0] E R 2 By (R A B A 8
RSN AR M B T A P R &
EPA

T R A5 A R R i
i fH -

HASRERARA A



The fair value of unlisted equity investments (including
the private equity fund) is based on market prices of
certain parameters as stipulated in the subscription
agreement, net assets statements and/or valuations
engaged by the independent valuer.

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

Bison Finance Group Limited

#Lﬁ%%&%b@ﬁﬁ%%%%
&) W92 SR AE (B 5 250 w0 1 ok wk
SE WA T 2 B T E ﬁ?@@ﬁ
R K SO SLA BRI ik 6 <

K 5B A i R 0 A A e
FIE AL S TR REE
or R i I 5 i o MR RIDD 5Ra3
BRI A REERE] TR EN =8
FUAEAE B o o~ AR (E R R BT A
i) 45 8 5 K8 295 DU T Al 07 2% BT
fAﬁﬁ%T@mﬁ&EEﬁ%%
KE °

o BB BAGE MR SR — S
A g (B F & H A R & =
Bl RIS 1 R T 5 B OR KR R
WA FHE A REE -

o SR ARG E < AR R SR A
ABEE (RIS 526 — 8 i Al
Bl A BHE) HAG R (6 &
R AN T B g A B s R A
FUABEAE o A AT B A iy A B
Slf7 48 T 35 R Y A O

< HEHAEE: EHERAATE
S ABIE RN A A EE



The following tables illustrate the fair value TRIRAER S H T HE N RE

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial HEr & @R :
instruments:
Assets for which fair value are disclosed: CHEE A EENEE
As at 31 December 2023 N _E_=%#%+_H=+—H
Fair value measurement usin:
HHATHEHEG R AEEA
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
( BRA B
WHRTS BEATBE =

WmE BABE O EWANE
GE—#) (%28 (B=#) st
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
Tt EWTx  #WTE #WTx

Financial assets at fair value A REEF ARG Z
through profit or loss SRERE
— Private equity fund —RERERES - - 23,850 23,850
As at 31 December 2022 WoE - FEFH=1—H
Fair value measurement usin
FRUTHEFEANEE
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
T ERAEE #EAAEE
wE  WAERE LN €
(—8) (B ) (=) Bt
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$'000  HKS’000
BwRTL %t BT BT
Financial assets at fair value A REEFAREZ
through profit or loss SRERE
— Listed equity investments — R E 901 = = 901
— Unlisted equity investments —F LR = - - -
— Private equity fund ~FEREEE - - 29,465 29,465
Total st 901 - 29,465 30,366

HASRERARA A



During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were

no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil). The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value

hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in which

they occur.

The movements in fair value measurements within Level

3 during the year are as follows:

BE_F_=HF+"HA=+—H1

AERE S — LB S K zﬁiML
&wnmﬁA&ﬁﬁﬁ_“ —-%
T ) $%@%ﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁ
i%*“ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁZ%ﬁﬁ%&
Iy i 52 A B AL o
ERHEZHAN A AEEF RS
By
2023 2022
- S - S
HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T T

Equity investments at fair value

N R E AR AR B

through profits or loss I REH &
At 1 January w—H—H 29,465 73,274
Total losses recognised in the consolidated WEEA R RWEREEIA

statement of profit or loss included in HAth W A B s 15 AR R

other income (5,615) (38,809)
Capital withdrawal 1AL 1|] B A - (5,000)
At 31 December Wt+=—H=+—H 23,850 29,465

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs

TXAR _FE_=FR T

to the valuation of financial instruments together with a

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2023

and 2022:

Financial instruments

il 1 % 5 2%
ST H & B A\ B iR
31 December 2023
SR =EFTA=1—H
Private equity fund Adjusted net asset value approach
L5 RO 5L 5 A8 G E FHE A
31 December 2022
R HEFTZHA=+—H

Private equity fund

FABE I HE A 4
Other unlisted

e ulty securities

Hoft I E i BEA w5 27

Bison Finance Group Limited

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

Adjusted net asset value approach

A

Adjusted net asset value approach

6 o B A E A

A=t —H&MMTHE EE*E
KA W] B 5% iy A\ B8 T e = UM
SR ININE T
Relationship of
Significant unobservable input(s)
unobservable input(s) to fair value
HRA B A W] 8L 5% i A\ iR B
LN & 2 fu fE 4R 0 B 1R
N/A N/A
AN A
N/A N/A
N A H
N/A N/A
N N



Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, cash held on behalf of clients, pledged
deposits, accounts receivables, loans receivables,
loan to a related company, accounts payable, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, promissory note and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalents, loans receivable, lease liabilities
and promissory note. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts payable and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the
Group does not offer credit terms without the specific
approval of the Head of Credit Control.

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

EHLEC A B e B E S EY
NEEFRHANEE  CRMER
JRE SR - B WA K~ A6 T B S
Z AR A IR wE AT AT BROE
2 b e JH At R Wi R K 14 < O E
7R 5, SRR ~ R A A R A5 R SR e B
APEANEMA R R A LA RE
1L 347 BEL IR AT (B AH % > T 200 i R 4
S5 TH A R E ] o

ALHY EE M T RGFER G K&
Y - RN B B AR BRI -
25 TR EER A A EE
X ZERET - AREANEEELE
HE ) 4% e L b < Rl E D - B A e
A SR~ FL At B o R K~ R A R R B LAt
A K

7 45 9] [A] < R E AR A o R B
i B e ~ U B < B~ A1 BEE JaL B - A
N o e L
HEAE T 5 5 JEL B Y B > BOR AR I T

7% 2 [ {8 B 7 R AT AR LG Y 5
=05 28 By o A 4 T Y USRI P AT K
DR B 52 5 W9 % 5 JHE IR AR B A%
HRRTF o HLOh > A 48 B 17 A B X R ik
AR KA B > SR LBy 3 A % o bl
LA Bl 78 7 58037 O e B W RHEL I
32 5 W& B IR 15 65 42 il A8 B 41t
e mAALEA G RMEE -

TREIIERAEEFEEOR (R
BB R Kb AR BB - 2L
a0 1 EORE (R JF H At &R} AT 7E 83 20
A5 R o BEREAS 855 1 2 A UL T
B RR_F =R TEF
T A=t HZERBEB B
Fiv 52 51 < RE 2y <= Al AR T AL
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As at 31 December 2023

Accounts receivable*
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits,

other receivables

— Normal**

— Doubtful**

Loans receivable***

Loan to a related company**

Pledged deposits

— Not yet past due
Cash and cash equivalents

— Not yet past due

Total

Bison Finance Group Limited

W R
AT A AT OR8>
At R 5B 2 45
— 1E B
— BB
JEE Wit B
5T B T 2 B e
E A A7 5K
— Rl
B KB a5 EY
— K@il

=
n\% 5]

12-month
ECLs

12ffl A
B &
i 18

Stage 1

1R B
HKS$’000
BT

800

112,436

121,522

RE-F-_=#+"H=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

e 7 0 T A5 BB 4R

Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
HoREE  GE3REB Mk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wHTr W% W% Tx

- - 23,155

S s _

- 22,410 -

- 1,665 -

- 26,330 23,155

Total
At
HK$’000
BT

23,155

8,286
2,255
22,410
1,665
800

112,436

171,007



As at 31 December 2022

Accounts receivable*
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits,

other receivables

FE Wi A

At AR BOR - 4
LA R A ) 2
B

12-month
ECLs
1218 A
B
i 45

Stage 1
EllEe
HK$’000

T T

— Normal** —E 3,823

~ Doubtful** — R e -
Loans receivable*** JRE W B e =
Loan to a related company** T B A R 2 B =
Pledged deposits B 7

— Not yet past due — K 800
Cash and cash equivalents Ba kB &% EY

— Not yet past due — R 124,139

Total a5t 128,762

Hox

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 20 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and loan to a
related company is considered as “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the

financial assets is considered as “doubtful”.

For loans receivable, the credit quality information is

disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

W_E__HE+A=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

BWAENNENGEEER

Stage 2
ol B
HK$’000

BT

kK

Simplified
Stage 3 approach Total
HaB MLk 5t
HK$’ 000 HKS$’000 HKS$ 000

BT BETT BN

- 30,175 30,175

- - 3,823
3,556 - 3,556
43,147 - 43,147
6,571 - 6,571
- - 800

- - 124,139
53,274 30,175 212,211

AR S B 7 kB S R AL O v 2 E
MR AT 5 » A 7% 5 4 60 et 2 R IR A
i S 2R I 2040 R

G SIf 488 A6 ) - 7 40 R UK 2
Z A5 LR B B R0 2 il R LA AR OK R 3
T U FE A TR AT O ~ 1 K b
W e B B < R DA B A T T OB
AzBER FEARAA[IERW] -
A A E R R R
Ml o

PR BB (5 SRR AR BUR &5 6 85
A B R0 5

Ok m e B AR A A



The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts and bank loans.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2023

Accounts payable R AT iR 3K
Financial liabilities included in FA A AT B 3R
other payables and accruals JE G Y & Rl

AfE
Promissory note E(J‘EE%E%})%
Lease liabilities HEERE
Total st
2022
Accounts payable e AT iR 3K

Financial liabilities included in A H A AT B 3
other payables and accruals JEEHE & R

=L
Promissory note FTES
Lease liabilities HEERE
Total st

Bison Finance Group Limited

Within
one year
—HN
HK$000
W T T

4,765

19,883
93,723
9,500

127,871

Within
one year
—4ER

HKS$ 000

BT

4,404

13,532
96,041
9,075

123,052

A2 B AE W R L) B R # T
HBE5 E G  ok E B o % T B g M
SR TR A kGRS

Bl i & o

AR S H B H AR 0 SR AT 98 50 SR
A7 B PR A P A A B o
HY -1

T R AR A RIS B AT 30
AL 1 e B B B RS DL R

TR =M
One to Two to
two years five years Total
—2_4 R At
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000

#HTT  #BTT  #WTx

- - 4,765
- - 19,883
- - 93,723
3,906 - 13,406
3,906 - 131,777
= S
One to Two to
two years five years Total
—F A CREHE 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000

#RTT  EWTT BRT

- - 4,404
- - 13,532
- - 96,041

8,716 3,329 21,120

8,716 3,329 135,097



The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from provision of series by operating

. . s
units in currencies other than the units

functional

currencies. Approximately 69% (2022: 73%) of the

) . . .
Group s sales were denominated in currencies other

than the functional currencies of the operating units

making the sales.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the

end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in foreign currency exchange rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before

tax and the Group’s equity.

2023

If the Hong Kong dollar
weakens against EUR

If the Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against EUR

If the Hong Kong dollar
weakens against RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against RMB

&3 Excluding accumulated losses

2022

If the Hong Kong dollar
weakens against EUR

If the Hong Kong dollar
strcngthcns against EUR

If the Hong Kong dollar
weakens against RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against RMB

* Excluding accumulated losses

—E
ikl s W L B e 2 (E

ik ¥ 5 5 I8k o (B
il ¥ S N R R
fie v R 5 N B W (L

—E s
fird s e S K c i

fied 5 W L K o T
il s S N R 2
ik s S R T

FEL I HE 25 2 41 I e

11 R

Increase/ Decrease/
(decrease) (increase)
in foreign in loss

currenc before tax
%m@% Wi Bt i
i WA
(3§ﬂ£) (3% m)
% HKS$’000
% L3 T

3% 386
(3%) (386)
3% 1
(3%) (1)
* NG R F R
Increase/ Decrease/
(decrease) (increase)
in foreign in loss
currency before tax

9[‘”@:1
[ T=0

BBt il 5 18
Wb,

(A1) (54 m)
% HK$'000

% T oo

3% 1
(3%) (1)
3% 540
(3%) (540)

* AN 2 Hl e

H#% %R

i A

H
4 18 B LRI
o v e A )

Increase/
(decrease)
in equity*

HE 23 8 m
(W) *
HKS$’000
W T

Increase/
(decrease)
in equity*

%ﬁﬁM/
(WD) =
HK$ 000

T T

AR 2 ]



The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
promissory note and lease liabilities with fixed interest
rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
related to cash and cash equivalents carried at prevailing
market rates. However, such exposure is minimal to the
Group as these cash and cash equivalents are all short-
term in nature.

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of listed
equity investment, unlisted equity investment and
private equity fund decrease as a result of changes in
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group was exposed to equity price risk
arising from individual equity investments included in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note
19) as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The Group’s
listed equity investments are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
to every 5% change in the fair values of the equity
investments, with all other variables held constant
and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period.

% S A T B 40 T 45 3 58 0 J e
55 5 7 4 ) ) 7R 0, 5 8 [ 5 ) 3
TR A B -

7 B2 [ 7 T [ B 4% B AT T 45 M R g
BB AR EFEYA RN &
U A B o AR - P % S B
Jo Bz < E W) 8 i JE VR R oA
A 9 T B 14 A B JEL oy L £

I A JEL gt 2 4 TR e 52 i BOK P K2 A
il 8 7 {68 i 5 B v 2L 5 b i P R 4
B~ b RE B B AL B
EZ N ABEBDZEB R —F
CEERCE D HET A=A
H o A< 42 [ Py T 6 2 B4 L B e
8 5l BEHE L (FH A% 2 o R E A
AR 2 & g E (Ffak1o) - A4
B 22 b T R 5 A A o g 2 P b
T > 7 % R A T S R A

R BUR A i W OR 2 MR
£ & 2 o B (E B 5% 2
TR (P A Hofh s B i fr A2 HoR
A BB E) -

2023
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

2022
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

£ Excluding accumulated losses

Bison Finance Group Limited

Carrying Decrease/
amount (increase) Increase/
of equity in loss (decrease)
investments before tax in equity*

JBe RE L & 2
G T 1
HKS$’000
W Tou

e

N R EEF A

2 RE E 23,850
o

N RAEEFT AR &

2 A 30,366

b B¢ i i 15
WA
(3% )
HK$’000

T

1,193

1,518

AL 1E R Bk 1R

HE 25 3 m
(W) *
HK$’000
#WT T



The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regards equity attributable to owners of
the Company as capital, manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group complied with the externally imposed capital
requirements and there was no indication of breach of
covenants. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

In addition, a licensed subsidiary within the Group
manages its liquidity position to ensure it maintains
a prudent and adequate liquidity ratio, in strict
compliance with statutory requirements. This is
achieved by the management, comprising the chief
financial officer and the licensed subsidiary’s executive
director, monitoring the liquidity position of the Group
on a daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient
liquid funds to meet all obligations and compliance with
the statutory requirements, such as the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules,

which are applicable to a licensed subsidiary.
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Note
B 5E
Non-current assets FEW B ﬁ)%
Property and equipment and W 2 T S DA K A
right—of—use assets ,{éf 23
Investments in subsidiaries* i EANCIE <
Deposits i3 %
Current assets B &
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFRE i o g 2 ) K IE
Prepayments, deposits and TEAT BIE ~ $ 4 J HoAth
other receivables JAEE WA B K
Financial assets at fair value % //A\ft'tgi HFF A2
through profit or loss & A
Cash and cash equivalents e kBHE&5E8Y
Current liabilities i B £ 15
Other payables and accruals Al A B 2 % R
# H
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A4S i J&g 2 ) i IE
Lease liabilities HEARE
Promissory notes ﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%
Net current liabilities i B
Total assets less current G R AR U B A
liabilities
Non-current liabilities Ik B £ 1
Lease liabilities HE A&
NET LIABILITIES AT
EQUITY HE £2
Share capital JiligzN 29
Reserves ﬁﬂéﬁ 4
TOTAL DEFICIT & &l 484
* This item was with an amount less than a thousand. &
Sun Lei Zhu Dong
7% KA
Executive Director Executive Director
HirEF HIrEFH

Bison Finance Group Limited

2023
RO
HKS$’000
W T

3,051

3,051

10,667

238

400

11,305

18,913
97,988
8,110
90,000
215,011

(203,706)

(200,655)

3,309
(203,964)
142,184
(346,148)

(203,964)

ZHHEEARE— T -

2022
e
HK$ 000

i W T

112
3,051

3,163

39,134
626

901
1,093

41,754

10,922
94,732
7,882
90,000
203,536

(161,782)

(158,619)

11,419
(170,038)
142,184
(312,222)

(170,038)



A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NN = R R R (1 R N

Shares
held for
share Share Contributed
Share award option surplus  Accumulated
premium scheme reserve (note) losses Total

Betyiemat sl WRHE  WARK
Bebriy s h 2t it (Wak)  Rabl# i
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
R  EWTx  EWTx  #WTx  #WTx g Tx

At1 January 2022 RoF==—A—H 288,740 (40,949) 4677 594404 (920,208)  (73,336)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEER2TERESE = = - - (238,886) (238,886)
Transfer upon termination of share TS L B B A L e

award scheme - 40,949 - - (40,949) -
Transfer of share option reserve upon St R 4 M e R TER A

the forfeiture of shares options - - (353) - 353 -

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 WZEZZZHEFZA=+—HK

“ECZHE-A-H 288,740 - 4304 594404 (1,199,690)  (312,020)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEERTEREH = = = = (33,926) (33,926)
Transfer of share option reserve upon i B RS ﬁﬂ?%ﬁgﬂ%%@%ﬁ
the forfeiture of shares options - - (1,273) - 1,273 -
At 31 December 2023 REZZZEFZA=Z+—H 288,740 - 3,051 SO4A04 (1032,343) (346,143
Note: Contributed surplus comprised the excess of consolidated net assets Hat . EHBRHROEAA R - FE—FRE
represented by the shares acquired over the nominal value of the T AR A e R Oy P AR R AR A R E
shares issued by the Company in exchange under the reorganisation AR B 2 3T AT 2 B (2 22
in 2001 and the transfer of the credit arising from the reduction of DA T o 4 A % ) R — =4 R A
share premium of the Company in 2013. Yo (8 T B A 2 AR
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no reserve W _E_=ZF R _E__F+_H
available for distribution to sharcholders of the Company. e H > B 4 BT Ak 53 R T AR FROR
Z At o
The consolidated financial statements were approved and SAEMBHmEDONR __F _MFE=H
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March e A= R i R R R

2024.

Ok m e B AR A A



Continuing operations

Revenue
Other income and other
(losses)/ gains, net
Cost of services provided
Staff expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation
Reversal of/ (provision for)
impairment losses
on financial assets, net
Provision for impairment loss
on non-current assets
Gain/ (loss) on disposal of
subsidiaries
Other operating expenses, net
Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before tax
Income tax (expense)/ credit

(Loss)/profit for the year
from continuing
operations

Discontinued Operation
(Loss)/profit for the year from
Discontinued Operation

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Bison Finance Group Limited

ERE FSeE R

A
A A S A

(B8 /s 8

AR 2 A

AL

ArEE i 3

4 Ll R
W/ (B A

TE R W s R
Al
8 Bt 22 7l
fedi,/ ()
HAt A0 2
il

BRBi (4 ) /Al
sl (W30 /1%

FRE A R AR
(fE 1) /Al

BLBBEHK
# B8 AR
(lE18) /i Al

EWOE#R) /A
VSNSRI E

BEALIE ZEUN
— R PERCHE R

2023
ZRIER
HK$000
T

35,566
(7,518)
(23,304)

(22,860)
(993)

20,609

50
(12,708)
(9,473)

(20,631)
()

(20,638)

(20,638)

(20,636)
2

For the year ended 31 December

BET A=+ —HILEE

2022
B Sy
HK$’000

BT

40,957
(40,790)
(21,317
(23,463)
(15,384)
(615)
(43,905)
780

(13,504)
(9,491)

(126,732)
3,640

(123,092)

(123,092)

(123,092)

2021
e Smtaid
HK$’000

BT

75,573
48

(31,353)
(46,474)
(22,818)
(41,790)
(92,388)

(505)

(22,493)
(10,448)

(192,648)
3,799

(188,849)

(69,911)

(258,760)

(258,760)

2020
#?#?éﬁ
HKs'000

T

78,977

82,773
27,905
42,174
23,546

/_\/_\AA
= D 2=

19
(99,643)
7,879
(28,819)
(18,603)

(236,588)
2,468

(234,120)

(109,853)

(343,973)

(343,973)

2019
L
HK$’000

T

129,452
77,633
(31,222)
(71,948)
(19,837)
(5,583)
(10,429)
(2,527)

(25,366)
(14,846)

25,327
(5,791)

19,536

1,230

20,766

20,766



Assets and liabilities

Property and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Loans receivable

Deferred tax assets

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Interest-bearing borrowings
Non-current lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to
owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

i 0
35 % 5 A 2
ki

i

AT
e Ty S
HEE 3

B AL (A B 2
N

e 3
B
B
B 408
e

B E A
IEERIA B ]

& 7 HE
g
e A

fit 5 5

LN XN £
B

T2 1

HE 5 28 £

2023
ZRIER
HK$000
T

51,955

62,519

(3,880)

58,639

142,184
(83,543)

58,641

©)

58,639

At 31 December

m+=H=+—H
2022 2021 2020
SR TE SR C—E CECRE
HKs’000 HKs'000 HK$’000
BT i T BT
1,055 9,199 22,783
- - 78,554
- 26,576 49,644
3,109 - 13,881
- 2,000 95,043
- 10,783 -
87,055 157,459 142,561
91,219 206,017 402,466
(11,810) - (1,773)
- (3,648) (7,459)
79,409 202,369 387,034
142,184 142,184 118,487
(62,775) 60,185 268,747
79,409 202,369 387,034
79,409 202,369 387,234

2019
L
HK$’000

T

61,330
178,444
58,919

5,135
167,452
42,869

1,265
276,996

792,410
(39,608)
(15,904)
(15,043)

721,855

118,487
603,368

721,855

721,855
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Mr. XU Peixin
Rl koA
Mr. SUN Lei (Chairman” & Chief Executive Officer)
("Appointed with effect from 1 September 2023)
BRE S (T I T A )
(W ZEZ=FNH— HEZ(T)
Mr. ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer)
R (EHHEE)

Dr. QI Daqing
7R B I

Mr. CHEN Yigong

B IR T 5 A4

Mr. FENG Zhonghua
HHEERE

Dr. MA Weihua (Chairman)
(Resigned with effect from 1 September 2023)
MMEEL (ZF)
(H == S 4 H — H BHE)

Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan

BB B

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai,

Hong Kong

T B HE LA RA A
i

w7

2 5 KB H 18398

AR L1 71712-1716F

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North, Cedar House,

41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda

Bison Finance Group Limited

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

Address: 6th Floor,
China Taiping Finance Centre,
18 King Wah Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
Telephone:  (852) 2165 3000
Facsimile: (852) 2165 3001

Website: https://www.bison.com.hk
Ho ik LA
HHEGE 1858
r B K P 4 Rl L
;4
C (852) 2165 3000
e (852) 2165 3001
A0 https://www.bison.com.hk

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
Level 8, K11 ATELIER King’s Road,

728 King’s Road, Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong
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